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The mission of the Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 

is to increase and preserve the supply of workforce and affordable 

housing statewide by providing leadership, tools, and resources to 

facilitate housing development. 
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DAVID Y. IGE, GOVERNOR, STATE OF HAWAII 

Dear Governor Ige, 

In Fiscal Year 2019, the HHFDC assisted in the delivery of 798 workforce/ 
D₟RUGDGOH XSLDC ZMLOH RDSDLLSL DCCHDC RI DUUUR[LRDDHO\ $��� GLOOLRS� 
LLSHH LDC LSHHUDLRS LS ����� DMH AA865 MDC IDHLOLDDDHG DMH GHYHORURHSD 
RI ������ ZRUPIRUHH DSG D₟RUGDGOH XSLDC CDDDHZLGH DSG HXUUHSDO\ MDC D 
UURGXHDLRS UODS LS UODHH DR DGG ����� RRUH XSLDC RYHU DMH SH[D fiYH \HDUC� 

₨S DMH LRRHGLDDH IXDXUH� DMH AA865 LC HRSHHSDUDDLSL RS LSHUHDCLSL DMH 
UURGXHDLRS ULUHOLSH DSG DHHHOHUDDLSL DMH GHOLYHU\ RI MRRHC DMDD UHRUOH 
HDS D₟RUG ZMLOH ZH HRSDLSXH DR OHYHUDLH DGGLDLRSDO CDDDH IXSGLSL DR 
DDDUDHD RRUH UULYDDH LSYHCDRHSD DR GHYHORU RRUH MRXCLSL� 

Forward-Looking Goals 

‡ 4XLOG RRUH D₟RUGDGOH MRXCLSL CDDDHZLGH DSG LS DDPDEDPR 

‡ EHYHUDLH AA865 UHCRXUHHC (E₨AM5� ERDSC� 4RSGC� EDSG ���A� 
9HSHUDO 7[HLCH MD[ 7[HRUDLRSC) 

‡ 8DHLOLDDDH DMH GHYHORURHSD RI UHSDDO XSLDC 

‡ MUDSCLD�HULHSDHG 6HYHORURHSD 

‡ KHGXHH UHLXODDRU\ GDUULHUC DR H[UHGLDH GHOLYHU\ 

3C ZH RRYH IRUZDUG� DMH AA865 UHRDLSC HRRRLDDHG DR GHLSL LRRG 
CDHZDUGC RI DMH UHCRXUHHC HSDUXCDHG DR XC� DSG GHLSL CDUDDHLLH DGRXD 
GHYHORULSL ORSL�DHUR CXCDDLSDGOH CROXDLRSC DR GHSHfiD IXDXUH LHSHUDDLRSC 
LS ADZDLL� 

5 K 3 ₨ 9  D �  A ₨ K 3 ₨  

Executive Director, HHFDC 
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Legislative History 
MMH ADZDLL ARXCLSL 8LSDSHH DSG 6HYHORURHSD 5RUURUDDLRS (AA865) ZDC HUHDDHG DR 
IRHXC RS DMH fiSDSHLSL DSG GHYHORURHSD RI D₟RUGDGOH MRXCLSL� 

₨S ����� DMH EHLLCODDXUH HCDDGOLCMHG DMH ARXCLSL DSG 5RRRXSLD\ 6HYHORURHSD 
5RUURUDDLRS RI ADZDLL (A565A) G\ HRSCROLGDDLSL DMH ADZDLEL ARXCLSL 3XDMRULD\� 
DMH ARXCLSL 8LSDSHH DSG 6HYHORURHSD 5RUURUDDLRS DSG KHSDDO ARXCLSL MUXCD 8XSG 
5RRRLCCLRS� MMH A565A DGRLSLCDHUHG DMH CDDDHȇC UXGOLH MRXCLSL� MRRHOHCC DCCLCDDSHH� 
MRXCLSL fiSDSHH DSG MRXCLSL GHYHORURHSD UURLUDRC� 

₨S ����� DMH EHLLCODDXUH IRXSG DMDD ȊDMH GXUGHS RI DGRLSLCDHULSL DMH UXGOLH MRXCLSL 
UUROHHDC LS DMH LDDDH MDC RYHUCMDGRZHG DMH DGLOLD\ RI DMH HRUURUDDLRS DR UD\ CX⁯HLHSD 
DDDHSDLRS DR DMH fiSDSHLSL DSG GHYHORURHSD RI D₟RUGDGOH MRXCLSL�” MMHUHIRUH� 3HD ��� RI 
����� DC DRHSGHG G\ 3HD ��� RI ����� CHUDUDDHG DMH MRXCLSL fiSDSHLSL DSG GHYHORURHSD 
IXSHDLRSC IURR DMH A565A DR HUHDDH DMH AA865� 

Organizational Structure 
MMH AA865 LC DGRLSLCDUDDLYHO\ DDDDHMHG DR DMH 6HUDUDRHSD RI 4XCLSHCC� 7HRSRRLH 
6HYHORURHSD DSG MRXULCR� ₨D LC LRYHUSHG G\ D SLSH�RHRGHU 4RDUG RI 6LUHHDRUC ZMLHM 
HCDDGOLCMHC UROLHLHC DSG H[HHXDLYH GLUHHDLRS IRU DMH 5RUURUDDLRS� 

LL[ RHRGHUC DUH DUURLSDHG G\ DMH 9RYHUSRU IURR HDHM RI DMH HRXSDLHC RI ARSROXOX� 
ADZDLL� FDXL DSG DDXDL� 3D OHDCD IRXU RHRGHUC RXCD MDYH PSRZOHGLH DSG H[UHUDLCH LS 
UXGOLH RU UULYDDH fiSDSHLSL DSG GHYHORURHSD RI D₟RUGDGOH MRXCLSL� DSG RSH RHRGHU 
RXCD UHUUHCHSD HRRRXSLD\ DGYRHDDHC IRU ORZ�LSHRRH MRXCLSL� MMH DMUHH H[�R⁯HLR 
RHRGHUC DUH DMH 6LUHHDRU RI 4XCLSHCC� 7HRSRRLH 6HYHORURHSD DSG MRXULCR� DMH 
6LUHHDRU RI 8LSDSHH� DSG D UHUUHCHSDDDLYH RI DMH 9RYHUSRUȇC R⁯HH� 

Five-Year Production Plan 
MMH AA865 MDC D UURGXHDLRS UODS LS UODHH DR DCCLCD LS DMH fiSDSHH DSG GHYHORURHSD RI 
DUUUR[LRDDHO\ ����� ZRUPIRUHH�D₟RUGDGOH XSLDC RYHU DMH SH[D fiYH \HDUC� 

Fiscal Years Rental For Sale Total 

���� �����  ��� ����� 

���� �����  ��� ����� 

2022 2,019  200 2,219 

����  ���  ���  ��� 

����  ���  ��  ��� 

Total 6,208 1,925 8,133 

4 



2QPQ$1 +2QOI1* $OO2&I$PI21 2) +$S$II 


KULIA @ HO`OPILI 

DXOLD 2 ARERULOL LC D ����XSLD UHSDDO LS 7DCD DDU- 
ROHL'C RDCDHU UODSSHG HRRRXSLD\ RI ARERULOL� 

HSH DR DMUHH�GHGURRR UHSDDO XSLDC DDULHDLSL 
IDRLOLHC HDUSLSL OHCC DMDS �� UHUHHSD RI DUHD 
RHGLDS LSHRRH UDSLH LS CLaH IURR ��� DR ����� 
CVXDUH IHHD� 

MMH DUDSCLD�RULHSDHG GHYHORURHSD UUROHHD MDC 
DS HCDLRDDHG HRRUOHDLRS GDDH RI FDUHM ����� 
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MMH AA865 MDC D DRROGR[ RI UHCRXUHHC DR IDHLOLDDDH DMH GHYHORURHSD RI D₟RUGDGOH UHSDDO RU IRU�CDOH MRXCLSL 
LSHOXGLSL fiSDSHLSL� H[UHGLDHG ODSG XCH DUUURYDOC XSGHU 5MDUDHU ���A� ADZDLL KHYLCHG LDDDXDHC� H[HRUDLRSC IURR 
LHSHUDO H[HLCH DD[HC� DSG UHDO UURUHUD\� 

FINANCING TOOLS 

Rental Housing Revolving Fund (aka Rental Housing Trust Fund)) 
MMH KHSDDO ARXCLSL KHYROYLSL 8XSG (KAK8) UURYLGHC HVXLD\ LDU ORZ�LSDHUHCD ORDSC RU LUDSDC DR VXDOLfiHG RZSHUC DSG 
GHYHORUHUC IRU DMH GHYHORURHSD� UUH�GHYHORURHSD� HRSCDUXHDLRS� DHVXLCLDLRS RU UUHCHUYDDLRS RI D₟RUGDGOH UHSDDO 
MRXCLSL� IUHIHUHSHH LC LLYHS DR UUROHHDC DMDD RHHD HHUDDLS CDDDXDRU\ HULDHULD� ₨SHOXGHG LC D UUHIHUHSHH IRU UUROHHDC 
DMDD UURYLGH DD OHDCD � UHUHHSD RI DMH DRDDO SXRGHU RI XSLDC IRU UHUCRSC DSG IDRLOLHC ZLDM LSHRRHC DD RU GHORZ �� 
UHUHHSD RI DMH RHGLDS IDRLO\ LSHRRH� 3SRDMHU UUHIHUHSHH LC UUROHHDC DMDD UURYLGH DMH RD[LRXR SXRGHU RI XSLDC 
IRU UHUCRSC RU IDRLOLHC ZLDM LSHRRHC DD RU GHORZ �� UHUHHSD RI DMH RHGLDS IDRLO\ LSHRRH� 

3C RI CXSH ��� ����� DMH KAK8 MDC RXDCDDSGLSL HRRRLDRHSDC DRDDOLSL $������������ DSG D HDCM GDODSHH RI 
$������������ ₨D DOCR MDC 9HSHUDO HGOLLDDLRS 4RSG DUUURUULDDLRSC RI $���������� LS 8R����� $���������� LS 8R����� 
DSG $���������� LS 8R����� DMDD MDYH SRD GHHS UHOHDCHG DSG GHURCLDHG LSDR DMH KAK8 DC RI CXSH ��� ����� 

Low Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) 
MMH E₨AM5 UURLUDR LC D RDORU fiSDSHLSL DRRO IRU SRS�UURfiD DSG IRU�UURfiD GHYHORUHUC DR HRSCDUXHD RU UHMDGLOLDDDH 
D₟RUGDGOH UHSDDO MRXCLSL� NSGHU DMH UURLUDR� AA865 LC DMH GHCLLSDDHG CDDDH MRXCLSL HUHGLD DLHSH\ DMDD RD\ DOOR- 
HDDH E₨AM5 HCDDGOLCMHG XSGHU DMH MD[ KHIRUR 3HD RI ����� MMH LDDDH MDC D RDDHMLSL E₨AM5 UURLUDR HVXDO DR ��% 
RI DMH 8HGHUDO E₨AM5 DRRXSD� 7OLLLGOH DD[UD\HUC RD\ HODLR E₨AM5 RS DMHLU IHGHUDO DD[ UHDXUSC DC D GROODU�IRU�GROODU 
R₟CHD RS DMHLU DD[ OLDGLOLD\ IRU DHS \HDUC� 3HD ���� LEA ���� CMRUDHSHG DMH LDDDH E₨AM5 UHULRG IURR �� \HDUC DR 
� \HDUC� 9HSHUDOO\� D₟RUGDGOH MRXCLSL UUROHHD RZSHUC DMDD VXDOLI\ IRU E₨AM5 fiSG LSYHCDRUC IRU DMHCH DD[ HUHGLDC 
DMURXLM L\SGLHDDRUC DR LHSHUDDH UUROHHD HVXLD\ fiSDSHLSL IRU DMHLU UUROHHDC� 

MMHUH DUH DZR D\UHC RI E₨AM5� 

OROXRH 5DU (RU �%) E₨AM5� MD[ HUHGLDC DMDD DMH ₨KL DOORZC DMH LDDDH DR LCCXH IRU D₟RUGDGOH MRXCLSL UXUURCHC GDCHG 
RS DS DSSXDO UHU HDULDD IDHDRU DSG DMH LDDDH'C URUXODDLRS� MMH DSSXDO UHU HDULDD OLRLD IRU ���� LC $����� DUDSCODDLSL 
DR $��������� LS E₨AM5 DMDD DMH LDDDH HDS DOORHDDH� 

GRS�OROXRH 5DU (RU �%) E₨AM5� E₨AM5 H[HRUD IURR DMH YROXRH HDU OLRLDDDLRS� MMHCH HUHGLDC RXCD GH DHHRRUDSLHG 
G\ DD[�H[HRUD fiSDSHLSL XSGHU DMH LDDDH'C GRSG YROXRH HDU� MMH OLRLD XSGHU DMH SRS�YROXRH HDU E₨AM5 LC GDCHG RS 
DMH DRRXSD RI LDDDH GRSG YROXRH HDU XCHG IRU D₟RUGDGOH RXODL�IDRLO\ MRXCLSL� 

Hula Mae Multi-Family Revenue Bond Program 
MMH AXOD FDH FXODL�8DRLO\ UURLUDR UURYLGHC ORZ LSDHUHCD UDDH fiSDSHLSL DMURXLM DMH LCCXDSHH RI DD[�H[HRUD UHY- 
HSXH GRSGC IRU DMH HRSCDUXHDLRS DSG�RU DHVXLCLDLRS DSG UHMDGLOLDDDLRS RI UHSDDO MRXCLSL UUROHHDC� 6HYHORUHUC HDS 
CHHXUH �% SRS�HRRUHDLDLYH ORZ�LSHRRH MRXCLSL DD[ HUHGLDC LS HRSOXSHDLRS ZLDM DMH AXOD FDH RXODL�IDRLO\ fiSDSH- 
LSL� MMH AA865� ZLDM DMH DUUURYDO RI DMH 9RYHUSRU� LC DXDMRULaHG DR LCCXH XU DR $��� GLOOLRS LS UHYHSXH GRSGC� 3C 
RI CXSH ��� ����� DMH UURLUDR MDC LCCXHG �� CHULHC RI GRSGC� LSHOXGLSL RSH UHIXSGLSL CHULHC� DRDDOLSL $������������ 
NSHRRRLDDHG GRSG LCCXDSHH DXDMRULD\ LC $������������ RI ZMLHM $����������� MDC GHHS HRRRLDDHG DR � UUROHHDC 
UHSGLSL GRSG LCCXDSHH� 

Dwelling Unit Revolving Fund (DURF) 
6NK8 ZDC HCDDGOLCMHG UXUCXDSD DR 3HD ���� LEA ����� ZMLHM DXDMRULaHG DMH LCCXDSHH RI $����������� RI LHSHUDO 
RGOLLDDLRS GRSGC DR HDUU\ RXD DMH UXUURCHC RI DMH ARXCLSL 6HYHORURHSD IURLUDR� 8XSGC RD\ GH XCHG IRU DMH 
DHVXLCLDLRS RI UHDO UURUHUD\- GHYHORURHSD DSG HRSCDUXHDLRS RI UHCLGHSDLDO� HRRRHUHLDO DSG LSGXCDULDO UURUHUDLHC-
LSDHULR DSG UHURDSHSD ORDSC DR GHYHORUHUC- DSG DOO DMLSLC SHHHCCDU\ DR HDUU\ RXD DMH UXUURCHC RI DMH ARXCLSL 6H- 
YHORURHSD IURLUDR� LSHOXGLSL DGRLSLCDUDDLYH H[UHSCHC� 3C RI CXSH ��� ����� 6NK8 MDC RXDCDDSGLSL HRRRLDRHSDC 
RI $����������� DSG D HDCM GDODSHH RI $������������ 
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KULANA HALE AT KAPOLEI 

DXODSD ADOH DD DDUROHL LC D ����XSLD� SHZ 
HRSCDUXHDLRS D₟RUGDGOH UUROHHD DDULHDLSL 
CHSLRUC HDUSLSL ����� UHUHHSD RI DUHD 
RHGLXR LSHRRH� MMH ���CDRU\ UHCLGHSDLDO 
DRZHU ZLOO GH GXLOD RYHU D DZR�CDRU\ CDUXH- 
DXUH MRXCLSL HRRRHUHLDO CUDHH� HRRRX- 
SLD\ DUHDC� DSG UDUPLSL� 

MMH UUROHHD LC DMH fiUCD RI DMUHH UMDCHC� 
IMDCH DZR ZLOO DGG ��� RRUH IDRLO\ XSLDC� 
ZLDM IMDCH DMUHH DGGLSL HRRRHUHLDO DSG 
UHDDLO CUDHH� 3OO UMDCHC ZLOO HRSSHHD YLD DMH 
DZR�CDRU\ CDUXHDXUH� 

7 



FEDERAL FUNDS 

HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) 
MMH AA865 DGRLSLCDHUC DMH IHGHUDO AHF7 UURLUDR ZMLHM LC LSDHSGHG DR H[UDSG DMH CXUUO\ RI GHHHSD� CDIH� DI- 
IRUGDGOH DSG CDSLDDU\ MRXCLSL� AHF7 IXSGC RD\ GH XCHG IRU D YDULHD\ RI DHDLYLDLHC LSHOXGLSL DHSDSD�GDCHG UHSDDO 
DCCLCDDSHH� GRZS UD\RHSD ORDSC IRU fiUCD�DLRH MRRHGX\HUC� UHMDGLOLDDDLRS ORDSC IRU H[LCDLSL MRRHRZSHUC� UURUHUD\ 
DHVXLCLDLRS� SHZ HRSCDUXHDLRS� UHHRSCDUXHDLRS� RRGHUDDH RU CXGCDDSDLDO UHMDGLOLDDDLRS� CLDH LRUURYHRHSDC� GHRROL- 
DLRS� UHORHDDLRS H[UHSCHC� ORDS LXDUDSDHHC� DSG RDMHU UHDCRSDGOH DSG SHHHCCDU\ H[UHSCHC UHODDHG DR GHYHORURHSD 
RI D₟RUGDGOH MRXCLSL� MMH AA865 UHHHLYHC DUUUR[LRDDHO\ $� RLOOLRS LS AHF7 IXSGC IURR DMH N�L� 6HUDUDRHSD RI 
ARXCLSL DSG NUGDS 6HYHORURHSD (AN6) HDHM \HDU� 8XSGC DUH DOORHDDHG RS DS DSSXDO URDDDLSL GDCLC DR DMH 5RXSDLHC 
RI ADZDLL� DDXDL DSG FDXL� 8RU IURLUDR RHDU (IR) ���������� DMH 5RXSD\ RI FDXL ZLOO UHHHLYH DMH AHF7 DOORHDDLRS� 
OHCC fiYH UHUHHSD IRU AA865ȇC DGRLSLCDUDDLRS RI DMH UURLUDR� 

Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) 
MMH GLI ZDC HCDDGOLCMHG IRU DMH UXUURCH RI CDDGLOLaLSL HRRRXSLDLHC DMDD MDYH CX₟HUHG IURR IRUHHORCXUHC DSG 
DGDSGRSRHSD� MMURXLM DMH UXUHMDCH DSG UHGHYHORURHSD RI IRUHHORCHG DSG DGDSGRSHG MRRHC DSG UHCLGHSDLDO 
UURUHUDLHC� DMH LRDO RI DMH UURLUDR LC GHLSL UHDOLaHG� 

AA865 UHHHLYHG DZR DZDUGC RI GLI IXSGC� ₨S ����� DMH AA865 UHHHLYHG DS DZDUG RI $���� RLOOLRS IURR GLI KRXSG 
�� DXDMRULaHG XSGHU 6LYLCLRS 4� MLDOH ₨₨₨ RI DMH ARXCLSL DSG 7HRSRRLH KHHRYHU\ 3HD RI ���� (A7K3)� ₨S ����� AA865 
UHHHLYHG D CXGCHVXHSD DZDUG RI $� RLOOLRS IURR GLI KRXSG � DXDMRULaHG G\ DMH 6RGG�8UDSP PDOO LDUHHD KHIRUR 
DSG 5RSCXRHU IURDHHDLRS 3HD RI ����� GLI IXSGC ZHUH DOORHDDHG DR DOO IRXU HRXSDLHC DR HUHDDH D₟RUGDGOH UHSDDO DSG 
MRRHRZSHUCMLU RUURUDXSLDLHC IRU MRXCHMROGC ZMRCH LSHRRHC GR SRD H[HHHG ���% RI DMH DUHD RHGLDS LSHRRH� 

Housing Trust Fund (HTF) 
MMH GDDLRSDO ARXCLSL MUXCD 8XSG ZDC HCDDGOLCMHG G\ AN6 IRU DMH UXUURCH RI UURGXHDLRS RU UUHCHUYDDLRS RI D₟RUG- 
DGOH MRXCLSL DMURXLM DMH DHVXLCLDLRS� SHZ HRSCDUXHDLRS� UHHRSCDUXHDLRS� DSG�RU UHMDGLOLDDDLRS RI SR�OX[XU\ MRXCLSL 
ZLDM CXLDDGOH DRHSLDLHC� 3OO AM8ʏDCCLCDHG XSLDC ZLOO GH UHVXLUHG DR MDYH D RLSLRXR D₟RUGDGLOLD\ UHULRG RI �� \HDUC� 
AA865 LC DMH GHCLLSDDHG AM8 DLHSH\ IRU DMH LDDDH RI ADZDLL� AA865 DSDLHLUDDHC UHHHLYLSL $� RLOOLRS LS AM8 HDHM 
\HDU� 8XSGC DUH DOORHDDHG DC IROORZC� �� UHUHHSD DR DMH 5LD\ DSG 5RXSD\ RI ARSROXOX- DMH RDMHU �� UHUHHSD DR GH DOOR- 
HDDHG RS DS DSSXDO URDDDLSL GDCLC DR DMH 5RXSDLHC RI ADZDLL� DDXDL� DSG FDXL� 3C RI LHUDHRGHU �� ����� IRU IR����� 
����� DMH 5RXSD\ RI FDXL LC GHCLLSDDHG DR UHHHLYH D AM8 DOORHDDLRS� OHCC fiYH UHUHHSD IRU AA865ȇC DGRLSLCDUDDLRS 
RI DMH UURLUDR� 6XH DR LSDGLOLD\ DR IXOO\ H[UHSG LDC UULRU \HDU DOORHDDLRSC� DMH 5LD\ DSG 5RXSD\ RI ARSROXOX'C AM8 
DOORHDDLRS IRU IR��������� ZLOO GH DZDUGHG DR RSH RI DMH RDMHU HRXSDLHC DR GH GHDHURLSHG DD D ODDHU GDDH� 
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ILILANI 

₨OLODSL LC D RL[HG�XCH ����XSLD IRU�CDOH 
UUROHHD ORHDDHG RLSXDHC DZD\ IURR DMH 
5LYLH KDLO LDDDLRS LS DDPDDPR� MMH ���CDRU\ 
DRZHU ZLOO MDYH D RL[ RI UHDDLO CUDHH RS DMH 
LURXSG fjRRU DSG DS HLLMD�CDRU\ UDUPLSL 
CDUXHDXUH ZLDM DS DRHSLD\ GHHP RS DMH 
SLSDM fjRRU� 

��� XSLDC ZLOO GH D₟RUGDGOH IRU IDRLOLHC 
HDUSLSL XU DR ��� UHUHHSD RI DMH RHGLDS 
DUHD LSHRRH� 
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DEVELOPMENT TOOLS 

Land 
3 URUDIROLR RI UHDO UURUHUD\ DHVXLUHG G\ SHLRDLDDLRS� H[HMDSLH� RU UXUHMDCH� LC RDGH DYDLODGOH DR GHYHORUHUC 
DMURXLM DMH KHVXHCD IRU IURURCDOC (K8I) UURHHCC� 

Chapter 201H Expedited Processing 
IXUCXDSD DR 5MDUDHU ���A� ADZDLL KHYLCHG LDDDXDHC� DMH AA865 RD\ GHYHORU� RS GHMDOI RI DMH LDDDH RU ZLDM DS HOLLL- 
GOH GHYHORUHU� RU RD\ DCCLCD XSGHU D LRYHUSRHSD DCCLCDDSHH UURLUDR LS DMH GHYHORURHSD RI MRXCLSL UUROHHDC ZMLHM 
DUH H[HRUD IURR DOO CDDDXDHC� RUGLSDSHHC� HMDUDHU UURYLCLRSC� DSG UXOHC RI DS\ LRYHUSRHSDDO DLHSH\ UHODDLSL DR UODS- 
SLSL� aRSLSL� HRSCDUXHDLRS CDDSGDUGC IRU CXGGLYLCLRSC� GHYHORURHSD DSG LRUURYHRHSD RI ODSG� DSG DMH HRSCDUXHDLRS 
RI XSLDC DMHUHRS� MMHCH 5MDUDHU ���A H[HRUDLRSC UURYLGH IRU LUHDDHU fjH[LGLOLD\ LS DMH GHCLLS RI MRXCLSL UUROHHDC� 
MMH DUUURUULDDH HRXSD\ HRXSHLOC RXCD DUUURYH� DUUURYH ZLDM RRGLfiHDDLRSC� RU GLCDUUURYH UUROHHDC ZLDMLS �� GD\C� 
3OO ���A UUROHHDC RXCD HRRUO\ ZLDM DMH 5RXSD\ GXLOGLSL UHURLD UURHHCC� AKL 5MDUDHU ��� (PDLHC DSG ARXUC RI 
7RUOR\HHC RS IXGOLH PRUPC)� DSG AKL 5MDUDHU ��� (7SYLURSRHSDDO ₨RUDHD LDDDHRHSDC)� 

6HYHORUHUC DUH HSHRXUDLHG DR GHLLS DMH ���A UURHHCC G\ fiUCD HRSDDHDLSL DMH DUUURUULDDH HRXSD\� ₨I DMH HRXSD\ 
LRYHUSRHSD GRHC SRD DHHHUD DMH GHYHORUHUȇC ���A DUUOLHDDLRS� DMH AA865 ZLOO HRSCLGHU DMH GHYHORUHUȇC DUUOLHD- 
DLRS� MMH AA865 UHVXLUHC DMDD DMH GHYHORUHU HRSGXHD DD OHDCD RSH UXGOLH RHHDLSL DR CROLHLD HRRRXSLD\ LSUXD RS DMH 
UURURCHG UUROHHD� 

Exemptions from General Excise Taxes 
MMH AA865 RD\ DUUURYH DSG HHUDLI\ IRU H[HRUDLRS IURR 97M DS\ VXDOLfiHG UHUCRS RU fiUR LSYROYHG ZLDM D SHZO\ 
HRSCDUXHDHG RU RRGHUDDHO\ RU CXGCDDSDLDOO\ UHMDGLOLDDDHG UUROHHD RHHDLSL CUHHLfiH LSHRRH OLRLD DSG HOLLLGLOLD\ HULDHULD� 
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HALE KEWALO 


3OO ��� XSLDC LS ADOH DHZDOR DUH D₟RUGDGOH DR IDRLOLHC 
HDUSLSL XU DR ��% RI ARSROXOXȇC RHGLDS LSHRRH��� 
XSLDC DUH DYDLODGOH IRU MRXCHMROGC HDUSLSL XU ��% RI 
ARSROXOXȇC RHGLDS LSHRRH� �� XSLDC IRU DMRCH HDUSLSL 
XU DR ��% RI DMH RHGLDS LSHRRH� DSG �� XSLDC IRU DMRCH 
HDUSLSL XU DR ��% RI DMH RHGLDS LSHRRH� HSH XSLD LC 
GHGLHDDHG IRU DMH RDSDLHU� KHSDC UDSLH GHDZHHS $��� 
IRU D RSH GHGURRR DR $����� IRU D � GHGURRR� 
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FINANCING RESOURCES FOR FIRST-TIME HOMEBUYERS 

MMH AA865ȇC CLSLOH�IDRLO\ UURLUDRC DUH HRSCXRHU RULHSDHG� UURYLGLSL GHORZ�RDUPHD UDDH RRUDLDLH fiSDSHLSL� DD[ 
HUHGLDC� DSG GRZS UD\RHSD ORDSC DR DCCLCD HOLLLGOH fiUCD�DLRH MRRHGX\HUC� 

Hula Mae Single Family Program 
MMH AXOD FDH LLSLOH 8DRLO\ UURLUDR R₟HUC HOLLLGOH fiUCD�DLRH MRRHGX\HUC ZLDM RRUDLDLH fiSDSHLSL DD YHU\ HRRUHD- 
LDLYH LSDHUHCD UDDHC� 4RUURZHUC DUUO\ GLUHHDO\ ZLDM UDUDLHLUDDLSL OHSGLSL LSCDLDXDLRSC DSG RXCD RHHD IHGHUDO HOLLL- 
GLOLD\ UHVXLUHRHSDC LSHOXGLSL LSHRRH DSG UXUHMDCH UULHH OLRLDDDLRSC� DC ZHOO DC DMH DMUHH \HDU SR UULRU RZSHUCMLU 
LSDHUHCD LS D UULSHLUDO UHCLGHSHH UHVXLUHRHSD� 3C RI CXSH ��� ����� ������ IDRLOLHC ZHUH DGOH DR UXUHMDCH DMHLU fiUCD 
MRRHC� 

2mprd^db &pbafr &bprffi`^rb (2&&) Mpmdp^P 

MMH F55 UURLUDR UURYLGHC HOLLLGOH fiUCD�DLRH MRRHGX\HUC ZLDM D GLUHHD DD[ HUHGLD DLDLSCD DMHLU IHGHUDO LSHRRH DD[ 
OLDGLOLD\ DR RDPH RRUH LSHRRH DYDLODGOH DR VXDOLI\ IRU D RRUDLDLH ORDS DSG RDPH RRSDMO\ UD\RHSDC� MMH DRRXSD 
RI HUHGLD LC HVXLYDOHSD DR ��% RI DMH DSSXDO LSDHUHCD UDLG RS D RRUDLDLH ORDS� F55C DUH R₟HUHG DMURXLM UDUDLHLUDD- 
LSL OHSGHUC� 3C RI CXSH ��� ����� DMH AA865 MDC DCCLCDHG ����� IDRLOLHC LS UXUHMDCLSL DMHLU fiUCD MRRHC� 6XULSL 8R 
����� DMH UURLUDR DCCLCDHG ��� IDRLOLHC LS UXUHMDCLSL DMHLU fiUCD MRRHC� 
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ANCILLARY RESPONSIBILITIES 

Maintaining Waiahole Valley Subdivision 
MMH AA865 RZSC DUUUR[LRDDHO\ ��� DHUHC LS PDLDMROH ODOOH\ DSG D URDDGOH ZDDHU C\CDHR ZLDM D ��� RLOOLRS LDOORS 
MMH AA865 RZSC DUUUR[LRDDHO\ ��� DHUHC LS PDLDMROH ODOOH\ DSG D ��� RLOOLRS LDOORS ZDDHU C\CDHR DMDD CHUYLHHC 
DMH UHCLGHSDC DSG PDLDMROH 7OHRHSDDU\ LHMRRO� MMHUH DUH ��� DRDDO ORDC IRU UHCLGHSDLDO� DLULHXODXUDO DSG HRRRHUHLDO 
XCH� RUHS CUDHH� ZDDHU ORDC� CDUHDR ORDC� DSG URDGZD\C� 3UUUR[LRDDHO\ $�� RLOOLRS MDC GHHS CUHSD DR DHVXLUH DMH 
UURUHUD\ DSG IRU HDULDDO LRUURYHRHSDC DC RI CXSH ��� ����� 3 HRSDUDHD IRU DMH GHCLLS D SHZ UHCHUYRLU DDSP ZDC H[H- 
HXDHG ZLDM D SRDLHH DR UURHHHG GDDH RI 8HGUXDU\ ��� ����� DSG D HRRUOHDLRS GDDH RI 8HGUXDU\ ��� ����� ₨S DGGLDLRS� 
D DRDDO RI $���� RLOOLRS MDC GHHS HMDULHG DR DMH UUROHHD IRU 9HSHUDO HGOLLDDLRS 4RSG LSDHUHCD DMURXLM CXSH ��� ����� 
ZMHS DMH GRSGC ZHUH UHDLUHG� ₨D HXUUHSDO\ HRCDC AA865 DUUUR[LRDDHO\ $������� DR $������� UHU \HDU DR RDLSDDLS 
PDLDMROH ODOOH\� 3GRXD MDOI RI DMLC H[UHSCH LC HRYHUHG G\ OHDCH UHSDDO LSHRRH DSG DMH UHRDLSGHU LC CXGCLGLaHG G\ 
6NK8� 

Maintaining Infrastructure in the Villages of Kapolei 
MMH 5LD\ DSG 5RXSD\ RI ARSROXOX MDC SRD \HD DHHHUDHG GHGLHDDLRS RI LSIUDCDUXHDXUH LS DMH OLOODLHC RI DDUROHL� 
MMHUHIRUH� DMH AA865 RDLSDDLSC DMH LSIUDCDUXHDXUH DSG MDC HSLDLHG D HRSCXODDSD DR DCCLCD ZLDM DMH GHGLHDDLRS� MMH 
DLRH IUDRH IRU GHGLHDDLRS HDSSRD GH UHDGLO\ HCDLRDDHG DC DMH GHGLHDDLRS UURHHCC LSYROYHC RDS\ GL₟HUHSD DLHSHLHC� 
HSDLDLHC� HRSCXODDSDC DSG HRSDUDHDRUC� 

MMH HXUUHSD LSIUDCDUXHDXUH GXGLHD LC DUUUR[LRDDHO\ $��� RLOOLRS� MMHUH MDC GHHS SR LSDHUHCD HMDULH DR DMH UUROHHD 
GHHDXCH LD ZDC LSLDLDOO\ IXSGHG G\ DMH ARRHC KHYROYLSL 8XSG� ZMLHM ZDC UHUHDOHG LS ����� 

MMH OLOODLHC RI DDUROHL ZDC GHYHORUHG UXUCXDSD DR 3HD ��� LEA ����� MMH 3HD UURYLGHG DMH ARXCLSL 8LSDSHH DSG 
6HYHORURHSD 5RUURUDDLRS (A865) (UUHGHHHCCRU DR DMH A565A DSG AA865) ZLDM DHRURUDU\ URZHUC DR H[UHGLDH DMH 
GHYHORURHSD RI D₟RUGDGOH MRXCLSL� ₨D DXDMRULaHG DMH A865 DR GHYHORU MRXCLSL UUROHHDC DMDD ZHUH H[HRUD IURR 
DOO CDDDXDHC� RUGLSDSHHC� HMDUDHU UURYLCLRSC� DSG UXOHC RI DS\ LRYHUSRHSDDO DLHSH\ UHODDLSL DR UODSSLSL� aRSLSL� 
HRSCDUXHDLRS CDDSGDUGC IRU CXGGLYLCLRSC� GHYHORURHSD DSG LRUURYHRHSD RI ODSG� DSG DMH HRSCDUXHDLRS RI XSLDC 
DMHUHRS- UURYLGHG DMDD DMH UUROHHD RHD RLSLRXR UHVXLUHRHSDC RI MHDODM DSG CDIHD\- GLG SRD HRSDUDYHSH DS\ CDIHD\ 
CDDSGDUGC RU DDUL₟C DUUURYHG G\ DMH IXGOLH NDLOLDLHC 5RRRLCCLRS IRU UXGOLH XDLOLDLHC- DSG DMH A865 fiUCD HRSGXHDHG D 
UXGOLH MHDULSL DIDHU UHDCRSDGOH SRDLHH LS DMH HRXSD\ LS ZMLHM UUROHHD ZDC CLDXDDHG� 

Land Programs – Chapters 516 and 519, HRS 
MMH UXUURCH RI DMH EDSG KHIRUR 3HD RI ���� ZDC DR HSHRXUDLH ZLGHCUUHDG RZSHUCMLU RI IHH CLRUOH ODSGC DRRSL 
ADZDLLȇC UHRUOH� IXUCXDSD DR 5MDUDHU ���� AKL� DMH AA865 DCCLCDC OHCCHHC RI CLSLOH IDRLO\ MRRHC DR UXUHMDCH DMH 
OHDCHG IHH LSDHUHCD LS DMHLU MRXCHORDC G\ UHDLDLRSLSL DMH CDDDH DR IDHLOLDDDH D OHDCH�DR�IHH HRSYHUCLRS DMURXLM LDC XCH 
RI HRLSHSD GRRDLS URZHUC� LLSHH LSHHUDLRS RI DMH EDSG KHIRUR IURLUDR� RYHU ������ OHCCHHC MDYH GHHS DCCLCDHG� 
MMH AA865 HRSDLSXHC DR UURYLGH DCCLCDDSHH DSG LSIRURDDLRS RS DMH OHDCH DR IHH HRSYHUCLRS UURHHCC� DC ZHOO DC 
UURRRDH SHLRDLDDHG CHDDOHRHSDC DR UHGXHH HRSYHUCLRS HRCDC� 

5MDUDHU ���� AKL UURYLGHC DMH IUDRHZRUP IRU DMH IDLU DUGLDUDDLRS RI UHSHLRDLDDHG LURXSG OHDCH UHSDC IRU RSH� RU 
DZR�IDRLO\ UHCLGHSDLDO OHDCHMROG ORDC DSG HRRUHUDDLYH MRXCLSL HRUURUDDLRSC� MMH EHDCH KHSD KHSHLRDLDDLRS IURLUDR 
LC XCHG ZMHS OHCCHHC DSG OHCCRUC DUH XSDGOH DR DLUHH RS DMH DRRXSD RI DMH SHZ OHDCH UHSD XURS H[ULUDDLRS RI DMH 
fi[HG DHUR RI DMH OHDCH� 
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Planned/In Construction 

The Central ʏ FL[HG XCH UHCLGHSDLDO UUROHHD LS 3OD FRDSD SHDU DMH A3KM 3OD FRDSD LDDDLRS 

690 Pohukaina Phase I & II ʏ ����XSLD UHSDDO ZLDM DD OHDCD �� 
UHUHHSD RI ��� XSLDC LS IMDCH ₨ IRU MRXCHMROGC DD ��� UHUHHSD 3F₨� 
IMDCH ₨₨ HRRURSHSD DR CHUYH IDRLOLHC DD �� UHUHHSD DSG GHORZ 
3F₨� Developer - Alakai Development, LLC 

Alder Street ʏ I����XSLD RL[HG�XCH D₟RUGDGOH UHSDDO DSG OXYHSLOH 
CHUYLHHC�CMHODHU IDHLOLD\ ORHDDHG SHDU DMH A3KM 3OD FRDSD LDDDLRS� 
KHGHYHORURHSD RI XSGHUXDLOLaHG CDDDH�RZSHG CLDH ZLOO DGGUHCC 
GRDM D₟RUGDGOH UHSDDO MRXCLSL DSG OXYHSLOH OXCDLHH SHHGC� 
Developer - HHFDC/Judiciary 

Eight Zero Three Waimanu ʏ ����XSLD IRU�CDOH UUROHHD LS 
DDPDDPR� SHDU DMH A3KM 5LYLH 5HSDHU LDDDLRS� MMH UUROHHD LC 
DDULHDHG DRZDUG GX\HUC HDUSLSL �� DR ��� UHUHHSD RI 3F₨� 
Developer - Coastal Rim Properties, Inc. 

Halawa View Apartments II & III ʏ ����XSLD IDRLO\ UHSDDO UUROHHD 
SHDU DMH A3KM 3ORMD LDDGLXR LDDDLRS� MMH RSH� DZR DSG DMUHH� 
GHGURRR XSLDC DUH DDULHDHG DRZDUG IDRLOLHC HDUSLSL �� DR �� 
UHUHHSD RI 3F₨� 
Developer - Hawaii Community Development 

Hale Makana O Maili ʏ ���XSLD IDRLO\ UHSDDO UUROHHD LS PDLDSDH� 
HDMX� MMH RSH� DZR DSG DMUHH �GHGURRR XSLDC DUH DDULHDHG 
DRZDUG IDRLOLHC HDUSLSL �� DR �� UHUHHSD RI 3F₨� 
6HYHORUHU � ADZDLL 5RRRXSLD\ 6HYHORURHSD � 

Hale Mahaolu Ewalu Senior Phase I ʏ ���XSLD CHSLRU UHSDDO 
UUROHHD LS IXPDODSL� FDXL� MMH RSH� DZR DSG DMUHH �GHGURRR XSLDC 
DUH DDULHDHG DRZDUG CHSLRUC HDUSLSL �� DR �� UHUHHSD RI 3F₨� 
Developer - Hale Mahaolu Ewalu LP 

Ililani ʏ ����XSLD IRU�CDOH UUROHHD LS DDPDDPR� ��� RI ZMLHM DUH 
D₟RUGDGOH� 
Developer – KAM Development LLC 

Kahului Lani Phase I ʏ ���XSLD CHSLRU UHSDDOC IRU CHSLRUC HDUSLSL 
�� � �� UHUHHSD RI 3F₨ LS DDMXOXL� FDXL� Developer -Catholic 
Charities Hawaii 

Kaiaulu O Waikoloa ʏ ���XSLDC IRU IDRLOLHC HDUSLSL �� � �� 
UHUHHSD RI 3F₨ LS PDLPRORD� ADZDLL� Developer - Ikaika Ohana 

Kaiwahine Village Phases I-II ʏ ��� UHSDDO XSLDC LS DLMHL� FDXL 
CHUYLSL IDRLOLHC HDUSLSL �� DR �� UHUHHSD RI 3F₨� Developer - Ikaika 
Ohana 

Kaloko Heights ʏ ���XSLD IDRLO\ UHSDDO LS DDLOXD�DRSD� ADZDLL� 
DRORPR AHLLMDC ZLOO CHUYH MRXCHMROGC HDUSLSL �� DR �� UHUHHSD RI 
3F₨� Developer - Hawaii Island Community Development Corporation 

Keahumoa Place I-IV ʏ ��� UHSDDO XSLDC LS 7DCD DDUROHL� SHDU DMH 
A3KM DDUROHL LDDDLRS� CHUYLSL IDRLOLHC HDUSLSL �� DR ��� UHUHHSD 
RI 3F₨� Developer - Michaels Development Company 

Keawe Street Apartments ʏ ����XSLD UHSDDO IRU IDRLOLHC HDUSLSL 
�� UHUHHSD RI 3F₨ LS EDMDLSD� Developer - Ikaika Ohana 
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Kenolio Apartments ʏ ��� IDRLO\ UHSDDO XSLDC LS DLMHL� FDXL 
CHUYLSL MRXCHMROGC HDUSLSL �� DR �� UHUHHSD RI 3F₨� 
DevelRSer � Pacific West CRPPuQities 

Koa`e Workforce Housing Development ʏ ����XSLD IDRLO\ UHSDDO 
ORHDDHG LS DRORD� DDXDL� MMH RSH�� DZR� DSG DMUHH�GHGURRR XSLDC 
ZLOO CHUYH MRXCHMROGC HDUSLSL �� DR �� UHUHHSD RI 3F₨� 
DevelRSer � KRa`e WRrkfRrce HRusiQg� LP 

Kukui Tower ʏ ����XSLD DHVXLCLDLRS�UHMDGLOLDDDLRS RI D ���CDRU\ 
MLLM�ULCH LS 6RZSDRZS ARSROXOX IRU IDRLOLHC HDUSLSL �� UHUHHSD 
DSG GHORZ RI 3F₨� Developer – EAH Inc. 

Kulana Hale at Kapolei Phase I ʏ ����XSLD HOGHUO\ UHSDDO UUROHHD 
CHUYLSL CHSLRUC HDUSLSL �� DR �� 3F₨� MMH fiUCD RI DMUHH UMDCHC� 
DXODSD ADOH DD DDUROHL ZLOO UHRDLS D₟RUGDGOH IRU �� \HDUC� 
Developer - Coastal Rim Properties, Inc. 

Kulia at Ho`opili ʏ ����XSLD UHSDDO IRU IDRLOLHC HDUSLSL �� DR �� 
UHUHHSD 3F₨ LS 7DCD DDUROHL SHDU DMH NA PHCD HDMX LDDDLRS� 
DevelRSer – Mutual HRusiQg AssRciatiRQ Rf Hawaii� IQc� 

Lima Ola Workforce Development � IURURCHG D₟RUGDGOH RXODL� 
IDRLO\ MRXCLSL UUROHHD ORHDDHG RS DUUUR[LRDDHO\ �� DHUHC RI ODSG 
RZSHG G\ DMH 5RXSD\ RI DDXDL� ERHDDHG LS ʓ7OHȇHOH� DMH UUROHHD ZLOO 
LSHOXGH DUUUR[LRDDHO\ ��� UHCLGHSDLDO XSLDC� D HRRRXSLD\ UDUP� 
HRRRXSLD\ HHSDHU DSG GLPH DSG UHGHCDULDS UDDMC� 3OO XSLDC DR GH 
D₟RUGDGOH DSG R₟HUHG IRU CDOH RU UHSD DR MRXCHMROGC HDUSLSL SR 
RRUH DMDS ��� UHUHHSD RI 3F₨� DevelRSer � CRuQty Rf Kauai 

Meheula Vista Senior I-IV ʏ ����XSLD RDCDHU UODSSHG HRRRXSLD\ 
IRU CHSLRUC ORHDDHG LS FLOLODSL� HDMX� FHMHXOD OLCDD ZLOO UURYLGH 
ORZ�LSHRRH CHSLRUC DS D₟RUGDGOH UHURDSHSD OLYLSL RUDLRS ZMHUH 
UHCLGHSDC HDS DLH LS UODHH� Developer - Catholic Charities Hawaii 

Mohouli Heights Seniors Phase 2 ʏ ���XSLD CHSLRU UHSDDO ORHDDHG 
LS ALOR� MMH CHHRSG RI DMUHH UODSSHG UMDCHC� FRMRXOL AHLLMDC 
LHSLRUC� IMDCH � ZLOO CHUYH CHSLRUC HDUSLSL �� DR �� UHUHHSD RI 
3F₨ DSG DGGC DR DMH �� XSLDC LS IMDCH �� Developer - Hawaii Island 
Community Development Corporation 

Mohouli Heights Seniors Phase 3 ʏ ���XSLD CHSLRU UHSDDO ORHDDHG 
LS ALOR� MMH ODCD RI DMUHH UODSSHG UMDCHC� FRMRXOL AHLLMDC LHSLRUC 
IMDCH � ZLOO CHUYH CHSLRUC HDUSLSL �� DR �� UHUHHSD RI 3F₨� 
Developer - Hawaii Island Community Development Corporation 

Nohona Hale ʏ ��� CRDOOHU� H⁯HLHSD UHSDDOC DR CHUYH IDRLOLHC 
HDUSLSL �� DR �� UHUHHSD RI 3F₨ LS DDPDDPR� Developers – EAH Inc./ 
Bronx Pro 

Ohana Hale ʏ ����XSLD IRU�CDOH UUROHHD LS FH5XOO\� MMH UUROHHD 
HRSCLCDC RI �� CDXGLR� �� RSH�GHGURRR DSG �� DZR�GHGURRR XSLDC 
DDULHDHG DD GX\HUC HDUSLSL �� DR ��� UHUHHSD RI 3F₨� Developer - 
MJF Development Corporation 

Ola Ka `Ilima Artspace Lofts ʏ ���XSLD RL[HG XCH D₟RUGDGOH 
UHSDDOC DSG HRRRHUHLDO CUDHH IRU DUDC�RULHSDHG GXCLSHCCHC� 
NSLDC DUH DDULHDHG DR IDRLOLHC HDUSLSL �� DR �� UHUHHSD RI 3F₨� 
Developers - Artspace/Ford Foundation/EAH Inc. 

Pokai Bay Self Help ʏ AA865 UURYLGHG LSDHULR 6NK8 ORDSC� 
IRU UUHGHYHORURHSD DSG LSIUDCDUXHDXUH HRCDC IRU �� YDHDSD ORDC 
ORHDDHG RS DMH PDLDSDH 5RDCD RI HDMX� DevelRSer � Self HelS 
HRusiQg CRrSRratiRQ Rf Hawaii 

Queen Emma Tower ʏ ���XSLD DHVXLCLDLRS�UHMDGLOLDDDLRS RI DS 
DGDSGRSHG R⁯HH GXLOGLSL LS 6RZSDRZS ARSROXOX IRU IDRLOLHC 
HDUSLSL ����� UHUHHSD RI 3F₨� Developer - Ahe Group LLC 

The Central ʏ ����XSLD RL[HG XCH UHCLGHSDLDO UUROHHD LS 3OD FRDSD 
SHDU DMH A3KM 3OD FRDSD LDDDLRS� MMH 5HSDUDO LC D ���CDRU\ 
UHCLGHSDLDO DSG HRRRHUHLDO UUROHHD ZLDM DUUUR[LRDDHO\ ������ CV� 
ID� RI UHDDLO CUDHH� �� UHUHHSD RI DMH XSLDC (���) ZLOO GH D₟RUGDGOH 
ZLDM DMH UHRDLSLSL �� UHUHHSD DD RDUPHD UDDH� Developer - SamKoo 
Pacific� LLC 

Waikoloa Family ʏ ���� UHSDDO IRU IDRLOLHC HDUSLSL ����� UHUHHSD 
RI 3F₨� DevelRSer – WaikRlRa FaPily AffRrdable 

Wailuku Apartments ʏ ����XSLD IDRLO\ UHSDDO UUROHHD ZLDM 
����XSLDC CHUYLSL MRXCHMROGC HDUSLSL ������ UHUHHSD 3F₨ 
DevelRSer – Legacy Wailuku LLC 
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Pursuant to Section 201H-95(g), Hawaii Revised Statutes, Relating to Hula Mae Multifamily Revenue Bond Activity 
for Fiscal Year 2019. 

LHHDLRS ���A���(L)� ADZDLL KHYLCHG LDDDXDHC� UHVXLUHC DMH ADZDLL ARXCLSL 8LSDSHH DSG 6HYHORURHSD 5RUURUDDLRS (AA865) DR CXGRLD DS 
DSSXDO UHURUD DR DMH EHLLCODDXUH GHCHULGLSL DMH RXODLIDRLO\ UHYHSXH GRSG DHDLYLD\ XSGHU DMH ARXCLSL ERDS DSG FRUDLDLH IURLUDR� URUXODUO\ 
PSRZS DC DMH AXOD FDH FXODLIDRLO\ IURLUDR (AFF8)� LUHHLfiHDOO\� LD UHVXLUHC DSSXDO UHURUDLSL RI DMH IROORZLSL LSIRURDDLRS� 

���� MMH DRRXSD RI RXODLIDRLO\ UHYHSXH GRSG DXDMRULD\ XDLOLaHG DSG UHRDLSLSL GDODSHH-
���� 3 GHCHULUDLRS RI RXODLIDRLO\ UUROHHD DHDLYLD\ LSHOXGLSL GDDHC� UUROHHD SDRHC DSG GHCHULUDLRSC� DSG GRSG DRRXSDC 

IRU DMH IROORZLSL DHDLYLDLHC� � 
D� 3UUOLHDDLRS- 
G� 3UUURYDO RI LSGXHHRHSD UHCROXDLRS- 
H��� 3UUURYDO DR LCCXH GRSGC- DSG 
G� ₨CCXDSHH RI GRSGC- DSG 

���� 3 CXRRDU\ RI DMH DHDLYLD\ RI DMH IXSG G\ VXDUDHU� 

MMH UHVXLUHG LSIRURDDLRS� DC RI CXSH ��� ����� LC UURYLGHG GHORZ� 

Multifamily Revenue Bond Authority as of June 30, 2019 

MRDDO SXRGHU RI AFF8 4RSGC LCCXHG DR GDDH �� 
MRDDO DRRXSD RI AFF8 4RSGC LCCXHG DR GDDH $����������� 
AFF8 4RSGC DUUURYHG G\ AA865 4RDUG DSG UHSGLSL LCCXDSHH � 
MRDDO DRRXSD RI AFF8 4RSGC UHSGLSL LCCXDSHH $����������� 
MRDDO 4RSG 3XDMRULD\ $������������� 
GHD 4RSG 3XDMRULD\ DYDLODGOH $����������� 

Multifamily Project Activity During Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

IUROHHD 3UUOLHDDLRSC KHHHLYHG (��)� 

Project Name� Location Project Type Unit Count HMMF Request 
ADOH H' ADXROL HDMX 7OGHUO\  ��� $ ��������� 
��� 3OGHU LDUHHD HDMX 8DRLO\  ��� $ ���������� 
ADODZD OLHZ ₨₨ HDMX 8DRLO\  ��� $ ���������� 
ADODZD OLHZ ₨₨₨ HDMX 8DRLO\  ��� $ ���������� 
ADOH FDPDSD H FRLOLLOL HDMX 8DRLO\  ��� $ ���������� 
DDLDXOX H DDULRODSL ADZDLL 8DRLO\  �� $ ���������� 
DDLDXOX H DXUXRML FDXL 8DRLO\  �� $ ���������� 
DDUXSD HSH 3UDUDRHSDC HDMX 7OGHUO\  ��� $ ���������� 
DXUXSD ADOH HDMX 7OGHUO\  ��� $ ���������� 
67 MMRRUCRS OLOODLH HDMX 7OGHUO\  �� $ ��������� 
TOTAL� 1300 $293,158,505 

3UUURYDO RI ₨SGXHHRHSD KHCROXDLRSC (�)� 

Project� Location Project Type Unit Count HMMF approved 
JXHHS 7RRD MRZHU HDMX 8DRLO\  �� $ ���������� 
PDLPRORD 8DRLO\ 3₟RUGDGOH KHSDDO ADZDLL 8DRLO\ ��� $ ���������� 
DXOLD 2AR'RULOL HDMX 8DRLO\  ��� $ ���������� 
DRPXD HDMX 7OGHUO\  ��� $ ���������� 
ADOHZDL'ROX LHSLRU KHCLGHSHHC HDMX 7OGHUO\  ��� $ ���������� 
TOTAL�  681 $156,366,783 
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3UUURYDO DR ₨CCXH 4RSGC & ₨CCXDSHH RI 4RSGC (�)� 

Project Location Project Type Unit Count HMMF Issued 
DHDMXRRD IODHH IM� � HDMX 8DRLO\ �� $���������� 
DXODSD ADOH DD DDUROHL HDMX 8DRLO\ ��� $���������� 
DDLZDMLSH OLOODLH FDXL 8DRLO\ �� $���������� 
DDLZDMLSH OLOODLH IM� ₨₨ FDXL 8DRLO\ �� $���������� 
DXPXL MRZHU HDMX 8DRLO\ ��� $���������� 
DHSROLR 3UDUDRHSDC FDXL 8DRLO\ ��� $���������� 
DDMXOXL EDSL ₨ LU� 3₟RUGDGOH FDXL 7OGHUO\ �� $���������� 
FRMRXOL LU� GHLLMGRUMRRG IM� � ADZDLL 7OGHUO\ �� $���������� 
TOTAL 1088 $207,777,412 

Quarterly Summary of Fund Activity for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter 
Total Bond Authority $1,500,000,000 $1,500,000,000 $1,500,000,000 $1,500,000,000 
MRDDO 4RSGC ₨CCXHG DR 6DDH $ ����������� $ ����������� $ ����������� $ ����������� 
MRDDO 4RSGC IHSGLSL ₨CCXDSHH $ ����������� $ ����������� $ ����������� $ ����������� 
MRDDO NSHRRRLDDHG 4RSG 3XDMRULD\ $ ����������� $ ����������� $ ����������� $ ����������� 
MRDDO 3UUOLHDDLRSC NSGHU KHYLHZ $ ���������� $ ���������� $ ����������� $ ����������� 

Pursuant to Section 201H-202(f), Hawaii Revised Statutes, Relating to Rental Housing Revolving Fund Project Awards 
for Calendar Year 2019. 

LHHDLRS ���A����� ADZDLL KHYLCHG LDDDXDHC (AKL)� UHVXLUHC DMH ADZDLL ARXCLSL 8LSDSHH DSG 6HYHORURHSD 5RUURUDDLRS (AA865) DR "GHCHULGH 
DMH UUROHHDC IXSGHG DSG� ZLDM UHCUHHD DR UHSDDO MRXCLSL UUROHHDC DDULHDHG IRU UHUCRSC DSG IDRLOLHC ZLDM LSHRRHC DD RU GHORZ DMLUD\ UHU HHSD 
RI DMH RHGLDS IDRLO\ LSHRRH� LDC H₟RUDC DR GHYHORU DMRCH UHSDDO MRXCLSL UUROHHDC� D GHCHULUDLRS RI UURURCDOC CXGRLDDHG IRU DMLC DDULHD LURXU 
DSG DHDLRS DDPHS RS DMH UURURCDOC� DSG DS\ GDUULHUC DR GHYHORULSL MRXCLSL IRU DMLC DDULHD LURXU" (k���A����(I))� 3OO UUROHHDC UHHHLYLSL KAK8 
DZDUGC RXCD CHD DCLGH D RLSLRXR RI �% RI DRDDO XSLDC IRU MRXCHMROGC DD RU GHORZ ��% RI DMH RHGLDS IDRLO\ LSHRRH (F8₨)� DSG DMH UHRDLSLSL 
XSLDC MDYH LSHRRH UHCDULHDLRSC DMDD GR SRD H[HHHG ��% F8₨� 

6XULSL 5DOHSGDU RHDU ����� AA865 RDGH KAK8 DZDUGC DR DMH IROORZLSL UUROHHD DUUOLHDSDC� 

Project Location RHRF Request RHRF Award Unit Count 30% MFI UNITS 
DRPXD HDMX $ ���������� $ ����������  ��� �� 
ADOHZDL'ROX LU� KHCLGHSHHC HDMX $ ���������� $ ����������  ���  � 
ADOH NMLZDL GDOX IMDCH ₨₨ HDMX $ ��������� $ ���������  �� � 
OLOODLHC RI ED'L'RUXD ADZDLL $ ��������� $ ���������  ��  � 
DDMXOXL EDSL ₨₨ FDXL $ ���������� $ ����������  ��  � 
ADODZD OLHZ 3UDC� ₨₨ HDMX $ ���������� $ ����������  ���  � 
ADODZD OLHZ 3UDC� ₨₨₨ HDMX $ ���������� $ ����������  ���  � 
��� 3OGHU LDUHHD HDMX $ ���������� $ ����������  ��� �� 
ADOH FDPDSD H FRLOLLOL HDMX $ ���������� $ ����������  ���  � 
DDLDXOX H DDULRODSL ADZDLL $ ���������� $ ����������  ��  � 
DDLDXOX H DXUXRML FDXL $ ���������� $ ����������  ��  � 
TOTAL $212,544,681 $212,544,681 1,329 78 

6XULSL 5DOHSGDU RHDU ����� AA865 DOCR UHHHLYHG � UUROHHD DUUOLHDDLRSC DMDD GLG SRD UHHHLYH KAK8 DZDUGC� DC IROORZC� 
Project Location RHRF Request RHRF Award Unit Count 30% MFI UNITS 
FHMHXOD OLCDD ₨O HDMX $ ��������� GRSH  �� �
 
DXUXSD ADOH HDMX $���������� GRSH ��� �
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HOUSING LEGISLATION PASSED IN 2019 

Act 189, Session Laws of Hawaii (SLH) 2019 (House Bill 1312 H.D. 1, S.D. 1, C.D. 1) Relating to Housing.  MMLC 3HD RDPHC 9HS- 

HUDO HGOLLDDLRS 4RSG (9�H� 4RSG) DUUURUULDDLRSC IRU LSIXCLRS RI $���������� LSDR DMH KHSDDO ARXCLSL KHYROYLSL 8XSG LS 8LCHDO RHDU 

��������� DSG DSRDMHU $���������� LS 8R ���������� 

Act 5, SLH 2019 (House Bill 2, H.D. 1, S.D. 1, C.D. 1) Relating to the State Budget� AA865 UHHHLYHG RUHUDDLSL GXGLHD DGOXCD- 

RHSDC DMDD UHCXODHG LS DMH IROORZLSL IRU DMH fiCHDO GLHSSLXR ���������� 

‡ 	 8R���������� 

R $���������� (FHDSC RI 8LSDSHLSL (FH8)� KHYROYLSL IXSGC (P)) 

R $��������� (FH8� 8HGHUDO IXSGC (G)) 

R $��������� (FH8� HDMHU 8HGHUDO IXSGC (I)) 

‡ 	 8R���������� 

R $���������� (FH8� P) 

R $��������� (FH8� G) 

R $��������� (FH8� I) 

Act 40, SLH 2019 (House Bill 1259, S.D. 1, C.D. 1) Relating to Capital Improvement Projects� AA865 UHHHLYHG DMH IROORZLSL 

5DULDDO ₨RUURYHRHSD IUROHHD DUUURUULDDLRSC LS DMLC GLOO� 

‡ 	 6ZHOOLSL NSLD KHYROYLSL 8XSG ₨SIXCLRS� LDDDHZLGH� 

R 8R���������� $���������� (FH8� 9�H� 4RSGC (5)) � 

R 8R���������� $���������� (FH8� 5) � 

GRDH�  DMLC DUUURUULDDLRS LC CXGOHHD DR D UURYLCR DMDD AA865 CMDOO XCH XU DR $�������� RI DMH DUUURUULDDHG IXSGC LS 8R��������� 

IRU UHMDGLOLDDDLSL RU UHUODHLSL � CDUXHDXUHC RS D CLDH LS DDMXOXL� FDXL RZSHG G\ DMH 5RXSD\ RI FDXL DC D₟RUGDGOH UHSDDO MRXCLSL� 

Act 167, SLH 2019 (House Bill 820, H.D. 1, S.D. 1, C.D. 1) Relating to Housing.  MMLC GLOO UHVXLUHC AA865 DR CDXG\ D UODS DR LRUOH- 

RHSD DS 3EHA3 ARRHC IURLUDR DR UURYLGH ORZ�HRCD� MLLM�GHSCLD\ OHDCHMROG MRRHC IRU ADZDLL UHCLGHSDC RS CDDDH�RZSHG ODSGC 

ORHDDHG DORSL DMH UODSSHG UXGOLH DUDSCLD OLSH�  MMH CDXG\ LC DR DDPH UODHH RYHU DZR \HDUC� ZLDM DS LSDHULR DSG fiSDO EHLLCODDLYH UHURUD- 

LSL UHVXLUHRHSD� MMH GLOO DUUURUULDDHC $������� LS 9HSHUDO 8XSGC IRU DMH CDXG\� 

$`r 98, S/H ���9 (Hmsqb %fQQ ���, H.'. �, S.'. �, &.'. �) RbQ^rfQd rm $ffmpa^_Qb HmsqfQd.  Directs HHFDC to initiate negotiations 

RU H[HUHLCH LDC URZHU RI HRLSHSD GRRDLS DR DHVXLUH DMH OHDCHG IHH LSDHUHCD LS 8URSD LDUHHD 3UDUDRHSDC D₟RUGDGOH MRXCLSL UUROHHD 

RS FDXL� 6HOHDHC DMH DUUURUULDDLRS RDGH LS 3HD ���� LEA ���� DSG UHUODHHC LD ZLDM D SHZ DUUURUULDDLRS RI $���������� IURR DMH 

KHSDDO ARXCLSL KHYROYLSL 8XSG IRU DMH HRSCDUXHDLRS RI DHDZH LDUHHD 3UDUDRHSDC D₟RUGDGOH UHSDDO MRXCLSL UUROHHD RS FDXL� CXG- 

OHHD DR D UURYLCR DMDD DMH UUROHHD RXCD RGDDLS DOO SHHHCCDU\ HSDLDOHRHSDC GHIRUH 3UULO ����� 
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Report of Independent Auditors 

The Auditor 
State of Hawai‘i 

The Board of Directors 
State of Hawai‘i, Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Hawaii Housing Finance and 
Development Corporation (the “Corporation”), a component unit of the of the State of Hawai‘i, as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2019 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements as listed in the index. 

Management’s Responsibilit  for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibilit
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gqvgtpmgpv Cwdivipg Svapdatds, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 

Accuity LLP is c ogodgr f tjg in odcn ngtw ork f ckgr Tinny Intgrncti oncn Lioitgf, tjg ogodgrs f wjicj 
crg sg pcrctg cnf infg pgnfgnt ngicn gntitigs. 
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Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Corporation as of June 30, 2019, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the Corporation include only the governmental 
activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the Corporation, and are not intended to present fairly the financial position of the State of Hawai‘i as 
of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Our opinion 
is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Change in Accounting Principles 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, effective July 1, 2018, the Corporation adopted new 
accounting guidance under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 91, 
Cqpdwiv Fgdv Odligaviqps. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 
Rgsw itgd Swpplgmgpvaty Iphqtmaviqp 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 12 and budgetary comparison statements for the General 
Fund, HOME Investment Partnership Program, and Housing Trust Fund Program on pages 61 through 64 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Ovhgt Iphqtmaviqp 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements.  The combining non-major fund financial 
statements and reconciliation of cash and short-term investments are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  The schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required b  Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Upihqtm Cdm pisvtavivg Rgswitgmgpvs, Cqsv Ptipei plgs, apd 
Cwdiv Rgswi tgmgpvs hqt Fgdgtal Cwatds, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  As 
described in Note 1 to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, the accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards was prepared on the cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive 
basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The combining non-major fund financial statements, reconciliation of cash and short-term investments, 
and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived 
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
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accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, 
the combining non-major fund financial statements, reconciliation of cash and short-term investments, 
and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required b  Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Gqvgtpmgpv Cwdivipg Svapdatds, we have also issued our report dated December 13, 
2019 on our consideration of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and 
other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Gqvgtpmgpv Cwdivipg Svapdatds in considering 
the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Honolulu, Hawai‘i 
December 13, 2019 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Management’s Discussion and Anal sis (Unaudited) 
June 30, 2019 

The management of the State of Hawai‘i, Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(the “Corporation”) offers readers of the Corporation’s financial statements this narrative overview and 
analysis of its financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.  This document should be read 
in conjunction with the audited financial statements.  All amounts presented in tables, unless otherwise 
indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars. 

Introduction 

The Corporation was established by the State Legislature effective July 1, 2006 in accordance with 
Act 196, SLH 2005, as amended by Act 180, SLH 2006. 

The Corporation’s mission is to increase the supply of workforce and affordable homes by providing tools 
and resources to facilitate housing development.  Tools and resources include housing tax credits, low 
interest construction loans, equity gap loans, developable land, and expedited land use approvals. 

The Corporation is administratively attached to the State Department of Business, Economic 
Development and Tourism.  The Corporation’s Board of Directors consists of nine members, six of whom 
are public members appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the State Senate.  Public members 
are appointed from each of the counties of Honolulu, Hawai‘i, Maui and Kaua‘i.  At least four of the 
public members must have knowledge and expertise in public or private financing and development of 
affordable housing.  At least one public member represents community advocates for low-income housing 
affiliated with private nonprofit organi zations that serve the residents of low-income housing.  The Director 
of Business, Economic Development and Tourism; the Director of Finance; and a representative of the 
Governor’s Office are ex-officio voting members.  All Corporation action is taken by the affirmative vote 
of at least five members. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analy sis is intended to serve as an introduction to the financial statements of the 
Corporation for the period ended June 30, 2019.  The financial statements consist of the basic financial 
statements, related notes to the financial statements, and other required supplementary information.  
These components are described below: 

Basic Financial Statements 
The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the 
Corporation: 

� 	 The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide information about the 
Corporation’s overall financial position and results of operations.  These statements are presented 
on an accrual basis of accounting and consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement 
of Activities. 

� 	 The remaining statements are the fund financial statements of the Corporation’s governmental funds, 
for which activities are funded primarily from appropriations from the State, and the Corporation’s 
major and non-major proprietary funds, which operate similarly to business-type activities.  The 
governmental funds are presented on a modified accrual basis of accounting while the proprietary 
funds are presented on an accrual basis of accounting. 

4 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Management’s Discussion and Anal sis (Unaudited) 
June 30, 2019 

Government-wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements report information about the Corporation as a whole using 
accounting methods similar to those used by private sector companies.  The Statement of Net Position 
provides both short-term and long-term information about the Corporation’s financial position, which 
assists in assessing the Corporation’s economic condition at the end of the fiscal ear.  All of the current 
year revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities regardless of when cash 
is received or paid.  Most of the Corporation’s activities are business-type activities and are reported 
in its proprietary funds.  The government-wide financial statements include two statements: 

� The Svavgmgpv qh Ngv Pqsi viqp presents all of the Corporation’s assets and deferred outflows of 
resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as “net 
position.”  Over time, increases and decreases in the Corporation’s net position may serve as 
a useful indicator of the health of the financial position of the Corporation. 

 The Svavgmgpv qh Cevivivigs presents information indicating how the Corporation’s net position 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. 

The government-wide financial statements of the Corporation are divided into two categories: 

� Gqvgtpmgpval aevivivigs – The activities in this section are primarily supported by State or Federal 
appropriations or by Federal contributions. 

� 	 Dwsipgss/vypg aevivivigs – These functions normally are intended to recover all or a significant portion 
of their costs through user fees and charges to external users. 

Fund Financial Statements 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Corporation’s most significant 
funds and not the Corporation as a whole.  The financial activities of the Corporation are recorded in 
individual funds, each of which is deemed to be a separate accounting entity.  Funds are either reported 
as a major fund or a non-major fund.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) issued 
Statement No. 34, Dasie Fi papeial Svavgmgpvs – Oapaggmgpv’s Fisewssiqp apd Cpalysi s – hqt Svavg apd 
Nqeal Gqvgtpmgpvs, which sets forth the minimum criteria for the determination of major funds.  The 
non-major funds are combined in a single column in the fund financial statements and are detailed 
in the supplementary information. 

The Corporation has two types of funds: 

� Gqvgtpmgpval Fwpds 

 Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 

governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 


 Governmental funds financial statements help determine whether there are more or fewer 
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Corporation’s programs. 

 The focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements; therefore, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds 
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements.  By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the 
government’s near-term financing decision. 

 Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, 
expenditures and change in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

5 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Management’s Discussion and Anal sis (Unaudited) 
June 30, 2019 

 Ptqpti gvaty Fwpds – The Corporation’s only type of proprietary funds are its enterprise funds, which 
are used to account for those activities for which the intent of management is to recover, primarily 
through user charges, the cost of providing services to customers. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes 
to the financial statements follow the basic financial statements. 

Required Supplementar  Information Other Than Management’s Discussion and Analy sis 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents a section of 
required supplementary information (“RSI”) other than management’s discussion and analysis which 
contain budget-to-actual schedules for the Corporation’s General Fund, HOME Investment Partnership 
Program, and Housing Trust Fund Program, as well as accompanying notes, which are required for major 
governmental funds with legally adopted budgets. 

Supplementar  Information 
Following the RSI other than management’s discussion and analy sis section, supplementary information 
presents details on combining information and reconciliation of cash and short-term investments of the 
non-major Governmental and Proprietary funds, which are not required to be presented 

Supplementary information also includes the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (“SEFA”).  
The SEFA reports federal awards expended by the Corporation on the accrual basis of accounting 
for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Implementation of GASB Statement No. 91 
During fiscal year 2019, the Corporation implemented GASB Statement No. 91, Cqpdwiv Fgdv Odligaviqps. 
Statement No. 91 establishes that conduit debt obligations are not a liability of the issuer.  Accordingly, 
the adoption of Statement No. 91 resulted in the derecognition of all conduit debt and related accounts 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019.  The conduit debt and related accounts were previously 
recognized in the Multifamily Housing Revenue Bond Fund. 

Currently Known Facts, Decisions or Conditions 

In June 2018, the Corporation entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement to convey its leasehold 
interests in six of its affordable multifamily rental housing projects in the Hawaii Rental Housing System 
Revenue Bond Fund to an experienced, private-sector operator.  Such private-sector partnership is 
intended to preserve the long-term affordability of the projects while relieving the Corporation of the 
burden of active management.  The Corporation believes that the private sector can more efficiently 
operate the projects and undertake necessary capital-intensive improvements. 

In May 2019, the Corporation conveyed its leasehold interests on five of the six affordable multifamily 
rental housing projects.  The sixth affordable rental project under the Purchase and Sale Agreement is 
planned to be conveyed during fiscal year 2020. 

In June and October 2019, the Corporation entered into a Letter of Intent and Purchase and Sale 
Agreement, respectively, to acquire the leased-fee interest in land beneath the sixth affordable rental 
project.  The acquisition is planned to be completed in December 2019. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Management’s Discussion and Anal sis (Unaudited) 
June 30, 2019 

In May 2019, cash, cash equivalents, and investments held by the trustee and a portion of the proceeds 
of the convey ance transaction consummated in May 2019 were deposited into an irrevocable redemption 
fund for the in-substance defeasance of the entire outstanding bond payable balance under the Hawaii 
Rental Housing System Revenue Bond Fund effectuating the wind-up of the Hawaii Rental Housing 
System Revenue Bond Fund.  The remaining account balances were transferred to the Dwelling Unit 
Revolving Fund during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 

In October 2019, the Corporation acquired the leased-fee interest situated under the Front Street 
Apartments project on the island of Maui for $14,930,000, as directed by Act 98 of Session Laws of 
Hawaii 2019. 

Government-wide Financial Analy sis 

As noted earlier, the Statement of Net Position presents all of the Corporation’s assets and deferred 
outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as 
net position.  Over time, changes in net position may serve as a useful indicator of the Corporation’s 
financial statements.  As indicated below, as of June 30, 2019, the Corporation’s total net position was 
approximatel  $1,229,239,000, an increase of $160,832,000 (or 15.1%) from the previous year. 

Government-Wide Condensed Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

(in thousands of dollars) 

Governmental Business-T pe 
Activities Activities Total Percent 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 Change 

Current assets $ 32,979 $ 9,669 $ 610,802 $ 624,850 $ 643,781 $ 634,519 1.5% 
Restricted assets held b  trustee - - 57,248 132,238 57,248 132,238 -56.7% 
Capital assets - - 64,018 82,163 64,018 82,163 -22.1% 
Other assets 9,861 9,862 560,429 598,056 570,290 607,918 -6.2 

Total assets 42,840 19,531 1,292,497 1,437,307 1,335,337 1,456,838 -8.3 

Deferred outflows of resources - - 3,352 4,077 3,352 4,077 -17.8 

Total deferred outflows of resources - - 3,352 4,077 3,352 4,077 -17.8% 

Total assets and deferred
 outflows of resources $ 42,840 $ 19,531 $ 1,295,849 $ 1,441,384 $ 1,338,689 $  1,460,915 -8.4 

Current liabilities $ - $ 18 $ 6,834 $ 20,138 $ 6,834 $ 20,156 -66.1% 
Noncurrent liabilities - - 101,710 371,380 101,710 371,380 -72.6 

Total liabilities - 18 108,544 391,518 108,544 391,536 -72.3 

Deferred inflows of resources - - 906 972 906 972 -6.8% 

Total deferred inflows of resources - - 906 972 906 972 -6.8% 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets - - 63,904 51,088 63,904 51,088 25.1% 
Restricted 11,367 11,139 58,507 90,946 69,874 102,085 -31.6 
Unrestricted 31,473 8,374 1,063,988 906,860 1,095,461 915,234 19.7 

Total net position 42,840 19,513 1,186,399 1,048,894 1,229,239 1,068,407 15.1 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
 resources and net position $ 42,840 $ 19,531 $ 1,295,849 $ 1,441,384 $ 1,338,689 $  1,460,915 -8.4 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Management’s Discussion and Anal sis (Unaudited) 
June 30, 2019 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources decreased by approximately $122,216,000 (8.4%) during 
fiscal year 2019 primarily related to the decrease in restricted assets held by trustee by approximately 
$74,990,000 (56.7% ), decrease in capital assets by approximately $18,145,000 (22.1% ), and decrease 
in other assets by $37,628,000 (6.2%). 

� 	 Restricted assets held by trustee result from the trust indentures of the revenue bond funds requiring 
cash, cash equivalents, and investments to be held in trusteed capacity.  Cash and cash equivalents 
held by trustee decreased by approximately $42,752,000 primarily due to funding the in-substance 
bond defeasance of approximately $45,200,000 for which the funds remained in an irrevocable 
redemption fund through the bond redemption date.  Additionally, investments held by trustee 
decreased by approximately $32,237,000 primarily due to the derecognition of conduit bond activity 
of approximately $28,212,000 and repay ment of issued bonds of approximately $6,234,000 offset by 
increases in fair value of investments of approximately $1,177,000.  The Statement of Activities below 
presents information indicating how the Corporation’s net position changed during the most recent 
fiscal year. 

� 	 Capital assets are comprised of propert  and equipment reported net of depreciation.  Net capital 
assets decreased by approximately $18,145,000 due to the conveyance of leasehold interest in 
five affordable multifamily rental housing properties of approximately $14,716,000 and depreciation 
expense of approximately $3,421,000. 

� 	 Other assets are mainly comprised of the long-term portion of mortgage and construction loans 
receivable and balance due from other State departments.  The long-term portion of mortgage and 
construction loans receivable decreased by approximately $36,037,000 due to derecognition of 
conduit bonds of approximately $164,588,000 offset b  funding of additional loans of approximately 
$128,670,000.  Due from other State departments decreased by approximately $1,771,000 due to 
receipt of the scheduled pa ment. 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources decreased by $283,100,000 (72.1%) during fiscal year 
2019 primarily related to the decrease in current liabilities of $13,322,000 (66.1% ) and decrease in 
noncurrent liabilities of $269,670,000 (72.6%). 

� 	 Current liabilities are mainl  comprised of revenue bonds pa yable and accrued interest.  As a result of 
the derecognition of conduit bond activity, revenue bonds payable and accrued interest decreased by 
approximately $6,159,000 and $1,488,000, respectively.  As a result of the in-substance defeasance 
of revenue bonds, revenue bonds payable and accrued interest decreased by approximately 
$3,315,000 and $1,779,000, respectivel . 

� 	 Noncurrent liabilities are mainly comprised of revenue bonds pa yable balances due be yond one fiscal 
year. Revenue bonds pa yable decreased as a result of the derecognition of conduit bond activity, 
in-substance defeasance, and repayment of issued bonds by approximately $192,731,000, 
$70,273,000, and $6,063,000, respectively. 

Net investment in capital assets portion of net position consists of all capital assets, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.  Net investments in capital assets increased 
by approximately $12,816,000 (25.1%) primarily due to the redemption and defeasance of outstanding 
bonds of approximately $73,587,000 with restricted investments of approximatel  $42,299,000 and the 
conveyance of net capital assets of approximately $18,079,000. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Management’s Discussion and Anal sis (Unaudited) 
June 30, 2019 

Net position restrictions, which represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how funds 
may be used, primarily include the assets held by trustee and decreased by approximately $32,211,000 
(31.2% ) during fiscal year 2019. 

Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net 
investment” in capital assets. 

The Statement of Activities below presents information indicating how the Corporation’s net position 
changed during the most recent fiscal year: 

Government-Wide Statements of Activities 
Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 

(in thousands of dollars) 

Governmental Business-T pe 
Activities Activities Total Percent 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 Change 

Revenues 
Program revenues 

Charges for services $ - $ - $ 69,012 $ 77,036 $ 69,012 $ 77,036 -10.4% 
Operating grants and contributions 7,654 3,352 15,391 7,347 23,045 10,699 115.4 

General revenues 
State allotted appropriations, net of lapses 27,797 205,249 - - 27,797 205,249 -86.5 
Gain on sale of capital assets - - 84,779 - 84,779 - N/A 

Total revenues 35,451 208,601 169,182 84,383 204,633 292,984 -30.2 

Expenses 
Governmental activities 

Expenditures 7,434 2,946 - - 7,434 2,946 152.3 
Business-ty pe activities 

Rental assistance program - - 1,780 1,801 1,780 1,801 -1.2% 
Housing development program - - 10,173 12,814 10,173 12,814 -20.6 
Multi-famil  mortgage loan programs - - 1,072 8,369 1,072 8,369 -87.2 
Single-famil  mortgage loan program - - 129 3,206 129 3,206 -96.0 
Rental housing program - - 17,209 18,629 17,209 18,629 -7.6 
Others - - 6,004 2,197 6,004 2,197 173.3 

Total expenses 7,434 2,946 36,367 47,016 43,801 49,962 -12.3 

Net change before transfers and lapses 28,017 205,655 132,815 37,367 160,832 243,022 -33.8 

Transfers (4,690) (312,549) 4,690 312,549 - - 100.0 

Change in net position 23,327 (106,894) 137,505 349,916 160,832 243,022 -33.8 

Net position 
Beginning of ear 19,513 126,407 1,048,894 698,978 1,068,407 825,385 29.4 

End of ear $ 42,840 $ 19,513 $ 1,186,399 $ 1,048,894 $ 1,229,239 $ 1,068,407 15.1% 

Governmental Activities 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, governmental activities increased the Corporation’s net position 
by approximately $23,327,000 (119.5% ), primarily the result of the due from State for an allotment 
of $25,000,000 that was not received during fiscal year 2019.  The increase from fiscal 2018 of 
approximatel  $130,000,000 is due to the decrease in transfers of approximatel  $308,000,000 
net of a decrease in State allotted appropriations, net of lapses of approximately $177,000,000. 

Business-t pe Activities 

Revenues of the Corporation’s business-t ype activities were primarily from charges for services, program 
investment income, and federal assistance program funds.  Charges for services consist primarily of 
rental income and interest income of loans related to the Corporation’s lending programs. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Management’s Discussion and Anal sis (Unaudited) 
June 30, 2019 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, business-type activities increased the Corporation’s net position 
by approximately $137,505,000.  Revenues primarily consisted of approximatel  $38,000,000 in 
conveyance taxes, $21,267,000 in rental income, $8,394,000 in interest income on loans, $84,779,000 
in gain on sale of capital assets, and $11,976,000 in interest income, while approximately $37,401,000 in 
expenses primarily consisted of operating expenses for the Corporation’s various business-ty pe functions. 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Corporation, like other state and local governments, 
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 
As of June 30, 2019, the Corporation’s governmental funds reported total fund balance of approximately 
$42,840,000. 

The governmental funds consist of five major funds.  The major funds are the (1) General Fund, (2) 
HOME Investment Partnership Program, (3) Housing Trust Fund Program, (4) General Obligation Bond 
Fund, and (5) Tax Credit Assistance Program. 

� 	 The General Fund accounts for the State’s general fund revenues appropriated by the State 
Legislature to the Corporation and transfers for subsequent use by the Corporation’s other funds.  
The fund had a fund balance of approximately $500,000 as of June 30, 2019. 

� 	 The HOME Investment Partnership Program was established for the purpose of enhancing the State 
and local government’s ability to provide affordable housing for low- and very low-income families 
through funding strategies designed to increase the supply of decent affordable housing by offering 
financial and technical assistance to participating jurisdictions.  The fund had a fund balance of 
approximately $1,505,000 as of June 30, 2019. 

� 	 The Housing Trust Fund Program was established for the purpose of enhancing the State and local 
government’s ability to provide affordable housing for extremely low-income families through funding 
strategies designed to increase the supply of decent affordable housing by offering financial and 
technical assistance to participating jurisdictions.  The fund had a fund balance of approximatel 
($13,000) as of June 30, 2019. 

� 	 The General Obligation Bond Fund is used to transfer proceeds from the State’s issuance of general 
obligation bonds to the Corporation for subsequent use by the Corporation’s other funds.  The fund 
had a fund balance of approximately $30,986,000 as of June 30, 2019. 

� 	 The Tax Credit Assistance Program (“TCAP”) is used to account for all financial activities funded by 
the related federal grant.  Substantially all of the fund’s activities relate to providing funds directly to 
designated state housing credit agencies for award to affordable rental housing developments that 
have been allocated low income housing tax credits and are in need of additional gap equity funding.  
TCAP had a fund balance of approximately $9,862,000 as of June 30, 2019. 

Proprietar  Funds
As of June 30, 2019, the Corporation’s proprietar funds reported total net position of approximately 
$1,186,399,000. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Management’s Discussion and Anal sis (Unaudited) 
June 30, 2019 

The proprietary funds consist of five major and four non-major funds.  The major funds are the (1) Rental 
Housing Revolving Fund, (2) Dwelling Unit Revolving Fund, (3) Hawaii Rental Housing System Revenue 
Bond Fund, (4) Single Family Mortgage Purchase Revenue Bond Fund, and (5) the Grants in Aid Fund. 

� 	 The Rental Housing Revolving Fund provides developers of qualified rental housing projects with 
loans and/or grants for the development, predevelopment, construction, acquisition, preservation and 
rehabilitation of rental housing units.  The fund recogni zed increases in net position of approximately 
$48,627,000 and $318,892,000 in fiscal years 2019 and 2018, respectively.  The increase in net 
position in fiscal year 2019 was a result of conveyance tax collections of $38,000,000, loan interest 
income of $3,061,000, and investment interest income of $7,902,000, less operating expenses of 
approximately $540,000.  The primary year-over-year decrease was due to a decrease in the net 
transfers from the General Fund and General Obligation Bond Fund of approximately $276,600,000 
as there were no transfers-in during fiscal year 2019, offset by an increase in interest income and 
loan interest income by approximately $6,427,000 while operating revenues and expenses remained 
fairly consistent. 

� The Dwelling Unit Revolving Fund accounts for State funds used for acquiring, developing, selling, 
leasing and renting residential, commercial and industrial properties, providing mortgage and interim 
financing, rental income, sales proceeds, and interest earnings from the financing and investment 
of such funds.  The fund recognized increases in net position of approximately $72,526,000 and 
$30,914,000 in fiscal years 2019 and 2018, respectivel .  The increase in net position in fiscal year 
2019 was primarily the result of transfers-in of approximately $72,529,000.  The primary year-over- 
year increase was due to the increase of transfers-in of approximately $37,327,000, of which 
approximately $72,235,000 were from the closure of the Hawaii Rental Housing System Revenue 
Bond Fund.  In addition, the net loss decreased by approximately $4,285,000. 

� 	 The Hawaii Rental Housing System Revenue Bond Fund accounted for special funds for housing 
projects or sy stems of housing projects financed from proceeds of bonds secured under the same 
trust indenture.  The fund accounted for six affordable multifamily rental housing projects located 
throughout the State prior to the convey ance of five of the six affordable multifamily rental housing 
projects and the wind-up of the fund during fiscal year 2019.  The fund recogni zed a decrease in net 
position of approximately $4,357,000 in comparison to an increase in net position of approximately 
$2,960,000 in fiscal year 2018.  The decrease in net position in fiscal year 2019 was due to the wind- 
up of the fund following the conveyance of five of the six affordable multifamily rental housing projects 
and in-substance defeasance of the outstanding bonds.  The remaining assets, liabilities and fund 
balance were transferred to the Dwelling Unit Revolving Fund.  For the fiscal year 2019, the fund 
recogni zed operating income of approximately $2,417,000, gain on sale of capital assets of 
approximately $84,779,000, and transferred approximately $72,235,000 and $19,875,000 to 
the Dwelling Unit Revolving Fund and the Rental Assistance Revolving Fund, respectively. 

� 	 The Single Family Mortgage Purchase Revenue Bond Fund accounts for the proceeds from the 
issuance of bonds used to make below-market interest rate mortgage loans and the repayment, 
interest and earnings from such loans and investment of such funds.  The fund recogni zed an 
increase in net position of approximately $1,699,000 in fiscal year 2019 in comparison to a decrease 
in net position of approximately $1,139,000 in fiscal year 2018.  The changes in net position were 
primarily due to changes in the fair value of mortgage-backed securities in fiscal years 2019 and 
2018. 

� 	 The Grants In Aid Fund accounts for State funds used towards grants relating to housing as approved 
by the legislature and administered by the Corporation.  The Corporation makes payments to the 
grantees on a reimbursement basis.  The change in net position was $0 for fiscal years 2019 and 
2018. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Management’s Discussion and Anal sis (Unaudited) 
June 30, 2019 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 
As of June 30, 2019, the Corporation’s capital assets amounted to approximatel  $64,018,000 (net of 
accumulated depreciation of approximately $38,412,000), a decrease of approximately $18,145,000 
primarily due to the convey ance of leasehold interest in five affordable multifamily rental housing 
properties of approximatel  $14,716,000 and depreciation expense of approximately $3,421,000. 

Corporation’s Capital Assets
June 30, 2019 and 2018 

(in thousands of dollars) 

Governmental Business-T pe 
Activities Activities Total Percent 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 Change 

Land $ - $ - $ 49,895 $ 49,903 $ 49,895 $ 49,903 0.0% 
Buildings and improvements - - 51,900 157,022 51,900 157,022 -66.9% 
Equipment 166 198 635 2,623 801 2,821 -71.6 

Total 166 198 102,430 209,548 102,596 209,746 -51.1 

Accumulated depreciation (166) (198) (38,412) (127,385) (38,578) (127,583) -69.8% 

Total capital assets, net $ - $ - $ 64,018 $ 82,163 $ 64,018 $ 82,163 -22.1% 

Debt Administration 
Through June 30, 2019, approximately $3.1 billion of revenue bonds have been issued, of which 
approximatel  $900,000,000 represents conduit debt.  The revenue bonds are pa yable solely from the 
revenues and other monies and assets of the Revenue Bond Funds and other assets of the Corporation 
pledged under the various bond indentures.  Revenue bonds payable, net of premiums, decreased by 
approximatel  $278,710,000 to approximately $20,646,000 as of June 30, 2019. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the Corporation defeased all the bonds under the Hawaii 
Rental Housing System Revenue Bond Fund of approximately $70,035,000 and recognized a loss on 
defeasance of approximately $74,000.  The Corporation adopted GASB Statement No. 91 and therefore 
derecogni zed all conduit bonds payable under the Multifamily Housing Revenue Bond Fund.  As a result, 
the revenue bonds payable, net of premiums, balance of approximately $20,646,000 as of June 30, 2019 
was comprised solely of bonds payable under the Single Family Mortgage Purchase Revenue Bond 
Fund. Bond redemptions were approximately $6,234,000 for the Single Family Mortgage Purchase. 

As of June 30, 2019, the Corporation’s revenue bond programs consisted of Single Family Mortgage 
Purchase revenue bonds, the bond ratings for which were Standard & Poor’s Rating Services:  AA+; 
Moody’s Investor Service:  Aaa; and Fitch Ratings: AAA. 

Requests for Information 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the Corporation’s finances.  Questions concerning 
any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to 
the Chief Financial Officer, Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation, 677 Queen Street, 
Suite 300, Honolulu, Hawai‘i  96813. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019 

Governmental Business-T pe 
Activities Activities Total 

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Current assets 

Equity in cash and cash equivalents 
 and investments in State Treasur $ - $ 555,504,880 $ 555,504,880 
Cash in banks 591 4,101,236 4,101,827 
Receivables 

Mortgage loans - 546,394 546,394 
Notes and loans - 2,895,579 2,895,579 
Accrued interest - 42,873,819 42,873,819 
Tenant receivables, less allowance for
 doubtful accounts of $2,897,928 - 109,669 109,669 
Other receivables, less allowance for
 doubtful accounts of $135,591 3,849 2,211,214 2,215,063 

Total receivables 3,849 48,636,675 48,640,524 

Cash held by third parties 1,505,291 417,468 1,922,759 
Due from State 31,486,283 - 31,486,283 
Internal balances (17,165) 17,165 - 
Due from other State departments, net - 1,620,980 1,620,980 
Prepaid expenses and other assets - 18,673 18,673 
Deposits held in trust - 485,248 485,248 

Total current assets 32,978,849 610,802,325 643,781,174 

Restricted assets held by trustee under 
 revenue bond program 

Cash and cash equivalents - 11,800,872 11,800,872 
Investments - 45,447,575 45,447,575 

- 57,248,447 57,248,447 

Due from other State departments - 1,228,586 1,228,586 
Inventories – development in progress and dwelling units - 33,871,599 33,871,599 
Restricted deposits held in escrow - 1,259,037 1,259,037 
Investments - 850,577 850,577 
Mortgage loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $154,076 - 428,662,355 428,662,355 
Notes and loans 9,861,610 94,555,367 104,416,977 
Capital assets, net - 64,018,194 64,018,194 

Total assets 42,840,459 1,292,496,487 1,335,336,946 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred outflows on net pension liability - 2,257,052 2,257,052 
Deferred outflows on net OPEB liability - 1,095,304 1,095,304 

Total deferred outflows of resources - 3,352,356 3,352,356 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 42,840,459 $ 1,295,848,843 $ 1,338,689,302 

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019 

Governmental Business-T pe 
Activities Activities Total 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
 and Net Position 
Current liabilities 

Accounts pa able $ - $ 567,583 $ 567,583 
Accrued expenses 

Interest - 207,379 207,379 
Other - 1,172,004 1,172,004 

Security deposits - 2,782,458 2,782,458 
Note pa able - 14,286 14,286 
Unearned income - 384,615 384,615 
Revenue bonds pa able, net - 1,706,000 1,706,000 

Total current liabilities - 6,834,325 6,834,325 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Note pay able - 100,356 100,356 
Revenue bonds pa able, net - 18,939,807 18,939,807 
Estimated future costs of development - 38,982,282 38,982,282 
Unearned income - 21,456,344 21,456,344 
Unrealiz ed gain on sale of units and land - 1,776,258 1,776,258 
Net OPEB liability - 10,315,713 10,315,713 
Net pension liability - 10,139,024 10,139,024 

Total liabilities - 108,544,109 108,544,109 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Deferred inflows on net pension liability - 691,276 691,276 
Deferred inflows on net OPEB liability - 214,856 214,856 

Total deferred inflows of resources - 906,132 906,132 

Commitments and contingencies 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets - 63,903,552 63,903,552 
Restricted by legislation and contractual agreements 11,366,901 58,507,484 69,874,385 
Unrestricted 31,473,558 1,063,987,566 1,095,461,124 

Total net position 42,840,459 1,186,398,602 1,229,239,061 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
and net position $ 42,840,459 $ 1,295,848,843 $ 1,338,689,302 

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Functions/Programs 
Governmental activities 

Low-income housing service and assistance programs 

Total governmental activities 

$ 

Expenses 

7,434,130 

7,434,130 

Program Revenues 
Operating 

Charges for Grants and 
Services Contributions 

-$ 7,654,376$ 

- 7,654,376 

Business-ty pe activities 
Rental assistance program 
Housing development program 
Multifamily mortgage loan program 
Single family mortgage loan program 
Rental housing program 
Others 

Total business-ty pe activities 

Total $ 

1,780,478 
10,173,524 

1,071,629 
129,422 

17,208,859 
6,004,060 

36,367,972 

43,802,102 

29,437 301,372 
3,842,860 6,327,733 

42,442,453 7,902,399 
1,828,024 - 

19,482,507 699,724 
1,387,082 160,254 

69,012,363 15,391,482 

69,012,363$ 23,045,858$ 

General revenues and transfers 
State allotted appropriations, net of lapses of $3,253 
Net transfers 
Gain on sale of capital assets 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net position 

Net position 
Beginning of ear 

End of ear 

Net (Expense  Revenue and 

Changes in Net Position 


Governmental 
Activities 

$ 	 220,246 

220,246 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

- 

220,246 

27,796,747 
(4,689,654) 

- 

23,107,093 

23,327,339 

19,513,120 

$ 42,840,459 

Business-T pe 
Activities Total 

$ - 

- 

$ 220,246 

220,246 

(1,449,669) 
(2,931) 

49,273,223 
1,698,602 
2,973,372 

(4,456,724) 

48,035,873 

48,035,873 

(1,449,669) 
(2,931) 

49,273,223 
1,698,602 
2,973,372 

(4,456,724) 

48,035,873 

48,256,119 

- 
4,689,654 

84,779,486 

89,469,140 

137,505,013 

27,796,747 
- 

84,779,486 

112,576,233 

160,832,352 

1,048,893,589 

$ 1,186,398,602 

1,068,406,709 

$ 1,229,239,061 
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The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



 

 

 

                                                                      

             

 
                                                       

              
 

  

State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2019 

General HOME Housing 
Obligation Investment Trust Tax Credit Total 

General Bond Partnership Fund Assistance Governmental 
Fund Fund Program Program Program Funds 

Assets 
Cash in banks $ - $ - $ 91 $ 500 $ - $ 591 
Receivables 

Other receivables - - 1,946 1,903 - 3,849 

Total receivables - - 1,946 1,903 - 3,849 

Cash held by third parties - - 1,505,291 - - 1,505,291 
Notes and loans receivable - - - - 9,861,610 9,861,610 
Due from State 500,000 30,986,283 - - - 31,486,283 

Total assets $ 500,000 $ 30,986,283 $ 1,507,328 $ 2,403 $ 9,861,610 $ 42,857,624 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Liabilities 

Due to other funds $ - $ - $ 2,037 $ 15,128 $ - $ 17,165 

Total liabilities - - 2,037 15,128 - 17,165 

Fund balances 
Restricted - - 1,505,291 - 9,861,610 11,366,901 
Committed 500,000 30,986,283 - - - 31,486,283 
Unassigned - - - (12,725) - (12,725) 

Total fund balances 500,000 30,986,283 1,505,291 (12,725) 9,861,610 42,840,459 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 500,000 $ 30,986,283 $ 1,507,328 $ 2,403 $ 9,861,610 $ 42,857,624 

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019 

Total fund balances – governmental funds $ 42,840,459 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in
 the statement of net position are different because 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current
 financial resources and therefore not reported in the funds.  
 These assets consist of the following 

Equipment $ 166,292 
Accumulated depreciation (166,292) 

Capital assets, net - 

Net position of governmental activities $ 42,840,459 

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balances 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

General HOME Housing 
Obligation Investment Trust Tax Credit Total 

General Bond Partnership Fund Assistance Governmental 
Fund Fund Program Program Program Funds 

Revenues 
State allotted appropriations $ 300,000 $ 27,500,000 $ - $ - $ - $ 27,800,000 
Intergovernmental revenue - - 4,085,032 3,569,344 - 7,654,376 

Total revenue 300,000 27,500,000 4,085,032 3,569,344 - 35,454,376 

Expenditures 
Programs - - 3,701,635 3,442,003 - 7,143,638 
Personnel services - - 102,768 111,989 - 214,757 
Administration - - 30,966 23,269 - 54,235 
Professional services - - 21,500 - - 21,500 

Total expenditures - - 3,856,869 3,577,261 - 7,434,130 

Excess (deficienc ) of revenues
 over (under) over expenditures 300,000 27,500,000 228,163 (7,917) - 28,020,246 

Other financing uses 
Net transfers (310,300) (4,379,354) - - - (4,689,654) 

Excess (deficienc ) of revenues
 over (under) expenditures and
 other financing uses (10,300) 23,120,646 228,163 (7,917) - 23,330,592 

Lapsed appropriations (3,253) - - - - (3,253) 

Net change in fund balances (13,553) 23,120,646 228,163 (7,917) - 23,327,339 

Fund balances 
Beginning of ear 513,553 7,865,637 1,277,128 (4,808) 9,861,610 19,513,120 

End of ear $ 500,000 $ 30,986,283 $ 1,505,291 $ (12,725) $ 9,861,610 $ 42,840,459 

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,  
Expenditures and Change in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Net change in fund balances – total governmental funds $ 23,327,339 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in
 the statement of activities are different because 

Governmental funds report capital outlay s as expenditures.
 In the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
 allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported 
 as depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which 
 depreciation expense exceeded capital outlay s during the year. 

Depreciation expense $ - 

- 

Change in fund balances – governmental activities $ 23,327,339 

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019 

20
 

Single Family 
Rental Hawaii Mortgage 

Housing Dwelling Unit Rental Housing Purchase Other Total 
Revolving Revolving S stem Revenue Revenue Grants in Enterprise Enterprise 

Fund Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund Aid Fund Funds Funds 

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Current assets 

Equity in cash and cash equivalents and investments in State Treasur $ 362,907,065 $ 154,571,085 -$ $ - $ - 38,026,730$ 555,504,880$ 
Cash in banks - 4,091,236 - - - 10,000 4,101,236 
Receivables 

Mortgage loans 497,311 - - 49,083 - - 546,394 
Notes and loans - 2,895,579 - - - - 2,895,579 
Accrued interest 20,309,033 21,283,011 - 130,926 - 1,150,849 42,873,819 
Tenant receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,897,928 - 109,669 - - - - 109,669 
Other receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $135,591 - 2,068,385 - - - 142,829 2,211,214 

Total receivables 20,806,344 26,356,644 - 180,009 - 1,293,678 48,636,675 

Cash held by third parties - 417,468 - - - - 417,468 
Due from other funds - 688,017 - - - 4,175,132 4,863,149 
Due from other State departments - 1,700,000 - - - - 1,700,000 
Prepaid expenses and other assets - - - 2,685 - 15,988 18,673 
Deposits held in trust - 485,248 - - - - 485,248 

Total current assets 383,713,409 188,309,698 - 182,694 - 43,521,528 615,727,329 

Restricted assets held by trustee under revenue bond program 
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 11,800,872 - - 11,800,872 
Investments - - - 45,447,575 - - 45,447,575 

- - - 57,248,447 - - 57,248,447 

Due from other State departments - 1,228,586 - - - - 1,228,586 
Inventories – development in progress and dwelling units - 33,871,599 - - - - 33,871,599 
Restricted deposits held in escrow - 1,259,037 - - - - 1,259,037 
Investments - - - - - 850,577 850,577 
Mortgage loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $154,076 400,237,654 20,966,242 - 44,067 - 7,414,392 428,662,355 
Notes and loans - 94,555,367 - - - - 94,555,367 
Capital assets, net - 64,006,414 - - - 11,780 64,018,194 

Total assets 783,951,063 404,196,943 - 57,475,208 - 51,798,277 1,297,421,491 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred outflows on net pension liability 141,001 1,467,275 - 128,175 - 520,601 2,257,052 
Deferred outflows on net OPEB liability 64,514 718,847 - 53,013 - 258,930 1,095,304 

Total deferred outflows of resources 205,515 2,186,122 - 181,188 - 779,531 3,352,356 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 784,156,578 $ 406,383,065 -$ $ 57,656,396 $ - 52,577,808$ $ 1,300,773,847 

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019 

Single Family 
Rental Hawaii Mortgage 

Housing Dwelling Unit Rental Housing Purchase 
Revolving Revolving S stem Revenue Revenue 

 Fund Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position 
Current liabilities 

Accounts pay able $ - $ 372,341 $ - $ 8,250 
Accrued expenses 

Interest - - - 207,379 
Other 70,207 764,958 - 111,801 

Due to other funds 10,264 754,991 - 165,928 
Due to other State departments - 69,020 - - 
Security deposits - 768,589 - - 
Note pay able - 14,286 - - 
Unearned income - 384,615 - - 
Revenue bonds pay able - - - 1,706,000 

Total current liabilities 80,471 3,128,800 - 2,199,358 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Note pay able - 100,356 - - 
Revenue bonds pay able - - - 18,939,807 
Estimated future costs of development - 38,982,282 - - 
Unearned income - 21,456,344 - - 
Unrealiz ed gain on sale of units and land - 1,776,258 - - 
Net OPEB liability 597,416 6,741,013 - 533,124 
Net pension liability 589,445 6,625,669 - 517,882 

Total liabilities 1,267,332 78,810,722 - 22,190,171 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Deferred inflows on net pension liability 27,458 466,100 - 60,833 
Deferred inflows on net OPEB liability 12,640 140,966 - 10,449 

Total deferred inflows of resources 40,098 607,066 - 71,282 

Commitments and contingencies 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets - 63,891,772 - - 
Restricted by legislation and contractual agreements - 1,259,037 - 57,248,447 
Unrestricted 782,849,148 261,814,468 - (21,853,504) 

Total net position 782,849,148 326,965,277 - 35,394,943 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position $ 784,156,578 $ 406,383,065 $ - $ 57,656,396 

Grants in 
Aid Fund 

Other 
Enterprise 

Funds 

Total 
Enterprise

Funds 

$ - $ 186,992 567,583$ 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

- 
225,038 

3,914,801 
10,000 

2,013,869 
- 
- 
- 

207,379 
1,172,004 
4,845,984 

79,020 
2,782,458 

14,286 
384,615 

1,706,000 

- 6,350,700 11,759,329 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

2,444,160 
2,406,028 

100,356 
18,939,807 
38,982,282 
21,456,344 
1,776,258 

10,315,713 
10,139,024 

- 11,200,888 113,469,113 

- 
- 

136,885 
50,801 

691,276 
214,856 

- 187,686 906,132 

- 
- 
- 

11,780 
- 

41,177,454 

63,903,552 
58,507,484 

1,063,987,566 

- 41,189,234 1,186,398,602 

$ - $ 52,577,808 $ 1,300,773,847 
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The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Single Famil 
Rental Hawaii Mortgage 

Housing Dwelling Unit Rental Housing Purchase Other Total 
Revolving Revolving Sy stem Revenue Revenue Grants in Enterprise Enterprise 

Fund Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund Aid Fund Funds Funds 

Operating revenues 
Convey ance tax $ 38,000,000 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 38,000,000 
Rental - 2,576,985 18,689,955 - - - 21,266,940 
Interest on mortgages, notes, loans and mortgage-backed securities 3,061,059 3,461,758 - 1,828,024 - 43,595 8,394,436 
Sale of land and units, net - 378,713 - - - - 378,713 
Other 203,685 887,162 792,552 - - 2,550,633 4,434,032 

Total operating revenues 41,264,744 7,304,618 19,482,507 1,828,024 - 2,594,228 72,474,121 

Operating expenses 
Programs - 3,762,298 9,288,770 - 4,334,738 - 17,385,806 
Interest expense - - 3,347,887 643,182 - - 3,991,069 
Personnel services 423,323 4,014,873 513,925 346,139 - 1,568,297 6,866,557 
Depreciation - 93,068 3,363,885 - - - 3,456,953 
Administration 81,747 1,144,436 137,229 244,426 60,300 407,592 2,075,730 
Housing assistance pay ments - - - - - 1,588,547 1,588,547 
Professional services 33,964 326,572 44,707 57,649 - 139,896 602,788 
Capital expenses 939 67,420 180,519 2,179 - 4,229 255,286 
Insurance 39 10,176 139,755 117 - 183 150,270 
Provision for losses - 744,257 29,719 - - 24,362 798,338 
Other - 10,424 18,780 12,375 - 187,756 229,335 

Total operating expenses 540,012 10,173,524 17,065,176 1,306,067 4,395,038 3,920,862 37,400,679 

Operating income (loss) carried forward 40,724,732 (2,868,906) 2,417,331 521,957 (4,395,038) (1,326,634) 35,073,442 

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

23
 

 Hawaii 

Rental Housing 


Sy stem Revenue 

Bond Fund 


2,417,331 

699,724 
84,779,486 

- 
- 

(74,041) 
(36,042) 
(33,600) 

85,335,527 

87,752,858 

(92,109,629) 

(4,356,771) 

4,356,771 

$ - 

Single Famil
 
Mortgage 

Purchase 

Revenue 


Bond Fund 


521,957 

- 
- 

1,176,645 
- 
- 
- 
- 

1,176,645 

1,698,602 

- 

1,698,602 

33,696,341 

$ 35,394,943 

Grants in 
Aid Fund 

(4,395,038) 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

- 

(4,395,038) 

4,395,038 

- 

- 

$ - 

Other Total 

Enterprise Enterprise 


Funds Funds 


(1,326,634) 35,073,442 

508,278 11,976,376 
- 84,779,486 
- 1,176,645 

(46,652) (46,652) 
- (74,041) 
- (36,042) 

(255) (33,855) 

461,371 97,741,917 

(865,263) 132,815,359 

19,875,000 4,689,654 

19,009,737 137,505,013 

22,179,497 1,048,893,589 

$ 41,189,234 $ 1,186,398,602 

Operating income (loss) brought forward 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
Interest income 
Gain on sale of capital assets 
Net increase in fair value of mortgage-backed securities 
Net decrease in fair value of other investments 
Loss on defeasance of debt 
Amortiz ation of deferred loss on refunding 
Other expenses 

Total nonoperating revenues 

Income (loss) before transfers 

Net transfers 

Change in net position 

Net position 
Beginning of ear 

End of ear 

Rental

Housing 


Revolving 

Fund 


40,724,732 

7,902,399 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

7,902,399 

48,627,131 

- 

48,627,131 

734,222,017 

$ 782,849,148 

Dwelling Unit 

Revolving 


Fund 


(2,868,906) 

2,865,975 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

2,865,975 

(2,931) 

72,529,245 

72,526,314 

254,438,963 

$ 326,965,277 

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Rental Hawaii 
Housing Dwelling Unit Rental Housing 

Revolving Revolving Sy stem Revenue 
Fund Fund Bond Fund 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from tenants -$ 4,009,188 $ $ 17,759,496 
Cash received from borrowers 

Principal repay ments 11,956,882 6,878,359 - 
Interest income 640,845 4,835,087 - 

Cash received from sale of land - 3,077,991 - 
Cash received from convey ance taxes 38,000,000 - - 
Cash received for pay ments on mortgage-backed securities, net - - - 
Cash pay ments for issuance of loans receivable (120,000,997) (27,129,599) (223,851) 
Interest pay ments - - (3,515,803) 
Pay ments to employ ees (381,754) (3,457,441) (818,116) 
Pay ments to suppliers (106,425) (12,739,508) (9,103,052) 
Cash receipts from (pa ments to) other funds - 2,340,396 19,355 
Other cash receipts 203,687 3,209,125 1,015,429 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (69,687,762) (18,976,402) 5,133,458 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 
Principal paid on revenue bond maturities and redemptions - - - 
Transfers in (out) - 54,351,051 (55,052,047) 

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities - 54,351,051 (55,052,047) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Pay ments to defeasance revenue bonds - - (71,645,917) 
Principal paid on revenue bond maturities and redemptions - - (3,285,000) 
Principal paid on new mortgage loans - - (20,654,113) 
Purchases of capital assets - (43,682) - 
Sales of capital assets - - 99,495,000 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities - (43,682) 3,909,970 

Subtotal carried forward (69,687,762) 35,330,967 (46,008,619) 

Single Famil
 
Mortgage 

Purchase 

Revenue 


Bond Fund 


$ - 

85,625 
1,846,403 

- 
- 

5,201,633 
- 

(720,923) 
(310,684) 
(316,746) 

(4,801) 
- 

5,780,507 

(6,233,645) 
- 

(6,233,645) 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

- 

(453,138) 

Grants in 
Aid Fund 

$ - 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

(4,395,038) 
- 
- 

(4,395,038) 

- 
4,395,038 

4,395,038 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

- 

- 

Other Total 

Enterprise Enterprise 


Funds Funds 


$ 282,620 $ 22,051,304 

28,191 18,949,057 
87,833 7,410,168 

- 3,077,991 
- 38,000,000 
- 5,201,633 
- (147,354,447) 
- (4,236,726) 

(1,403,062) (6,371,057) 
(2,404,775) (29,065,544) 

(33,524) 2,321,426 
2,594,811 7,023,052 

(847,906) (82,993,143) 

- (6,233,645) 
19,875,000 23,569,042 

19,875,000 17,335,397 

- (71,645,917) 
- (3,285,000) 
- (20,654,113) 
- (43,682) 

15,753 99,510,753 

15,753 3,882,041 

19,042,847 (61,775,705) 
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The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

25
 

Single Famil 
Rental  Hawaii Mortgage 

Housing Dwelling Unit Rental Housing Purchase Other Total 
Revolving Revolving Sy stem Revenue Revenue Grants in Enterprise Enterprise 

Fund Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund Aid Fund Funds Funds 

Subtotal brought forward (69,687,762) 35,330,967 (46,008,619) (453,138) - 19,042,847 (61,775,705) 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest received 1,859,847 1,603,014 672,647 - - 193,488 4,328,996 

Net cash provided by investing activities 1,859,847 1,603,014 672,647 - - 193,488 4,328,996 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (67,827,915) 36,933,981 (45,335,972) (453,138) - 19,236,335 (57,446,709) 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Beginning of ear 430,734,980 123,890,093 45,335,972 12,254,010 - 18,800,395 631,015,450 

End of ear $ 362,907,065 $ 160,824,074 $ - $ 11,800,872 $ - $ 38,036,730 $ 573,568,741 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 
Equity in cash and cash equivalents and investments in State Treasury $ 362,907,065 $ 154,571,085 $ - $ - $ - $ 38,026,730 $ 555,504,880 
Cash in banks - 4,091,236 - - - 10,000 4,101,236 
Cash held by third parties - 417,468 - - - - 417,468 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents held by trustee - - - 11,800,872 - - 11,800,872 
Deposits held in trust - 485,248 - - - - 485,248 
Restricted deposits held in escrow - 1,259,037 - - - - 1,259,037 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 362,907,065 $ 160,824,074 $ - $ 11,800,872 $ - $ 38,036,730 $ 573,568,741 

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Single Family 
Rental Hawaii Mortgage 

Housing Dwelling Unit Rental Housing Purchase Other Total 
Revolving Revolving Sy stem Revenue Revenue Grants in Enterprise Enterprise 

Fund Fund Bond Fund Bond Fund Aid Fund Funds Funds 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
 provided by (used in) operating activities 

Operating income (loss) $ 40,724,732 $ (2,868,906) $ 2,417,331 $ 521,957 $ (4,395,038) $ (1,326,634) $ 35,073,442 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
 to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Depreciation - 93,068 3,363,885 - - - 3,456,953 
Provision for losses - 744,257 29,719 - - 24,362 798,338 
Rent subsidies applied to note pay able - (15,465) - - - - (15,465) 
Interest expense settled through reduction of rental subsidies - 1,318 - - - - 1,318 
Other income - - (33,600) - - - (33,600) 
Net pension expense 38,395 427,812 - 31,550 - 154,101 651,858 
Net OPEB benefit (234) (2,595) - (192) - (939) (3,960) 
Changes in assets and liabilities 

Mortgage loans receivable (108,044,115) (20,632,479) - 85,625 - 28,191 (128,562,778) 
Notes and loans receivable - 3,802,448 - - - - 3,802,448 
Accrued interest receivable (2,420,214) (2,048,474) - 18,379 - 44,238 (4,406,071) 
Tenant receivables - (31,180) 106,236 - - - 75,056 
Other receivables - (228,561) - - - 47,780 (180,781) 
Due to (from) other funds 10,264 668,644 19,355 (4,801) - (33,524) 659,938 
Due to other State departments - 1,671,752 - - - - 1,671,752 
Inventories – development in progress and dwelling units - 75,005 - - - - 75,005 
Prepaid expenses and other assets - - 37,020 - - 100,339 137,359 
Investments - - - 5,201,633 - - 5,201,633 
Accounts pay able - 243,847 672,328 - - (180,514) 735,661 
Accrued interest pay able - - (167,916) (77,741) - - (245,657) 
Other accrued expenses 3,410 132,214 (304,191) 4,097 - 12,074 (152,396) 
Security deposits - 655,074 (1,006,709) - - 282,620 (69,015) 
Unearned income - 839,977 - - - - 839,977 
Unreali ed gain on sale of units and land - (20,722) - - - - (20,722) 
Estimated future costs of development - (2,483,436) - - - - (2,483,436) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (69,687,762) $ (18,976,402) $ 5,133,458 $ 5,780,507 $ (4,395,038) $ (847,906) $ (82,993,143) 

Supplemental information 
Non-cash capital and related financing activities 

Principal pay ments on note pay able
 settled through reduction of rental subsidies $ - $ 14,147 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 14,147 

The accompan ying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

1. Organi zation and Summar  of Significant Accounting Policies 

Financial Reporting Entity 
Chapter 201E, Hawaii Revised Statutes and Act 337, Session Laws of Hawaii (“SLH”) 1987, 
created the Housing Finance and Development Corporation (“HFDC”).  The HFDC was created 
to perform housing finance, housing development, and residential leasehold functions.  The 
Hawaii Housing Authority, State of Hawai‘i (“Authority”) was organi zed pursuant to the provisions 
of Chapter 356, Hawaii Revised Statutes.  The Authority was created to provide safe and sanitary 
dwelling accommodations for low and moderate-income residents of Hawai‘i. 

In accordance with Act 350, SLH 1997, effective July 1, 1998, the functions and employees of 
HFDC as well as those of the Authority and the Rental Housing Trust Fund Commission, were 
transferred to the newly created Housing and Community Development Corporation of Hawaii 
(“HCDCH”). The purpose of Act 350, SLH 1997, was to consolidate all state housing functions 
previously administered by the Authority, HFDC and the Rental Housing Trust Fund Commission.  
HCDCH was a public body , both corporate and politic, and was for administrative purposes 
considered to be a part of the State Department of Business, Economic Development and 
Tourism.  In accordance with Act 92, SLH 2003, effective July 1, 2003, the functions and 
employees of HCDCH were transferred to the State Department of Human Services for 
administrative purposes. 

In accordance with Act 196, SLH 2005, as amended by Act 180, SLH 2006, HCDCH was split 
into two organizations to more effectively concentrate on the development of affordable housing.  
Effective July 1, 2006, HCDCH was bifurcated into (1) the Hawaii Public Housing Authority 
(“HPHA”) and (2) the Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation (the “Corporation”). 

For financial reporting purposes, the Corporation includes all funds that are controlled by 
or dependent on the Corporation’s Board of Directors.  Control by or dependence on the 
Corporation was determined on the basis of statutory authority and monies flowing through 
the Corporation to each fund. 

The financial statements of the Corporation include only the governmental activities, business- 
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Corporation, 
and are not intended to present fairly the financial position of the State of Hawai‘i (the “State”) 
as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the year 
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  The State Comptroller maintains the central accounts for all State funds and publishes 
financial statements for the State annuall , which include the Corporation’s financial activities. 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements, the statement of net position, and the statement of 
activities report information on the activities of the Corporation.  Governmental activities, which 
normally are supported by State allotments and intergovernmental revenues, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges 
for support. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific function.  Program revenues include charges to customers who purchase, use 
or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given function.  Program revenues 
also include grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function.  State allotments and other items not included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.  Resources that are dedicated 
internally are reported as general revenues rather than program revenues.  The Corporation 
employ s an indirect cost allocation system.  The Corporation provides certain administrative 
services to its various funds.  The cost of these services is allocated to the funds based on 
estimates of benefits provided to the funds. 

Net position is restricted when constraints placed on it are either externally imposed or imposed 
by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  Internally imposed designations of resources 
are not presented as restrictions of net position.  When both restricted and unrestricted resources 
are available for use, generally it is the Corporation’s policy to use restricted resources first, 
then unrestricted resources as they are needed.  Additionally, the Corporation would first use 
restricted, committed, then assigned, and lastly, unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund 
balance when expenditures are made. 

The fund financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds.  Major 
individual governmental fund and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements.  Non-major funds are summari ed into a single column. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Govetpoept-Wife Fipa peial Stateoeptu 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related 
cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Govetpoeptal Fupf Fipapeial Stateoeptu 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized 
as soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available 
when they are collectable within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities for 
the current period.  For this purpose, the Corporation considers revenues to be available if they 
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal year.  In applying the susceptible 
to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the provider should recogni ze liabilities 
and expenses and the recipient should recogni ze receivables and revenues when applicable 
requirements, including timing requirements, are met. 

Principal revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include federal grants and interest 
on investments.  Some revenue items that are considered measurable and available to finance 
operations during the year from an accounting perspective are not available for expenditure due 
to the State’s present appropriation sy stem.  These revenues have been accrued in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) since they have been earned and are 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

expected to be collected within 60 days of the end of the period.  Other revenues are considered 
to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the Corporation. 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred. 

Ptoptieta ty Fupfu
The financial statements of proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, similar to the government-wide 
financial statements described above. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services or goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  Revenues and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.  The principal 
operating revenues of the Corporation’s enterprise funds are conveyance tax revenues, rental 
income, and interest income earned on mortgages, notes, loans and mortgage-backed securities.  
Interest income from investments in State Treasury is reported as nonoperating income. 

Fund Accounting
The financial activities of the Corporation are recorded in individual funds, each of which is 
deemed to be a separate accounting entity.  The Corporation uses fund accounting to report 
on its financial position and results of operations.  Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate 
legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain 
government functions or activities.  A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing 
set of accounts. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 34, Dasie Fipapeial 
Svavgmgpvs – apd Oapaggmgpv’s Fisewssi qp apd Cpalysis – hqt Svavg apd Nqeal Gqvgtpmgpvs, 
sets forth minimum criteria for the determination of major funds.  The non-major funds are 
combined in a single column in the fund financial statements and detailed in the combining 
section. 

Govetpoeptal Fupfu 

� 	 General Fund – The General Fund accounts for all financial resources of the State’s 
general fund revenues appropriated by the State Legislature to the Corporation, except 
those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

� 	 HOME Investment Partnership Program – The HOME Investment Partnership Program 
is used to account for all financial activities that are funded by the related federal grants.  
Substantially all of the fund’s activity relates to providing affordable housing to residents 
of the State of Hawai‘i. 

� 	 Housing Trust Fund Program– The Housing Trust Fund Program is used to account 
for all financial activities funded by the related federal grant.  Substantially all of the fund’s 
activity is related to providing affordable housing, with primary attention to rental housing 
for extremely low-income households. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

� 	 General Obligation Bond Fund – The General Obligation Bond Fund is used to account 
for the transfers of the proceeds of the State’s general obligation bonds allotted to the 
Corporation for subsequent use by the Corporation’s other funds. 

� 	 Tax Credit Assistance Program – The Tax Credit Assistance Program (“TCAP”) is used to 
account for all financial activities funded by the related federal grant.  Substantially all of the 
fund’s activities relate to providing funds directly to designated state housing credit agencies 
for award to affordable rental housing developments that have been allocated low-income 
housing tax credits and are in need of additional gap equity funding. 

Ptoptieta ty Fupfu 

� 	 Enterprise Funds – These funds account for those activities for which the intent of 
management is to recover, primarily through user charges, the cost of providing goods 
or services to customers, or where sound financial management dictates that periodic 
determinations of results of operations are appropriate.  Enterprise Funds include the 
Rental Housing Revolving Fund, Dwelling Unit Revolving Fund, revenue bond funds, 
and other funds. 

Under the revenue bond funds, proceeds from bond issues are used to make below-market 
interest rate mortgage loans to persons and families of low to moderate income for the 
purchase of owner-occupied single-famil and condominium dwellings, provide interim 
construction loans and permanent financing of affordable rental housing projects, and 
to finance affordable multifamily rental housing projects.  These funds include the Hawaii 
Rental Housing System Revenue Bond Fund and Single Family Mortgage Purchase 
Revenue Bond Fund.  The other funds include the Rental Assistance Revolving Fund, 
Housing Finance Revolving Fund, Disbursing Fund, Multifamily Housing Revenue Bond 
Fund, and Grants in Aid Fund. 

The Corporation reports the following as major proprietary funds: 

o� 	 Rental Housing Revolving Fund provides developers of qualified rental housing 
projects with loans and/or grants for the development, predevelopment, construction, 
acquisition, preservation and rehabilitation of rental housing units. 

o� 	 Dwelling Unit Revolving Fund accounts for State funds used for acquiring, developing, 
selling, leasing and renting residential, commercial and industrial properties, providing 
mortgage and interim financing, rental income, sales proceeds, and interest earnings 
from the financing and investment of such funds. 

o� 	 Single Family Mortgage Purchase Revenue Bond Fund accounts for the proceeds 
from the issuance of bonds used to make below-market interest rate mortgage loans 
and the repay ment of such loans, and investment income earned. 

o� 	 Grants in Aid Fund accounts for State funds designated by the Hawaii State Legislature 
for capital improvement projects or operating funds to support programs of qualified 
nonprofit and other organizations.  The Legislature designates which executive 
department agency will administer and oversee the expenditures for grants. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

o� 	 Hawaii Rental Housing System Revenue Bond Fund accounted for housing projects 
or sy stems of housing projects financed from the proceeds of bonds secured under the 
same trust indenture.  The fund accounted for six affordable multifamily rental housing 
projects located throughout the State of Hawai‘i.  The fund was closed upon the 
defeasance of the fund’s revenue bonds issues in conjunction with the sale of five 
of the fund’s affordable multifamily rental housing projects in fiscal year 2019. 

In May 2019, the Corporation completed the sale of five of six properties in the Hawaii Rental 
Housing System’s Revenue Bond Fund’s rental housing portfolio.  The sale of the sixth property 
is expected to close in the year ending June 30, 2020. 

Equit  in Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments in State Treasury
The State Director of Finance is responsible for the safekeeping of cash and investments in the 
State Treasury in accordance with State laws.  The Director of Finance may invest any monies 
of the State, which in the Director’s judgment, are in excess of the amounts necessary for 
meeting the immediate requirements of the State.  Cash is pooled with funds from other State 
agencies and departments and deposited into approved financial institutions or in the State 
Treasury Investment Pool System.  Funds in the investment pool accrue interest based on 
the average weighted cash balances of each account. 

The State requires that depository banks pledge, as collateral, government securities held in the 
name of the State for deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance. 

GAAP requires disclosures over common deposit and investment risks related to credit risk, 
interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk.  Investments can be categori ed by type, maturity 
and custodian to determine the level of interest rate, credit and custodial risk assumed by the 
Corporation.  However, as these funds are held in the State cash pool, the Corporation does not 
manage these investments and the types of investments, and related interest rate, credit and 
custodial risks are not determinable at the Corporation’s level.  The risk disclosures and fair 
value leveling table of the State’s cash pool are included in the State’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (“CAFR”) which may be obtained from the Department of Accounting and 
General Services’ (“DAGS”) website:  hvvps://ags0h awaii0gqv/dlqg/eavggqty/ma ip/0 

Cash and short-term investments held outside of the State Treasury are primarily held in a 
financial institution outside of the State of Hawai‘i.  The Corporation considers all cash and 
investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows include all cash and 
highly liquid investments with original purchased maturities of three months or less.  Cash and 
cash equivalents also include the Corporation’s equity in cash and cash equivalents and 
investments held in the State Treasury. 

The State’s investments are reported at fair value within the fair value hierarchy established b 
GAAP. Investments in mutual funds are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices.  
Investments in U.S. government obligations are reported at fair value based on quoted prices 
or other observable inputs, including pricing matrices. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

Investments 
Investments in U.S. government securities with maturities of one year or less when purchased 
are stated at cost, which approximate fair value.  Certificates of deposits are stated at amortized 
cost.  All other investments are reported at fair value as described below. 

Fair Value Measurements 
For financial assets reported at fair value, the Corporation defines fair value as the price 
that would be received to sell an asset in the principal or most advantageous market in an 
orderly transaction between market participants.  The Corporation measures fair value using 
assumptions developed based on market data obtained from independent external sources and 
the reporting entity’s own assumptions.  The hierarchy is broken down into levels based on the 
reliability of the inputs as follows: 

� 	 Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

� 	 Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1 that are observable 
for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

� 	 Level 3 – Unobservable inputs for an asset or liability reflecting the reporting entity’s 
own assumptions.  Level 3 inputs are used to measure fair value to the extent that 
observable Level 1 or 2 inputs are not available. 

Inventories 
Inventories consist of developments in progress and units available for sale.  Developments in 
progress include construction in progress and land held for future development related to the 
remaining portions of three master planned communit  projects – Kapolei (Oahu), Kamakana 
Villages of Keahuolu (West Hawai‘i), and Leiali‘i (Maui).  Costs included in developments in 
progress relate to the infrastructure construction for these master planned communities.  Units 
available for sale include constructed units, developed lots, and repurchased units available for 
sale. 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or estimated net reali able value.  All estimated 
development, holding and disposition costs to the anticipated date of disposition are considered 
in the determination of estimated net realizable value.  Estimated net reali able value represents 
management’s estimates, based on management’s plans and intentions, of sales price less 
development, holding and disposition costs, assuming that the development and disposition 
occurs in the normal course of business.  Write-downs for estimated losses on inventories are 
recorded to the extent total estimated costs exceed total estimated revenues for a project. 

The recognition of gain from the sale of units is dependent on a number of factors relating to the 
nature of the property sold, the terms of the sale, and the future involvement of the Corporation 
in the propert  sold. If a real estate transaction does not meet established financial criteria, profit 
recognition is deferred and recogni zed under the installment or cost recovery method until such 
time as the criteria are met. 

Receivables 
Receivable balances are composed of mortgage loans receivable and tenant receivables from 
the various projects and funds within the Corporation.  Mortgage loans receivable are primarily 
second mortgages from nonprofit organi zations and for-profit developers for the development, 
pre-development, construction, acquisition, preservation and substantial rehabilitation of rental 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

housing units.  Receivable amounts from tenants are related to rental arrangements.  Allowance 
for doubtful accounts on receivables are typically established for an  accounts over 90 days 
outstanding.  For the year ended June 30, 2019, there were allowances for mortgage loan 
receivables and tenant receivables of $136,000 and $2,898,000, respectively. 

Interfund Receivables and Pa ables
During the course of operations, transactions occur between funds that may result in amounts 
owed between funds.  Those related to transactions for goods and services are classified as 
“due to and from other funds.”  See Note 17 for details of interfund transactions, including 
receivables and payables at fiscal year-end. 

Capital Assets 
Capital assets, which include property and equipment, are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-t ype activities in the government-wide financial statements and 
proprietary funds financial statements.  The capitali zation thresholds are $5,000 for equipment, 
and $100,000 for land improvements, building, and building improvements. 

Purchased and constructed capital assets are valued at cost.  Donated assets are recorded 
at their fair value at the date of donation. 

Depreciation expense is recorded in the government-wide and proprietary funds financial 
statements utilizing the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives.  No 
depreciation is recorded for land and land improvements.  Generall y, the useful lives are 
as follows: 

Gover
Act

nmental 
ivities 

Proprietar 
Funds and 

Business-T pe 
Activities 

Building and building improvements 
Equipment 

25 y
7 y

ears 
ears 

10‒40 years 
5‒10 years 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Deferred outflows (inflows) of resources represent a consumption of (benefit to) net position that 
apply to a future period.  The Corporation defers recognition of the loss on debt refunding related 
to issuance of its revenue bonds and amortizes these costs over the life of the bonds using the 
effective interest rate method. 

The deferred outflow of resources related to pensions and other postemployment benefits 
(“OPEB”) resulted from differences between expected and actual experiences which will be 
amorti zed over five years and the Corporation’s contributions to the pension and OPEB plans 
subsequent to the measurement date of the actuarial valuations for the pension and OPEB plans 
which will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension and OPEB liability in the subsequent 
fiscal year. The deferred inflow of resources related to pensions and OPEB resulted from 
differences between expected and actual experiences and changes in proportion to the pension 
and OPEB plans which will be amorti zed over five years. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

Unearned Revenues 
Unearned revenues at the fund level and government-wide level arise when the Corporation 
receives resources before it has a legal claim to them.  In subsequent periods, when the revenue 
recognition criteria are met or when the Corporation has a legal claim to the resources, the 
liability for unearned revenue is removed from the statement of net position and revenue is 
recognized. 

Accrued Vacation 
Vacation leave accumulates at a rate of one and three-quarters working day for each month of 
service.  Accumulation of such vacation credits is limited to 720 hours at calendar year end and 
is convertible to pay upon termination of employ ment.  Liabilities for accumulated unpaid vacation 
are accrued at the end of each accounting period utili zing current salary rates.  Such vacation 
credits are recorded as other accrued expenses in the government-wide and the proprietar 
funds financial statements at the balance sheet date.  Accumulated unpaid vacation estimated 
to be used or paid during the next year is approximately $225,000.  Accrued vacation, which is 
included in other accrued expenses in the statement of net position, changed during fiscal year 
2019 as follows: 

Balance at Jul  1, 2018 

Additions 
Reductions 

Balance at June 30, 2019 

$ 

$ 

664,000 

381,000 
(355,000) 

690,000 

Accumulated Sick Leave Pa 
Sick leave accumulates at the rate of one and three-quarters working days for each month of 
service without limitation.  Generally, sick leave may be taken only in the event of illness and is 
not convertible to pay upon termination of employment.  However, a State employee who retires 
or leaves government service in good standing with 60 days or more of unused sick leave is 
entitled to additional service credit in the Employ ees’ Retirement S stem of the State of Hawai‘i 
(“ERS”).  Accumulated unpaid sick leave at June 30, 2019 amounted to approximately 
$2,637,000. 

Postemplo ment Benefits Other than Pensions
The actuarial valuation of the Hawaii Employer-Union Health Benefits Trust Fund (“EUTF”) 
does not provide OPEB information by department or agency.  Accordingly, the State’s polic 
on the accounting and reporting for OPEB is to allocate a portion of the State’s net OPEB liability, 
and any adjustment to the net OPEB liability, to component units and proprietary funds that are 
reported separately in stand-alone departmental financial statements or in the State’s CAFR.  
The State allocates annual OPEB expense to component units and proprietary funds based on 
their proportionate percentage of the State’s total contribution to the EUTF plan. 

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liabilit y, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the EUTF, and additions to/deductions from the EUTF’s fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the EUTF.  For this purpose, 
benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  
Investments are reported at their fair value. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

Pension Benefits 
The actuarial valuation of the ERS does not provide pension benefits information by department 
or agency.  Accordingly, the State’s policy on the accounting and reporting for pension benefits 
is to allocate a portion of the State’s net pension liability, and any adjustment to the net pension 
liability, to component units and proprietary funds that are reported separately in stand-alone 
departmental financial statements or in the State’s CAFR.  The State allocates annual pension 
expense to component units and proprietary funds based on their proportionate percentage of 
the State’s total covered pa roll. 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liabilit y, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the ERS, and additions to/deductions from the ERS’s fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the ERS.  For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable 
in accordance with benefit terms.  Investments are reported at their fair value. 

Risk Management 
Liabilities related to certain types of losses (including torts, theft of, damage to, or destruction 
of assets, errors or omissions, natural disasters, and injuries to employees) are reported when 
it is probable that the losses have occurred and the amount of those losses can be reasonabl 
estimated. 

Governmental Fund Balances 
The Corporation accounts for governmental fund balances through a hierarchical fund balance 
classification structure based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to follow 
constraints on how resources can be spent.  Classifications include: 

� 	 Restricted ‒ Balances that are restricted for specific purposes b  external parties such as 
creditors, grantors or other governments. 

� 	 Committed ‒ Balances that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints 
imposed by formal action of the State legislature and the Corporation’s Board of Directors. 

� 	 Assigned ‒ Balances that are constrained by management to be used for specific purposes, 
but are neither restricted nor committed. 

� 	 Unassigned ‒ Residual balances that are not contained in the other classifications. 

The fund balance of the TCAP was restricted for use in the construction of qualified low-income 
buildings for which a housing credit agency has made an allocation of low-income housing credits 
under Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

The fund balance of the General Obligation Bond Fund was committed to purchase land for 
or finance the development or rehabilitation of affordable housing. 

The fund balance of the HOME Investment Partnership Program was restricted to provide 
affordable housing to residents of the State of Hawai‘i. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

Use of Estimates 
In preparing financial statements in conformity with GAAP, management is required to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and 
accompanying notes.  Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

New Accounting Pronouncements
The GASB issued Statement No. 87, Ngasgs. The objective of this Statement is to better 
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial 
reporting for leases by governments.  The Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets 
and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as 
inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.  
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2019.  The Corporation has not yet determined the effect this Statement 
will have on its financial statements. 

The GASB issued Statement No. 88, Cgtvaip Fiselqswtgs Rglavgd vq Fgdv, ipelwdipg Fi tgev 
Dqttqwi pg apd Fitgev Plaegmgpvs. The objective of this Statement is to include additional 
information related to debt in the notes to financial statements, including unused lines of credit, 
assets pledged as collateral for debt, and terms specified in debt agreements related to 
significant events of default with finance-related consequences and significant subjective 
acceleration clauses.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2018. The Corporation included the additional information required by 
this statement in the notes to the financial statements. 

The GASB issued Statement No. 89, Ceeqwpvipg hqt Ipvgtgsv Cqsv Ipewttgd dghqtg vhg Gpd qh a 
Cqpsvtweviqp Pgtiqd. This Statement replaces Paragraphs 5-22 of Statement No. 62, Cqdihieaviqp 
qh Ceeqwpvipg apd Fipapei al Rgpqtvipg Gwidapeg Cqpvaipgd ip Ptg/Nqvgmdgt 30, 1989 FCSD 
apd CICPC Ptqpqwpegmgpvs. This Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end 
of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred 
for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus.  The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2019. The Corporation has not yet determined the effect this Statement will have on its financial 
statements. 

The GASB issued Statement No. 91, Cqpdwiv Fgdv Odligaviqps. The primary objectives of this 
Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and 
eliminate diversity in practice associated with commitments extended by issuers, arrangements 
associated with conduit debt obligations, and related note disclosures.  The requirements of 
this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020.  The 
Corporation implemented this Statement during fiscal year 2019, and accordingly derecognized 
all conduit debt obligations and related accounts in the Multifamily Housing Revenue Bond Fund.  
Accordingly, this fund is classified as a non-major enterprise fund.  At June 30, 2019, the time of 
adoption, total conduit debt amounted to approximately $276,946,000. 

Subsequent Events
Subsequent to June 30, 2019, the Corporation entered into a purchase and sale agreement to 
acquire the leased-fee interest in land underlying its Kamakee Vista affordable multifamily rental 
housing project in Honolulu.  The transaction is expected to close during the year ending June 30, 
2020. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

In October 2019, the Corporation purchased the leased-fee interest in land underl ying a rental 
town home complex in Lahaina, Maui for approximately $14,900,000. 

2. Deposits 

At June 30, 2019, total cash and cash equivalents reported in the statement of net position 
consisted of the following: 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-T pe 
Activities Total 

Equity in cash and cash equivalents
 and investments in State Treasur $ - $ 555,504,880 $ 555,504,880 
Cash in banks (book balance) 591 4,101,236 4,101,827 
Cash held by third parties 1,505,291 417,468 1,922,759 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
 held b  trustee - 11,800,872 11,800,872 
Deposits held in trust - 485,248 485,248 
Restricted deposits held in escrow - 1,259,037 1,259,037 

Total cash $ 1,505,882 $ 573,568,741 $ 575,074,623 

The bank balance of cash in bank was approximately $4,141,000, of which $538,000 was 
covered by federal deposit insurance and $3,603,000 was not covered and is uncollaterali zed.  
As of June 30, 2019, Level 1 inputs were used to determine the fair value of the money market 
funds that are included in cash and cash equivalents.  The fair value of equity in investments in 
State Treasury are described in Note 1. 

3. Investments 

Investments at June 30, 2019 are summari ed by maturity (in years) as follows: 

Greater than 1 Greater than 5 Greater than 10 Reported 
Less than 1 and up to 5 and up to 10 and up to 20 Greater than 20 Value 

Mortgage-backed securities $ - $ 968,895 $ 5,399,221 $ 11,849,228 $ 28,080,808 $ 46,298,152 

Investments summari ed in the table above are reflected in the statement of net position as 
follows: 

Investments held by trustee under revenue bond program $ 45,447,575 
Investments – noncurrent 850,577 

Total investments $ 46,298,152 

As of June 30, 2019, Level 2 inputs were used to determine the fair value of mortgage-backed 
securities. 
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Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

The risks related to the Corporation’s investments are as follows: 

� 	 Interest Rate Risk – The Corporation does not have a formal investment policy that limits 
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
increasing interest rates. 

� 	 Credit Risk – The revenue bond funds’ trust indentures authorize the trustee to invest 
in certificates of deposit, money market funds, U.S. government or agency obligations, and 
repurchase agreements.  The Corporation has no investment policy that would further limit 
its investment decisions.  As of June 30, 2019, Federal National Mortgage Association 
(“FNMA”) mortgage-backed securities were rated Aaa, AAA, and AA+ by Moody’s Investor 
Service, Fitch, and Standard & Poor’s Rating Services, respectively.  Money market funds 
are not rated.  Certificates of deposit and securities of the Government National Mortgage 
Association are not considered to have credit risk exposure. 

� 	 Concentration of Credit Risk – The Corporation has no limit on the amount the 
Corporation may invest in any one issuer.  As of June 30, 2019, the Corporation’s 
investments were primarily with the Federal National Mortgage Association.  These 
investments are 96% of the Corporation’s total investments. 

� 	 Custodial Risk – For an investment, custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure 
of the counterparty, the Corporation will not be able to recover the value of its investments 
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The Corporation’s 
investments that are uninsured and unregistered are held by the Corporation’s trust agent 
in the Corporation’s name.  The Corporation monitors the market value of these securities 
and obtains additional collateral when appropriate. 

4. Mortgage Loans and Notes and Loans Receivable 

Mortgage loans and notes and loans receivable at June 30, 2019 comprised the following: 

Mortgage Notes and 
Loans Loans 

Mortgage loans bearing interest up to 8.75%,
 maturing at various dates through 2075 $ 429,362,825 $ - 
Promissor  notes bearing interest up to 5%,
 maturing at various dates through 2072 - 97,450,946 
Non-interest bearing promissor  notes,
 maturing at various dates through 2066 - 9,861,610 
Allowance for loan losses (154,076) - 

429,208,749 107,312,556 

Less:  Current portion� (546,394) (2,895,579) 

Noncurrent portion� $ 428,662,355 $ 104,416,977 

The collection of the Kamakana Villages at Keahuolu note receivable of approximately 
$5,300,000 is contingent upon the completion of certain construction and conditional terms 
as set forth in the amended development agreement. 

38
 



 

 

 

 

                                        

                                                                           

                    

       
 

    

 

y

y

  

State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

Mortgage and development loans are collateralized by real property.  The mortgage loans of the 
revenue bond funds are also subject to primary mortgage and mortgage pool insurance coverage 
that, subject to aggregate loss limitations, reimburses the Corporation for all losses incurred, 
if any, from the disposition of real property acquired through foreclosure. 

The promissory notes are collateralized by a second mortgage on the improvements of Kukui 
Gardens (see Note 12).  The non-interest bearing notes are collateralized by real property. 

5. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows: 

Balance at Balance at 
July 1, 2018 Additions Disposals June 30, 2019 

Governmental activities 
Depreciable assets 

Equipment $ 197,617 $ - $ (31,325) $ 166,292 
Accumulated depreciation 

Equipment (197,617) - 31,325 (166,292) 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ - $ - $ - $ - 

Business-t pe activities 
Depreciable assets 

Building and improvements $ 157,021,561 $ - $ (105,121,209) $ 51,900,352 
Equipment 2,622,709 36,044 (2,023,787) 634,966 

159,644,270 36,044 (107,144,996) 52,535,318 

Accumulated depreciation 
Building and improvements (125,116,806) (3,348,219) 90,593,204 (37,871,821) 
Equipment (2,267,950) (108,734) 1,836,281 (540,403) 

(127,384,756) (3,456,953) 92,429,485 (38,412,224) 

32,259,514 (3,420,909) (14,715,511) 14,123,094 

Land 49,903,215 - (8,115) 49,895,100 

Business-ty pe activities capital assets, net $ 82,162,729 $ (3,420,909) $ (14,723,626) $ 64,018,194 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 was charged to functions as follows: 

Governmental activities 
Low-income housing service and assistance $ - 

Business-t pe activities 
Housing development program $ 93,068 
Rental housing program 3,363,885 

Total depreciation expense – business-ty pe activities $ 3,456,953 
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Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
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At June 30, 2019, capital assets for the proprietary funds consisted of the following: 

Dwelling Unit 
Revenue Bond Revolving 

Funds Fund Other Funds Total 

Buildings and improvements $ - $ 51,900,352 $ - $ 51,900,352 
Equipment 5,635 490,395 138,936 634,966 

5,635 52,390,747 138,936 52,535,318 

Less: Accumulated depreciation (5,635) (38,279,433) (127,156) (38,412,224) 

- 14,111,314 11,780 14,123,094 

Land - 49,895,100 - 49,895,100 

Net capital assets $ - $ 64,006,414 $ 11,780 $ 64,018,194 

6. Revenue Bond Funds – Reserve Requirements 

Under the trust indentures between the Corporation and the trustee for the Single Family 
Mortgage Purchase revenue bonds, investment assets and cash are required to be held by 
the trustee in various accounts and funds, including debt service reserve accounts, loan funds, 
and mortgage loan reserve funds.  The uses of these assets are restricted by the terms of the 
trust indentures. 

At June 30, 2019, the following debt service reserves and mortgage loan reserves were required 
by the trust indentures in the Single Family Mortgage Purchase Revenue Bond Fund. 

Debt service reserve requirements $ 2,065,000 
Mortgage loan reserve requirements 561,000 

$ 2,626,000 

At June 30, 2019, approximately $2,782,000 and $3,589,000 of investment securities were being 
held in the debt service reserve funds and mortgage loan reserve funds, respectively, and are 
included in assets held by trustee in the statement of net position. 

The trust indenture agreement also requires that the mortgage loan reserves for these Revenue 
Bond Funds be funded from other than bond proceeds and, accordingly, the reserves have been 
funded by commitment fees at June 30, 2019. 

7. Note Pa able 

The Dwelling Unit Revolving Fund has a mortgage note payable to the U.S. Department of 
Agriculture Office of Rural Development.  The note was originated in October 1994, and is 
payable in monthly installments of approximately $1,300, including annual interest at 1%, 
due in April 2027.  The note is collaterali ed by property and rental receipts.  In the event of 
default, the lender may declare the remaining loan balance to be immediately due and payable, 
take possession of the property, foreclose the mortgage, or exercise other options stated in 
the loan agreement.  At June 30, 2019, the balance outstanding on the mortgage note was 
approximatel  $115,000. 
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Notes to Financial Statements
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Note payable activity during the year was as follows: 

Balance at Balance at Current 
July 1, 2018 Addition Reductions June 30, 2019 Portion 

Note pay able $ 128,789 $ - $ (14,147) $ 114,642 $ 14,286 

The approximate debt service requirement of the mortgage and note payable is as follows: 

Principal Interest Total 

Year ending June 30, 
2020 $ 14,000 $ 1,000 $ 15,000 
2021 14,000 1,000 15,000 
2022 15,000 1,000 16,000 
2023 15,000 1,000 16,000 
2024 15,000 1,000 16,000 
2025 ‒ 2027 42,000 1,000 43,000 

$ 115,000 $ 6,000 $ 121,000 

8. Revenue Bonds Pa able 

Through June 30, 2019, approximately $2.2 billion of revenue bonds have been issued.  The 
revenue bonds are payable from and collaterali ed by the revenues and other monies and assets 
of the revenue bond funds and other assets of the Corporation pledged under the indentures. 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Corporation defeased all the Hawaii Rental Housing 
System Revenue Bond Fund bonds, and in accordance with GASB Statement No. 86, recognized 
a loss on the defeasance of debt in the amount of approximately $74,000. 

Revenue bonds payable at June 30, 2019 consisted of the following issuances: 

Single Family Mortgage Purchase revenue bonds 
2009 Series A-1 

Term bonds maturing in 2026 through 2042 (2.40%) $ 7,060,000 

2011 Series B 
Serial bonds maturing in 2020 through 2023 (2.95% to 3.45%) 2,600,000 
Term bonds maturing in 2023 through 2026 (3.875%) 2,490,000 
Planned Amortiz ation Class bonds maturing in 2019 
 through 2026 (4.50%) 675,000 

5,765,000 

2013 Series A 
Term bonds maturing in 2019 through 2038 (2.60%) 7,820,807 

Total Single Family Mortgage Purchase revenue bonds $ 20,645,807 

Interest on the Single Family Mortgage Purchase revenue bonds is payable in monthly or 
semi-annual payments. 
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The Single Family Mortgage Purchase revenue bonds with designated maturity dates may be 
redeemed at the option of the Corporation.  The revenue bonds may also be redeemed without 
premium prior to maturity, at the option of the Corporation, as funds become available from 
undisbursed bond proceeds, principal payments, and prepayments of mortgages, excess 
amounts in the debt service reserve account, or excess revenues (as defined in the bond 
indentures). 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, early redemptions totaled $4,130,000. 

Revenue bonds activity during the year was as follows: 

Balance at Balance at 
July 1, 2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019 

Single Family Mortgage Purchase $ 26,879,452 $ - $ (6,233,645) $ 20,645,807 
Hawaii Rental Housing S stem 73,320,000 - (73,320,000) - 

100,199,452 - (79,553,645) 20,645,807 

Add:  Unamortiz ed premium 267,040 - (267,040) - 

$ 100,466,492 $ - $ (79,820,685) 20,645,807 

Less: Current portion (1,706,000) 

$ 18,939,807 

The approximate annual debt service requirements through 2024 and in five-year increments 
thereafter to maturity for revenue bonds are as follows: 

Principal Interest Total 

Year ending June 30, 
2020 $ 1,706,000 $ 553,000 $ 2,259,000 
2021 1,760,000 502,000 2,262,000 
2022 1,806,000 449,000 2,255,000 
2023 1,851,000 392,000 2,243,000 
2024 1,913,000 331,000 2,244,000 
2025 ‒ 2029 5,990,000 926,000 6,916,000 
2030 ‒ 2034 2,050,000 540,000 2,590,000 
2035 ‒ 2039 2,325,000 277,000 2,602,000 
2040 ‒ 2042 1,245,000 30,000 1,275,000 

$ 20,646,000 $ 4,000,000 $ 24,646,000 

In order to ensure the exclusion of interest on the Corporation’s Hawaii Rental Housing System 
and Single Family Mortgage Purchase revenue bonds from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes, the Corporation calculates rebates due to the U.S. Treasury annually.  The rebates are 
calculated by bond series based on the amount by which the cumulative amount of investment 
income exceeds the amount that would have been earned had funds been invested at the bond 
yield. At June 30, 2019, the Corporation determined that no rebate amounts were due to the U.S. 
Treasury. 
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Interest expense of approximately $3,991,000 was included as direct function expenses in the 
government-wide financial statement of activities during the year ended June 30, 2019. 

In the event of default, as defined in the bond indenture, the bond trustee ma y, by giving 30 days 
written notice to the Corporation, declare the principal and interest on all bonds outstanding to be 
due and payable immediately, subject to remedies provided in the indenture. 

9. Conduit Debt Obligations 

From time to time, the Corporation has issued revenue bonds to provide financial assistance 
to private sector entities for the acquisition and rehabilitation of affordable multifamily rental 
housing developments.  These bonds are special limited obligations of the Corporation, payable 
solely from and collateralized by a pledge of payments on the mortgage-backed securities.  
Neither the Corporation, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner 
for repa yment of the bonds. 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Corporation adopted GASB Statement No. 91, Cqpdwiv 
Fgdv Odli gavi qps, which established that conduit debt is not a liability of the issuer.  Accordingl y, 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, the Corporation derecognized all conduit debt 
obligations and related accounts. 

As of June 30, 2019, conduit debt obligations outstanding amounted to approximately 
$277,000,000. 

10. Leases 

Lessee 
The Corporation leases land, buildings and improvements under various noncancelable operating 
leases expiring at various dates through 2057.  The leases have scheduled rent increases at 
various times throughout their terms. 

The minimum rental commitments under operating leases are as follows: 

Year ending June 30, 
2020 $ 608,000 
2021 626,000 
2022 635,000 
2023 635,000 
2024 635,000 
2025 ‒ 2029 3,493,000 
2030 ‒ 2034 3,810,000 
2035 ‒ 2039 4,191,000 
2040 ‒ 2044 4,572,000 
2045 ‒ 2049 5,030,000 
2050 ‒ 2054 5,487,000 
2055 ‒ 2057 2,743,000 

$ 32,465,000 

Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 totaled approximately $591,000. 
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Lessor 
The Corporation leases land with a carry ing value of approximately $33,444,000 to various 
developers and home buy ers.  The leases expire at various dates through 2094.  Lease rental 
income for the year ended June 30, 2019 was approximately $1,058,000. 

As discussed in Note 12, the Corporation’s lease related to Kukui Gardens was prepaid with 
a promissory note.  The promissory note does not have fixed repa yment terms.  Accordingly, 
the minimum amounts to be received are excluded from the following table. 

The future minimum lease rent from these operating leases at June 30, 2019 is as follows: 

Year ending June 30, 

At June 30, 2019, the Dwelling Unit Revolving Fund (“DURF”) had outstanding commitments to 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 ‒ 2029 
2030 ‒ 2034 
2035 ‒ 2039 
2040 ‒ 2044 
2045 ‒ 2049 
2050 ‒ 2094 

$ 616,000 
594,000 
596,000 
596,000 
482,000 

2,843,000 
1,200,000 

342,000 
260,000 
155,000 
96,000 

$ 7,780,000 

11. Commitments and Contingencies 

Construction Contracts 

expend approximately $71,065,000 for land development and the construction and renovation of 
housing projects. 

Loan Commitments 
At June 30, 2019, the Rental Housing Revolving Fund had aggregate outstanding loan 
commitments of approximately $22,620,000. 

Development Costs
The Kapolei development project primarily consists of eight residential villages, a golf course, 
and certain commercial parcels spread over approximately 888 acres of land.  As of June 30, 
2019, all but 35 acres of remnant residential and business mixed-use parcels have been 
developed and sold. The estimated future cost of development is recorded as a liability in 
the accompan ying statement of net position and relates primarily to the completion of certain 
infrastructure improvements at this project.  This liability represents estimated amounts charged 
to the cost of land sold in excess of costs incurred.  Management believes that the future 
revenues from this project will meet or exceed the net amount of this liability and the remaining 
costs to be incurred on the project. 
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Additionally, the Corporation has been in the process of developing two master planned 
communities on the neighbor islands.  The Villages of Leiali‘i is in West Maui and is located on 
public trust (ceded) land owned by the State of Hawai‘i.  As of June 30, 2019, the Corporation 
still has development rights for most of the Leiali‘i project and development costs related to Leiali‘i 
were approximately $8,672,000 at June 30, 2019. 

In 2008, the Corporation embarked on the development of another master planned community 
on non-ceded land in West Hawai‘i, named the Kamakana Villages at Keahuolu.  On March 31, 
2009, the Corporation entered into a development agreement and a related loan agreement 
to finance necessary predevelopment, planning and infrastructure costs with a master plan 
developer.  Over the past several years, the master plan developer has worked on the project 
and was successful in obtaining numerous development entitlements and rights under related 
agreements (collectively, the “entitlements”).  In fiscal year 2018, the Corporation and the master 
plan developer agreed to terminate all of its rights, duties and obligations to each other under 
the development agreement with certain entitlements assigned and assumed by the Corporation 
with consideration of certain outstanding loan balances deemed repaid in full, which amounted 
to approximately $21,918,000.  Additionally, a portion of the development agreement and 
outstanding loan balance was transferred to another plan developer for completion.  As of 
June 30, 2019, development costs related to Kamakana Villages of Keahuolu were approximately 
$22,303,000. 

Also, the Corporation has other development costs and dwelling units of approximately 
$2,897,000 at June 30, 2019. 

Torts and Litigation
The Corporation is involved in various actions, the outcome of which, in the opinion of 
management, will not have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s financial position. 
Losses, if any, are either covered by insurance or will be paid from legislative appropriations 
of the State of Hawai‘i’s general fund. 

Insurance 
The State maintains certain insurance coverage to satisfy the bond indenture agreements as 
well as for other purposes, but is substantially self-insured for all other perils including workers’ 
compensation.  The State records a liability for risk financing and insurance related losses, 
including incurred but not reported, if it is determined that a loss has been incurred and the 
amount can be reasonably estimated.  The State retains various risks and insures certain excess 
layers with commercial insurance companies.  At June 30, 2019, the State recorded an estimated 
loss for workers’ compensation, automobile and general liability claims as long-term liabilities 
as the losses will not be liquidated with currently expendable available financial resources.  
The estimated losses will be paid from legislative appropriations of the State’s general fund.  
The Corporation’s portion of the State’s workers’ compensation liability was not material at 
June 30, 2019. 

12. Kukui Gardens 

On December 18, 2007, the Corporation purchased a portion of Kukui Gardens (the “Project”), 
an affordable housing project in Honolulu, Hawai‘i, for approximatel  $59,569,000.  Concurrent 
with DURF’s purchase of the Project, DURF sold the Project’s improvements (including 
apartment units) and operating cash of approximately $38,527,000 to Kukui EAH/DGI Associates, 
L.P. (“EAH”), an unrelated third party, for no gain or loss, and leased the underlying land of 
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approximatel  $21,042,000 to EAH pursuant to the terms of a 65-year land lease that expires 
on December 18, 2072. 

To assist in financing the acquisition and redevelopment of the Project, the State contributed 
$25,000,000 to DURF during December 2007.  Additionally, the Multifamily Housing Revenue 
Bond Fund issued $45,000,000 of revenue bonds to provide conduit financing to EAH for their 
acquisition of the Project’s improvements and operating cash, as well as to provide capital for 
rental operations and the planned renovation of the apartment units.  Upon completion of the 
renovations, $34,605,000 of the bonds was scheduled to be redeemed, leaving $10,395,000 
of bonds outstanding to their stated maturity.  In 2010, due to unfavorable global economic 
conditions, EAH requested and Citicorp Municipal Mortgage Inc., bondholder, agreed to increase 
the unredeemed bond balance by $3,270,000 to $13,665,000, which decreased the redemption 
at conversion to $31,335,000 from $34,605,000.  In May 2012, the Project was completed and 
a payment of $31,335,000 was received.  As of June 30, 2019,  the conduit debt obligations of 
and notes receivable from EAH related to the project amounted to approximatel  $12,601,000 
and $12,534,000, respectively.  Currently, $3,040,000 of the conduit debt obligation bears interest 
at a fixed rate of 6.25% and matures through January 2042, while the remaining $9,562,000 
bears interest at a rate of 2.25% and matures annuall  through January 2042.  The conduit debt 
obligation includes monthly payments of principal and interest with principal pay ments that range 
from approximately $2,000 to $54,000.  Any unpaid principal and accrued interest, together with 
any other expenses, are due upon maturity. 

Additionally, EAH executed three promissory notes to DURF in an aggregate amount of 
$29,055,000, including approximately $4,055,000 related to cash advanced from DURF to 
EAH and $25,000,000 related to the terms of the land lease.  Additionally, DURF recorded 
$25,000,000 of unearned income on the accompanying statement of net position related to this 
transaction.  The unearned income will be amortized to rental income on a straight-line basis and 
the notes receivable will be reduced as cash is collected.  Unearned income at June 30, 2019 
related to the Project was approximately $20,558,000.  The notes bear interest at 4.72% and are 
for a term of 58 years, with a final maturity date of December 17, 2065.  Repay ment of the notes 
is distributed into three periods as follows:  (1) December 18, 2007 to December 31, 2012, no 
payments due; (2) January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2042, beginning April 1, 2013, 85% of the 
residual cash flow generated by the rental operations of the Project after expenses, as defined; 
and (3) January 1, 2043 to December 17, 2065, beginning April 1, 2043, 90% of the residual cash 
flow generated by the rental operations of the Project after expenses, as defined, with any unpaid 
principal sum and accrued interest together with any other costs, expenses, and other charges 
due to be paid at maturity. 

EAH also executed a promissory note to DURF for $26,000,000 in September 2009 to assist EAH 
in rehabilitating the property.  The note bears no interest and is for a term of 56 years, with a final 
maturity date of December 17, 2065.  Repayment of the note is distributed into three periods as 
follows: (1) September 1, 2009 to December 31, 2012, no payments due; (2) January 1, 2013 
to December 31, 2042, beginning April 1, 2013, 85% of the residual cash flow generated by 
the rental operations of the Project after expenses, as defined; and (3) January 1, 2043 to 
December 17, 2065, beginning April 1, 2043, 90% of the residual cash flow generated by the 
rental operations of the Project after expenses, as defined, with any unpaid principal sum and 
accrued interest together with any other costs, expenses and other charges due to be paid at 
maturity. 

46
 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

y

y

y

y

  

State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

During the year ended June 30, 2019, DURF recognized approximately $2,900,000 of interest 
income related to the outstanding promissory notes.  As of June 30, 2019, DURF has recorded 
approximatel  $17,300,000 of interest income receivable related to the outstanding promissory 
notes. 

13. Pension Plan 

Plan Description
Generally, all full-time employees of the State and counties are required to be members of the 
ERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that administers the State’s 
pension benefits program.  Benefits, eligibility and contribution requirements are governed by 
HRS Chapter 88 and can be amended through legislation. 

The ERS issues publicly available annual financial reports that can be obtained at ERS’s website: 
hvvps ://gts0ghawaii0gqv/tgsqwtegs/hipapeials. 

Benefits Provided
The ERS Pension Trust is comprised of three pension classes for membership purposes and 
considered to be a single plan for accounting purposes since all assets of the ERS may legally 
be used to pay the benefits of any of the ERS members or beneficiaries.  The ERS provides 
retirement, disability and death benefits with three membership classes known as the 
noncontributor y, contributory and hybrid retirement classes.  The three classes provide a monthly 
retirement allowance equal to the benefit multiplier (generally 1.25% or 2%) multiplied by the 
average final compensation multiplied b  years of credit service.  Average final compensation for 
members hired prior to July 1, 2012 is an average of the highest salaries during any three years 
of credited service, excluding any salary paid in lieu of vacation for members hired January 1, 
1971 or later and the average of the highest salaries during any five years of credited service 
including any salary paid in lieu of vacation for members hired prior to January 1, 1971.  For 
members hired after June 30, 2012, average final compensation is an average of the highest 
salaries during any five years of credited service excluding any salary paid in lieu of vacation. 

Each retiree’s original retirement allowance is increased on each Jul  1 beginning the calendar 
year after retirement.  Retirees first hired as members prior to July 1, 2012 receive a 2.5% 
increase each year of their original retirement allowance without a ceiling.  Retirees first hired 
as members after June 30, 2012 receive a 1.5% increase each year of their original retirement 
allowance without a ceiling.  The annual increase is not compounded. 

The following summari zes the provisions relevant to the largest employee groups of the 
respective membership class.  Retirement benefits for certain groups, such as police officers, 
firefighters, some investigators, sewer workers, judges, and elected officials, vary from general 
employees. 

Noncontributory Class 

� Rgvitgmgpv Dgpghivs ‒ General employees’ retirement benefits are determined as 1.25% of 
average final compensation multiplied b  the years of credited service.  Employees with ten 
years of credited service are eligible to retire at age 62.  Employees with 30 years of credited 
service are eligible to retire at age 55. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

� 	 Fisadilivy Dgpghivs ‒ Members are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of 
length of service and receive a lifetime pension of 35% of their average final compensation.  
Ten years of credited service is required for ordinary disability.  Ordinary disability benefits 
are determined in the same manner as retirement benefits but are payable immediately, 
without an actuarial reduction, and at a minimum of 12.5% of average final compensation. 

� 	 Fgavh Dgpghivs ‒ For service-connected deaths, the surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary 
receives a monthly benefit of 30% of the average final compensation until remarriage or 
re-entry into a new reciprocal beneficiary relationship.  Additional benefits are pa yable to 
surviving dependent children up to age 18.  If there is no spouse/reciprocal beneficiary or 
dependent children, no benefit is payable. 

Ordinary death benefits are available to employees who were active at time of death with 
at least ten years of credited service.  The surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary (until 
remarriage/reentry into a new reciprocal beneficiary relationship) and dependent children 
(up to age 18) receive a benefit equal to a percentage of the member’s accrued maximum 
allowance unreduced for age or, if the member was eligible for retirement at the time of 
death, the surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary receives 100% joint and survivor lifetime 
pension and the dependent children receive a percentage of the member’s accrued 
maximum allowance unreduced for age. 

Contributory Class for Members Hired Prior to July 1, 2012 

� 	 Rgvitgmgpv Dgpghivs ‒ General employees’ retirement benefits are determined as 2% of 
average final compensation multiplied b  the years of credited service.  General employees 
with five years of credited service are eligible to retire at age 55. 

� 	 Fisadilivy Dgpghivs ‒ Members are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of 
length of service and receive a one-time payment of the member’s contributions and accrued 
interest plus a lifetime pension of 50% of their average final compensation.  Ten years of 
credited service is required for ordinary disability.  Ordinary disability benefits are determined 
as 1.75% of average final compensation multiplied by the years of credited service but are 
payable immediately, without an actuarial reduction, and at a minimum of 30% of average 
final compensation. 

� 	 Fgavh Dgpghivs ‒ For service-connected deaths, the surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary 
receives a lump sum pa yment of the member’s contributions and accrued interest plus a 
monthly benefit of 50% of the average final compensation until remarriage or re-entry into a 
new reciprocal beneficiary relationship.  If there is no surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary, 
surviving children (up to age 18) or dependent parents are eligible for the monthly benefit.  
If there is no spouse/reciprocal beneficiary or dependent children/parents, the ordinary death 
benefit is pay able to the designated beneficiary. 

Ordinary death benefits are available to employ ees who were active at time of death with 
at least one year of service.  Ordinary death benefits consist of a lump sum pa yment of the 
member’s contributions and accrued interest plus a percentage of the salary earned in the 
12 months preceding death, or 50% joint and survivor lifetime pension if the member was not 
eligible for retirement at the time of death but was credited with at least ten years of service 
and designated one beneficiary, or 100  joint and survivor lifetime pension if the member 
was eligible for retirement at the time of death and designated one beneficiary. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

Contributory Class for Members Hired After June 30, 2012 

� 	 Rgvitgmgpv Dgpghivs ‒ General employees’ retirement benefits are determined as 1.75% of 
average final compensation multiplied b  the years of credited service.  General employees 
with ten years of credited service are eligible to retire at age 60. 

� 	 Fisadilivy apd Fgavh Dgpghi vs ‒ Members are eligible for service-related disability benefits 
regardless of length of service and receive a lifetime pension of 50% of their average final 
compensation plus refund of contributions and accrued interest.  Ten years of credited 
service is required for ordinary disability. 

Death benefits for contributory class members hired after June 30, 2012 are generally 
the same as those for contributory class members hired June 30, 2012 and prior. 

Hybrid Class for Members Hired Prior to July 1, 2012 

� 	 Rgvitgmgpv Dgpghivs ‒ General employees’ retirement benefits are determined as 2% of 
average final compensation multiplied b  the years of credited service.  General employees 
with five years of credited service are eligible to retire at age 62.  General emplo ees with 
30 years of credited service are eligible to retire at age 55. 

� 	 Fisadilivy Dgpghivs ‒ Members are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of 
length of service and receive a lifetime pension of 35% of their average final compensation 
plus refund of their contributions and accrued interest.  Ten years of credited service is 
required for ordinary disability.  Ordinary disability benefits are determined in the same 
manner as retirement benefits but are pa yable immediately, without an actuarial reduction, 
and at a minimum of 25% of average final compensation. 

� 	 Fgavh Dgpghivs ‒ For service-connected deaths, the designated surviving spouse/reciprocal 
beneficiary receives a lump sum payment of the member’s contributions and accrued 
interest plus a monthly benefit of 50% of the average final compensation until remarriage 
or re-entry into a new reciprocal beneficiary relationship.  If there is no surviving spouse/ 
reciprocal beneficiary, surviving dependent children (up to age 18) or dependent parents 
are eligible for the monthly benefit.  If there is no spouse/reciprocal beneficiary or dependent 
children/parents, the ordinary death benefit is payable to the designated beneficiary. 

Ordinary death benefits are available to employ ees who were active at time of death with 
at least five years of service.  Ordinary death benefits consist of a lump sum pa yment of the 
member’s contributions and accrued interest plus a percentage multiplied by 150 %, or 50% 
joint and survivor lifetime pension if the member was not eligible for retirement at the time 
of death but was credited with at least ten years of service and designated one beneficiary, 
or 100% joint and survivor lifetime pension if the member was eligible for retirement at the 
time of death and designated one beneficiary. 

Hybrid Class for Members Hired After June 30, 2012 

� 	 Rgvitgmgpv Dgpghivs ‒ General employees’ retirement benefits are determined as 1.75% of 
average final compensation multiplied b  the years of credited service.  General employees 
with ten years of credited service are eligible to retire at age 65.  Employees with 30 years 
of credited service are eligible to retire at age 60. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

	 Fisadilivy apd Fgavh Dgpghi vs ‒ Provisions for disability and death benefits generally remain 
the same except for ordinary death benefits.  Ordinary death benefits are available to 
employees who were active at time of death with at least ten years of service.  Ordinary 
death benefits consist of a lump sum pa yment of the member’s contributions and accrued 
interest, or 50% joint and survivor lifetime pension if the member was not eligible for 
retirement at the time of death but was credited with at least ten years of service and 
designated one beneficiary, or 100% joint and survivor lifetime pension if the member 
was eligible for retirement at the time of death and designated one beneficiary. 

Contributions 
Contributions are governed by HRS Chapter 88 and may be amended through legislation.  The 
employer rate is set by statute based on the recommendations of the ERS actuary resulting from 
an experience study conducted every five years.  Since July 1, 2005, the emplo er contribution 
rate is a fixed percentage of compensation, including the normal cost plus amounts required 
to pay for the unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities.  The contribution rates for fiscal year 2019 
were 31% for police officers and firefighters and 19% for all other employees.  Contributions to 
the pension plan from the Corporation were approximately $762,000 for the year ended June 30, 
2019. 

Per Act 17, SLH 2017, employer contributions from the State and counties are expected to 
increase over four years beginning July 1, 2017.  The rate for police and firefighters increased 
to 31% on Jul  1, 2018; and increases to 36% on Jul  1, 2019 and 41% on July 1, 2020.  The 
rate for all other employees increased to 19% on July 1, 2018; and increases to 22% on July 1, 
2019 and 24% on July 1, 2020. 

The employer is required to make all contributions for noncontributory members.  Contributor 
members hired prior to July 1, 2012 are required to contribute 7.8% of their salary.  Contributor 
members hired after June 30, 2012 are required to contribute 9.8% of their salary.  Hybrid 
members hired prior to July 1, 2012 are required to contribute 6.0% of their salary.  Hybrid 
members hired after June 30, 2012 are required to contribute 8.0% of their salary. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
At June 30, 2019, the Corporation reported a net pension liability of approximatel  $10,139,000 
for its proportionate share of the State’s net pension liability.  The net pension liability was 
measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  The Corporation’s proportion 
of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Corporation’s long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to projected contributions of all participants, actuarially 
determined.  At June 30, 2018, the Corporation’s proportion was 0.15% which represents no 
change in proportion measured as of June 30, 2017. 

There was no change in actuarial assumptions as of June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018.  There 
were no changes between the measurement date, June 30, 2018, and the reporting date, 
June 30, 2019, that are expected to have a significant effect on the proportionate share of 
the net pension liability. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Corporation recogni zed pension expense of approximately 
$1,414,000.  At June 30, 2019, the Corporation reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected and 
 actual experience $ 181,681 $ (48,021) 

Changes in assumptions 925,356 - 

Net difference between projected and actual
 earnings on pension plan investments, - (205,523) 

Changes in proportion and differences between
 Corporation contributions and proportional share
 of contributions 30,452 (80,431) 

Corporation contributions subsequent to the 
 measurement date 762,262 - 

$ 1,899,751 $ (333,975) 

At June 30, 2019, approximately $762,000 reported as deferred outflows of resources related 
to pensions resulting from Corporation contributions subsequent to the measurement date will 
be recogni zed as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2020. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recogni zed in pension expense as follows: 

Year ending June 30, 
2020 $ 379,000 
2021 317,000 
2022 116,000 
2023 (10,000) 
2024 1,000 

$ 803,000 

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions adopted by the ERS’s Board of Trustees on December 12, 2016, 
based on the 2015 Experience Study for the five-y ear period from July 1, 2010 through June 30, 
2015: 

Inflation 2.50% 
Pa roll growth rate 3.50% 
Investment rate of return 7.00% per ear, compounded annual including inflation 

There were no changes to ad hoc postemployment benefits including cost of living allowances. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

Post-retirement mortality rates are based on the 2016 Public Retirees of Hawaii mortality table 
with adjustments based on generational projections of the BB projection table for 2016 and full 
generational projections in future years.  Pre-retirement mortality rates are based on multiples 
of the RP-2014 mortality table based on the occupation of the member. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
“top down approach” of the Client-Constrained Simulation-based Optimization Model (a statistical 
technique known as “re-sampling with a replacement” that directly keys in on specific plan-level 
risk factors as stipulated b  the ERS’s Board of Trustees) in which best-estimate ranges of 
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense 
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce 
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future nominal rates of return 
(real returns and inflation) by the target asset allocation percentage. 

The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset 
class are summari zed in the following table: 

Long-Term 
Target Expected Real 

Allocation Rate of Return 

Strategic Allocation (risk based classes) 
Broad growth 63.0% 7.10% 
Principal protection 7.0% 2.50% 
Real return 10.0% 4.10% 
Crisis risk offset 20.0% 4.60% 

Total investments 100.0% 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the net pension liability was 7.00%, consistent with the rate 
used at the prior measurement date.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount 
rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that 
contributions from the State will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined.  
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit pay ments of current active and inactive employees.  
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

Sensitivit  of the Corporation’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabilit
to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the Corporation’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the Corporation’s proportionate share of the net 
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point 
lower (6.00% ) or one percentage point higher (8.00 ) than the current rate: 

Corporation’s proportionate share of
 the net pension liability 

1% 
Decrease 
(6.00% 

$ 13,188,000 $ 

Discount 
Rate 

(7.00% 

10,139,000 

1% 
Increase 
(8.00% 

$ 7,625,000 

Pension Plan Fiduciar Net Position 
The pension plan’s fiduciary net position is determined on the same basis used by the pension 
plan. The ERS’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting under 
which expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, and revenues are recorded in the 
accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable.  Employer and member 
contributions are recogni zed in the period in which the contributions are due.  Benefits and 
refunds are recogni zed when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.  
Investment purchases and sales are recorded as of their trade date.  Administrative expenses 
are financed exclusively with investment income. 

There were no significant changes after the report measurement date.  Detailed information about 
the pension plan’s fiduciar  net position is available in the separatel -issued ERS financial report.  
The ERS’s complete financial statements are available at hvvps ://gts0ghawaii0gqv/ 
tgsqwtegs/h papei als0 

Pa ables to the Pension Plan 
At June 30, 2019, the Corporation prepaid expense to the ERS was $12,000. 

Required Supplementar  Information and Disclosures
The State’s CAFR includes the required disclosures and required supplementary information 
on the State’s pension plan. 

14. Post-retirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 

Plan Description
The State provides certain health care and life insurance benefits to all qualified employees.  
Pursuant to Act 88, SLH 2001, the State contributes to the EUTF, an agent multiple-employer 
defined benefit plan that replaced the Hawaii Public Employees Health Fund effective July 1, 
2003. The EUTF was established to provide a single delivery system of health benefits for state 
and county workers, retirees, and their dependents.  The EUTF issues a publicly available annual 
financial report that can be obtained at hvvps://gwvh0hawaii0gqv/tgpqtvs0 

For employees hired before July 1, 1996, the State pays the entire base monthly contribution 
for employees retiring with ten years or more of credited service, and 50% of the base monthly 
contribution for employees retiring with fewer than ten years of credited service.  A retiree can 
elect a family plan to cover dependents. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

For employees hired after June 30, 1996 but before Jul  1, 2001, and who retire with less than 
ten years of service, the State makes no contributions.  For those retiring with at least ten years 
but fewer than 15 years of service, the State pays 50% of the base monthly contribution.  For 
employees retiring with at least 15 years but fewer than 25 years of service, the State pays 75 
of the base monthly contribution.  For employees retiring with at least 25 years of service, the 
State pays 100% of the base monthly contribution.  Retirees in this category can elect a family 
plan to cover dependents. 

For employees hired on or after July 1, 2001, and who retire with less than ten years of service, 
the State makes no contributions.  For those retiring with at least ten years but fewer than 15 
years of service, the State pays 50% of the base monthly contribution.  For those retiring with 
at least 15 years but fewer than 25 years of service, the State pays 75% of the base monthly 
contribution.  For employees retiring with at least 25 years of service, the State pays 100% of 
the base monthly contribution.  Only single plan coverage is provided for retirees in this category.  
Retirees can elect family coverage but must pay the difference. 

Emplo ees Covered b Benefit Terms 
At July 1, 2018, the following number of plan members of the State were covered by the benefit 
terms: 

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 36,340 
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 7,588 
Active plan members 50,519 

Total plan members 94,447 

Contributions 
Contributions are governed by HRS Chapter 87A and may be amended through legislation.  
Contributions to the OPEB plan from the Corporation was approximately $782,000 for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2019.  The employ er is required to make all contributions for members. 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources  

and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

At June 30, 2019, the Corporation reported a net OPEB liability of approximately $10,300,000. 
The net OPEB liability was measured as of July 1, 2018, and the total OPEB liability used to 
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

There were no changes between the measurement date, July 1, 2018, and the reporting date, 
June 30, 2019, that are expected to have a significant effect on the net OPEB liability. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Corporation recogni zed OPEB expense of approximately 
$970,000.  At June 30, 2019, the Corporation reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected and 
 actual experience $ - $ (200,550) 

Changes of assumptions 121,379 - 

Difference between projected and actual
 earnings on OPEB plan investments - (14,306) 

Corporation contributions subsequent to the 
 measurement date 973,925 - 

$ 1,095,304 $ (214,856) 

At June 30, 2019, the approximate $974,000 reported as deferred outflows of resources related 
to OPEB resulting from State contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ending June 30, 2020. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB will be recogni ed in OPEB expense as follows: 

Year ending June 30, 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

$ (23,000) 
(23,000) 
(23,000) 
(24,000) 

$ (93,000) 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

Actuarial Assumptions
The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions adopted by the EUTF’s Board of Trustees on January 8, 2018, based on 
the experience study covering the five-year period ended June 30, 2015 as conducted for the 
ERS: 

Inflation 2.50% 

Salar  increases 3.50% to 7.00% including inflation 

Investment rate of return 7.00% 

Healthcare cost trend rates 

PPO* Initial rate of 10.00% declining to a rate of 4.86% 
after 13 years 

HMO* Initial rate of 10.00% declining to a rate of 4.86% 
after 13 years 

Part B & Base Monthly Initial rates of 4.00% and 5.00%; declining to a rate of 
Contribution 4.70% after 12 years 

Dental Initial rates of 5.00% for the first three ears, followed 
by 4.00% 

Vision Initial rates of 0.00% for the first three ears, followed 
by 2.50% 

Life insurance 0.00% 

* Blended rates for medical and prescription drugs. 

Mortality rates are based on system-specific mortality tables utili zing scale BB to project 
generational mortality improvement. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rates of return b  the target asset allocation percentage and 
by adding expected inflation.  The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of 
return for each asset class are summari ed in the following table: 

Asset Class 
Private equity 
U.S. microcap 
U.S. equity 
Non-U.S. equity 
Global options 
Core real estate 
Private credit 
Core bonds 
TIPS 
Long treasuries 
Alternative risk premia 
Trend following 

Total investments 

Single Discount Rate

Long-Term 
Target Expected Real 

Allocation Rate of Return 

10.0% 8.65% 
7.0% 7.00% 

15.0% 5.05% 
17.0% 6.50% 

7.0% 4.50% 
10.0% 4.10% 

6.0% 5.25% 
3.0% 1.30% 
5.0% 0.75% 
6.0% 1.90% 
5.0% 2.45% 
9.0% 3.00% 

100.0% 

The discount rate used to measure the net OPEB liability was 7.00%, based on the expected rate 
of return on OPEB plan investments of 7.00% and the municipal bond rate of 3.62% (based on 
the daily rate closest to but not later than the measurement date of the Fidelity “20-year Municipal 
GO AA Index”). Beginning with the fiscal year 2019 contribution, the State’s funding policy is 
to pay the recommended actuarially determined contribution, which is based on la yered, closed 
amortiz ation periods.  Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and 
inactive plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
OPEB liability. 

OPEB Plan Fiduciar  Net Position 
The OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis used by the 
OPEB plan. The EUTF’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting 
under which revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time 
liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of the cash flows.  Employer contributions are 
recognized in the period in which the contributions are due.  Benefits and refunds are recogni zed 
when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.  Investment purchases and sales 
are recorded on a trade-date basis.  Administrative expenses are financed exclusively with 
investment income. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

There were no significant changes after the report measurement date.  Detailed information about 
the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued EUTF financial report.  
The EUTF’s complete financial statements are available at hvvps ://gwvh0hawaii0gqv0 

Changes in Net OPEB Liabilit
The following table represents a schedule of changes in the Corporation’s net OPEB liability. 
The ending balances are as of the measurement date, July 1, 2018. 

Total
OPEB 

Liabilit 

Balance at July 1, 2018 $ 11,077,609 

Service cost 262,531 
Interest on total net OPEB liability 812,855 
Difference between expected 
 and actual experience (240,358) 
Changes of assumptions 145,472 
Corporation contributions - 
Net investment income - 
Benefit pay ments (395,791) 
Administrative expenses - 

Net change 584,709 

Balance at June 30, 2019 $ 11,662,318 

 Plan 
Fiduciar 

Net Position 

Net 
OPEB 

Liabilit 

870,568$ $ 10,207,041 

- 
- 
-

- 
782,019 

90,102 
(395,791) 

(293) 

476,037 

262,531 
812,855 

(240,358) 
145,472 

(782,019) 
(90,102) 

- 
293 

108,672 

1,346,605$ $ 10,315,713 

Sensitivit  to the Net OPEB Liabilit  to Changes in Discount Rate 
and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
The following table presents the Corporation’s net OPEB liability calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.00% , as well as what the Corporation’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.00%) or one percentage point higher 
(8.00% ) than the current discount rate: 

1% 
Decrease 
(6.00% 

Discount 
Rate 

(7.00% 

1% 
Increase 
(8.00% 

Corporation’s proportionate share of
 the net OPEB liabilit $ 12,196,000 $ 10,316,000 $ 8,839,000 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

The following table presents the Corporation’s net OPEB liability calculated using the assumed 
healthcare cost trend rate, as well as what the Corporation’s net OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using the trend rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher 
than the current healthcare cost trend rate: 

Corporation’s proportionate share of
 the net OPEB liabilit $ 

1% 
Decrease 

8,758,000 

Healthcare 
Cost

Trend Rate 

$ 10,316,000 

1% 
Increase 

$ 12,337,000 

Pa ables to the OPEB Plan 
The Corporation’s contribution payable to EUTF by fiscal year end was paid by June 30, 2019. 

Required Supplementar  Information and Disclosures 
The State’s CAFR includes the required disclosures and required supplementary information 
on the State’s OPEB plan. 

15. Deferred Compensation Plan 

The State offers its emplo ees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457.  The plan, available to all State employees, permits employees to 
defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to 
employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergenc y. 

All plan assets are held in a trust fund to protect them from claims of general creditors.  The State 
has no responsibility for loss due to the investment or failure of investment of funds and assets 
in the plan, but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent 
investor. 

16. Related Part Transactions 

Amounts due from the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands (“DHHL”) related to a previous 
agreement to transfer certain land development rights to DHHL include approximately 
$9,098,000.  Pursuant to this agreement, DHHL was required to commence 15 annual 
$1,700,000 pa yments to the Corporation in December 2004.  Effective at that time, the 
Corporation recorded the sale of the land and development rights at the net present value of 
the estimated future cash flow from DHHL using an imputed interest rate of approximately 2.6%.  
In September 2013, the agreement was amended to extend the term by three years and reduce 
annual payments from $2,200,000 to $1,700,000.  As of June 30, 2019, amounts due from DHHL 
include approximately $2,929,000 of principal, net of approximately $71,000 of imputed interest, 
and approximately $48,000 of accrued interest receivable.  Interest income related to imputed 
interest on pa yments due from DHHL was approximately $97,000 during the year ended June 30, 
2019. 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2019 

The Rental Assistance Revolving Fund provides rent subsidies to certain lessees of the 
Corporation’s various projects.  Total rent subsidies provided to lessees of the Corporation’s 
various projects approximated $1,225,000 during the year ended June 30, 2019.  These amounts 
were recorded by the Corporation as rental income in the Hawaii Rental Housing System 
Revenue Bond Fund for the period July 2018 to May 2019. In May 2019, the fund’s residual 
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, including the assets, revenues and expenses for 
Kamakee Vista, the sixth of the rental properties of the Hawaii Rental Housing S stem Revenue 
Bond Fund, were transferred to DURF.  For June 2019 the rental subsidies related to Kamakee 
Vista were recorded by the Corporation in DURF.  In addition, the Corporation leases office space 
in the Pohulani building.  During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Hawaii Rental Housing 
System Revenue Bond Fund recorded rental income of approximately $1,228,000, which was 
allocated as office rental expense to various funds of the Corporation.  In addition, DAGS incurred 
approximatel  $1,010,000 in rent to the Hawaii Rental Housing System Revenue Bond Fund for 
leased space in the Pohulani building.  The lease term with the Corporation and DAGS expires in 
August 2022.  Minimum annual rent is renegotiated every five years, with the rent for the first year 
of each five-y ear period being no less than 97% and no more than 103% of the preceding year’s 
minimum rent.  Minimum rent for the subsequent four years of each five-year period increases by 
3% annually.  In May 2019, these leases with the Corporation and DAGS were assumed by the 
buyer of the Pohulani building. 

17. Interfund Receivables and Pa ables 

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2019 is as follows: 

Receivable Fund 

Dwelling Unit Revolving Fund 
Non-major Enterprise Funds 
Non-major Enterprise Funds 
Non-major Enterprise Funds 

Non-major Enterprise Funds 

Non-major Enterprise Funds 

Pa able Fund 

Non-major Enterprise Funds 
Non-major Enterprise Funds 
Single Family Mortgage Purchase Revenue Bond Fund 
Rental Housing Revolving Fund 

Total Proprietar  interfund balances 

HOME Investment Partnership Program Fund 

Housing Trust Fund Program 

Total Governmental interfund balances 

Amount 

$ 688,017 
3,998,940 

165,928 
10,264 

4,863,149 

2,037 

15,128 

$ 17,165 

These balances are due to interfund goods or services provided or reimbursable expenditures 
and payments between funds. 

60
 



 
 

 

 

 
 

  

Required Supplementary Information

Other than Management’s Discussion


and Analysis (Unaudited)
 



 

         

         
 

 

 
y  

 

y 
) 

  

State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Budgetar  Comparison Statement – General Fund (Unaudited) 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget 

Budgetar 
Actual 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Positive (Negative 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental revenue $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ - 

Expenditures 
Programs  

Total expenditures 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

Excess of revenues over expenditures $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ - 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Budgetar  Comparison Statement – HOME Investment Partnership Program 
(Unaudited)
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Original 
and Final 
Budgets 

Budgetary 
Actual 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental revenue $ 2,283,000 $ 3,802,576 $ 1,519,576 

Expenditures 
Low-income housing service and assistance programs 

Total expenditures 

2,283,000 

2,283,000 

3,802,576 

3,802,576 

(1,519,576) 

(1,519,576) 

Excess of revenues over expenditures $ - $ - $ - 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Budgetar  Comparison Statement – Housing Trust Fund Program (Unaudited) 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Original 
and Final 
Budgets 

Budgetary 
Actual 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental revenue $ 1,000,000 $ 3,569,344 $ 2,569,344 

Expenditures 
Low-income housing service and assistance programs 

Total expenditures 

1,000,000 

1,000,000 

3,569,344 

3,569,344 

(2,569,344) 

(2,569,344) 

Excess of revenues over expenditures $ - $ - $ - 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Required Supplementar  Information (Unaudited) 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

1. Budgeting and Budgetar  Control 

Revenue estimates are provided to the State Legislature at the time of budget consideration 
and are revised and updated periodically during the fiscal year.  Amounts reflected as budgeted 
revenues in the budgetary comparison statement are those estimates as compiled and reviewed 
by the State of Hawai‘i, Department of Budget and Finance. 

Budgeted expenditures are derived primarily from the General Appropriations Act of 2005 (Act 
178, Session Laws of Hawaii (“SLH”) 2005), and from other authori zations contained in the State 
Constitution, Hawaii Revised Statutes, and other specific appropriation acts in various SLH. 

All expenditures of these appropriated funds are made pursuant to the appropriations in the 
fiscal 2017 – 2019 biennial budget.  The General Fund and HOME Investment Partnership 
Program and Housing Trust Fund program have legall  appropriated annual budgets. 

The final legally adopted budget in the accompanying budgetary comparison statements 
represents the original appropriation, transfers, and other legally authori ed legislative and 
executive changes. 

The legal level of budgetary control is maintained at the appropriation line item level by 
department, program and source of funds as established in the appropriations act.  The Governor 
is authori zed to transfer appropriations between programs within the same department and 
source of funds; however, transfers of appropriations between departments generally require 
legislative authori ation.  Records and reports reflecting the detail level of control are maintained 
by and are available at the Corporation.  During the year ended June 30, 2019, there were no 
expenditures in excess of available appropriations at the legal level of budgetary control. 

To the extent not expended or encumbered, general fund appropriations generally lapse at the 
end of the fiscal year for which the appropriations are made.  The State Legislature specifies 
the lapse date and any other contingencies which may terminate the authorizations for other 
appropriations. 

The Corporation’s annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting with several 
differences from the preparation of the statement of revenues, expenditures and change in 
fund balances under GAAP, principally related to (1) encumbrance of purchase orders and 
contract obligations, (2) accrued revenues and expenditures, and (3) unbudgeted programs 
(federal award programs). A reconciliation of the budgetary to GAAP basis operating results 
for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows: 

General 
Fund 

HOME 
Investment 
Partnership 

Program 
Trust Fund 

Housing 

Program 

Excess of revenues over expenditures – actual (budgetar  basis) 
Revenues (expenses) for unbudgeted programs 

$ 300,000 
- 

$ - 
228,163 

$ - 
(7,917) 

Excess of revenues over expenditures – GAAP basis $ 300,000 $ 228,163 $ (7,917) 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Non-major Enterprise Funds
Combining Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019 

Rental Housing Multifamily 
Assistance Finance Housing 
Revolving Revolving Revenue Disbursing 

Fund Fund Bond Fund Fund Total 

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Current assets 

Equity in cash and cash equivalents and investments in State Treasur $ 28,899,491 $ 8,297,262 $ - $ 829,977 $ 38,026,730 
Cash in banks - - - 10,000 10,000 
Receivables 

Accrued interest 970,257 180,592 - - 1,150,849 
Other receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $135,591 - - 142,829 - 142,829 

970,257 180,592 142,829 - 1,293,678 

Due from other funds - 1,362,779 2,812,353 - 4,175,132 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 15,988 - - - 15,988 

Total current assets 29,885,736 9,840,633 2,955,182 839,977 43,521,528 

Investments 850,577 - - - 850,577 
Mortgage loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $67,181 2,249,985 5,164,407 - - 7,414,392 
Capital assets, net - - - 11,780 11,780 

Total assets 32,986,298 15,005,040 2,955,182 851,757 51,798,277 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred outflows on net pension liability 38,057 363,191 119,353 - 520,601 
Deferred outflows on net OPEB liability 19,497 173,715 65,718 - 258,930 

Total deferred outflows of resources 57,554 536,906 185,071 - 779,531 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 33,043,852 $ 15,541,946 $ 3,140,253 $ 851,757 $ 52,577,808 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position 
Current liabilities 

Accounts pay able $ 17,782 $ 27,453 $ - $ 141,757 $ 186,992 
Accrued expenses 24,049 140,690 60,299 - 225,038 
Due to other funds, net - 3,214,801 - 700,000 3,914,801 
Due to other State departments - - - 10,000 10,000 
Security deposits - 2,013,869 - - 2,013,869 

Total current liabilities 41,831 5,396,813 60,299 851,757 6,350,700 

Noncurrent liabilities 
Net OPEB liability 208,200 1,680,760 555,200 - 2,444,160 
Net pension liability 204,845 1,652,952 548,231 - 2,406,028 

Total liabilities 454,876 8,730,525 1,163,730 851,757 11,200,888 

Deferred inflows of resources 
Deferred inflows on net pension liability 13,580 91,564 31,741 - 136,885 
Deferred inflows on net OPEB liability 3,862 34,144 12,795 - 50,801 

Total deferred inflows of resources 17,442 125,708 44,536 - 187,686 

Commitments and contingencies 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets - - - 11,780 11,780 
Restricted by legislation and contractual agreements - - - - - 
Unrestricted 32,571,534 6,685,713 1,931,987 (11,780) 41,177,454 

Total net position 32,571,534 6,685,713 1,931,987 - 41,189,234 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position $ 33,043,852 $ 15,541,946 $ 3,140,253 $ 851,757 $ 52,577,808 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Non-major Enterprise Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Rental Housing Multifamily 
Assistance Finance Housing 
Revolving Revolving Revenue Disbursing 

Fund Fund Bond Fund Fund Total 

Operating revenues 
Interest on mortgages, notes, loans and mortgage-backed securities $ 29,437 $ 14,158 $ - $ - $ 43,595 
Other - 1,372,924 1,177,709 - 2,550,633 

Total operating revenues 29,437 1,387,082 1,177,709 - 2,594,228 

Operating expenses 
Personnel services 128,950 1,014,773 424,574 - 1,568,297 
Housing assistance pay ments 1,588,547 - - - 1,588,547 
Administration 55,243 327,667 24,682 - 407,592 
Professional services 7,353 51,546 80,997 - 139,896 
Insurance - 144 39 - 183 
Provision for losses - 24,362 - - 24,362 
Capital expenses 385 2,519 1,325 - 4,229 
Other - 187,756 - - 187,756 

Total operating expenses 1,780,478 1,608,767 531,617 - 3,920,862 

Operating income (loss) (1,751,041) (221,685) 646,092 - (1,326,634) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 
Interest income 348,024 160,254 - - 508,278 
Net decrease in fair value of other investments (46,652) - - - (46,652) 
Other expenses - (255) - - (255) 

Total nonoperating revenues 301,372 159,999 - - 461,371 

Income (loss) before transfers (1,449,669) (61,686) 646,092 - (865,263) 

Net transfers 19,875,000 - - - 19,875,000 

Change in net position 18,425,331 (61,686) 646,092 - 19,009,737 

Net position 
Beginning of ear 14,146,203 6,747,399 1,285,895 - 22,179,497 

End of ear $ 32,571,534 $ 6,685,713 $ 1,931,987 $ - $ 41,189,234 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Non-major Enterprise Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Rental Housing Multifamily 
Assistance Finance Housing 
Revolving Revolving Revenue Disbursing 

Fund Fund Bond Fund Fund Total 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Cash received from tenants $ - $ 282,620 $ - $ - $ 282,620 
Cash received from borrowers 

Principal repa ments - 28,191 - - 28,191 
Interest income 73,534 14,299 - - 87,833 

Pay ments to employ ees (114,001) (905,560) (383,501) - (1,403,062) 
Pay ments to suppliers (1,533,407) (547,429) (429,446) 105,507 (2,404,775) 
Cash receipts from other funds - 379,018 (412,542) - (33,524) 
Other cash receipts - 1,369,322 1,225,489 - 2,594,811 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (1,573,874) 620,461 - 105,507 (847,906) 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 
Transfers in 19,875,000 - - - 19,875,000 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 19,875,000 - - - 19,875,000 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Sale of capital assets - - - 15,753 15,753 

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities - - - 15,753 15,753 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest received 135,040 58,448 - - 193,488 

Net cash provided by investing activities 135,040 58,448 - - 193,488 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 18,436,166 678,909 - 121,260 19,236,335 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Beginning of ear 10,463,325 7,618,353 - 718,717 18,800,395 

End of ear $ 28,899,491 $ 8,297,262 $ - $ 839,977 $ 38,036,730 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 
Equity in cash and cash equivalents and investments in State Treasur $ 28,899,491 $ 8,297,262 $ - $ 829,977 $ 38,026,730 
Cash in banks - - - 10,000 10,000 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 28,899,491 $ 8,297,262 $ - $ 839,977 $ 38,036,730 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
 provided b (used in) operating activities 

Operating income (loss) $ (1,751,041) $ (221,685) $ 646,092 $ - $ (1,326,634) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to 
 net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Provision for recover  of losses - 24,362 - - 24,362 
Net pension expense 11,605 103,384 39,112 - 154,101 
Net OPEB benefit (71) (630) (238) - (939) 
Changes in assets and liabilities 

Mortgage loans receivable - 28,191 - - 28,191 
Accrued interest receivable 44,097 141 - - 44,238 
Other receivables - - 47,780 - 47,780 
Due from other funds - (95,571) (412,542) - (508,113) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 100,339 - - - 100,339 
Accounts pay able 17,782 18,601 (322,404) 105,507 (180,514) 
Other accrued expenses 3,415 6,459 2,200 - 12,074 
Due to other funds - 474,589 - - 474,589 
Security deposits - 282,620 - - 282,620 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (1,573,874) $ 620,461 $ - $ 105,507 $ (847,906) 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Reconciliation of Cash and Short-Term Investments
June 30, 2019 

The Corporation’s cash and short-term investments consist of the following as of June 30, 2019: 

Equity in State Treasur  investment pool – Government-wide $ 555,504,880 
Cash in banks 4,101,827 
Cash held by third parties 1,922,759 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents held by trustee 11,800,872 
Deposits held in trust 485,248 
Restricted deposits held in escrow 1,259,037 

$ 575,074,623 

Total cash and short-term investments are in agreement with the State Comptroller’s central accounting 
records as of June 30, 2019, as reconciled below: 

Cash in State Treasur 
Special Funds 

Total cash held in State Treasur , as reported
 by State Comptroller’s accounting records 

Appropriation Balance at 
Sy mbol June 30, 2019 

S-15-375-B $ 188,140 
S-16-375-B 7,958 
S-17-375-B 378,814 
S-17-376-B 34,589 
S-18-375-B 3,556,106 
S-18-376-B 4,010,764 
S-18-378-B 66,595 
S-19-375-B 150,795,107 
S-19-376-B 3,978,356 
S-19-378-B 28,831,877 
S-19-380-B 362,740,474 
S-18-314-B 4,109 
S-18-321-B 58,000 
S-19-314-B 688,799 
S-19-320-B 15,000 
S-19-321-B 250,500 

555,605,188 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Reconciliation of Cash and Short-Term Investments
June 30, 2019 

Balance at 
June 30, 2019 

Balance carried forward 555,605,188 

Reconciling items 
Journal vouchers not recorded by DAGS 377,912 
Restricted cash held in State Treasur (478,220) 

Cash and short-term investments held outside State Treasury 
Cash in bank 4,101,827 
Cash held by third parties 1,922,759 
Restricted cash held by trustee 11,800,872 
Deposits held in trust 485,248 
Restricted deposits held in escrow 1,259,037 

19,569,743 

Cash and short-term investments on Statement of Net Position $ 575,074,623 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

See accompan ying independent auditors’ report and 
notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
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Federal Amount 
CFDA Federal Provided to 

Federal Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Expenditures Subrecipients 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 3,856,869$ 3,701,635 $ 
Housing Trust Fund 14.275 3,577,261 3,442,003 

Total federal expenditures 7,434,130$ 7,143,638 $ 



 

 

 

 
 

  

State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

1. Basis of Presentation 

The accompan ying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity 
of the Corporation and is presented on the cash basis of accounting.  The information in this 
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.  Therefore, 
some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the 
preparation of, the basic financial statements. 

2. Indirect Costs 

The Corporation has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the 
Uniform Guidance. 

See accompan ying independent auditors’ report. 
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Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With

Govetpoept Aufitipg Stapfatfu 

The Auditor 
State of Hawai‘i 

The Board of Directors 
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Gqvgtpmgpv Cwdivipg Svapdatds 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of the State of Hawai‘i, Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation (the “Corporation”) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 13, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Corporation’s internal 
control over financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.  Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Accuity LLP is c ogodgr f tjg in odcn ngtw ork f ckgr Tinny Intgrncti oncn Lioitgf, tjg ogodgrs f wjicj 
crg sg pcrctg cnf infg pgnfgnt ngicn gntitigs. 
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under qvgtpmgpv Cwdivipg Svapdatds. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s 
internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Gqvgtpmgpv Cwdivipg Svapdatds in considering the Corporation’s internal control and compliance.  
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Honolulu, Hawai‘i 
December 13, 2019 
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Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required b  the Uniform Guidance 

The Auditor 
State of Hawai‘i 

The Board of Directors 
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited the State of Hawai‘i, Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation’s (the 
“Corporation”) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Cqmpliapeg 
Swpplgmgpv that could have a direct and material effect on the Corporation’s major federal program for 
the year ended June 30, 2019.  The Corporation’s major federal program is identified in the summary of 
auditors’ results section of the accompan ing schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibilit
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors’ Responsibilit
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Corporation’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gqvgtpmgpv Cwdivipg Svapdatds, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code 
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Upihqtm Cdm ipisvtavivg Rgsw itgmgpvs, Cqsv Ptipeiplgs, apd Cwdiv 
Rgsw itgmgpvs hqt Fgdgtal Cwatds (“Uniform Guidance”).  Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
Corporation’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessar  in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Corporation’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, the Corporation complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program 
for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Accuity LLP is c ogodgr f tjg in odcn ngtw ork f ckgr Tinny Intgrncti oncn Lioitgf, tjg ogodgrs f wjicj 
crg sg pcrctg cnf infg pgnfgnt ngicn gntitigs. 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Other Matter 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance, which is required to be 
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs as Finding No. 2019-001.  Our opinion on the major federal program is 
not modified with respect to this matter. 

The Corporation’s response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying corrective action plan.  The Corporation’s response was not subject to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly we express no opinion on the response. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
Management of the Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Corporation’s internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of 
a federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficienc y, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, we did identify a deficiency in 
internal control over compliance described in the accompan ying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs as Finding No. 2019-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the Uniform Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Honolulu, Hawai‘i 
December 13, 2019 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Section I – Summar  of Auditors’ Results 

Financial Statements 

T pe of auditors’ report issued Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting 

• Material weakness(es) identified? es √ No 

• Significant deficienc (ies) identified? es √ None reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? es √ No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs 

• Material weakness(es) identified? es √ No 

• Significant deficienc (ies) identified? √ es None reported 

T pe of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance √ Yes No 

Identification of major programs 

CFDA 

Number Name of Federal Program 


14.275 Housing Trust Fund Program 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
T pe A and T pe B programs $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? √ Yes No 
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State of Hawai‘i
Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation 
(A Component Unit of the State of Hawai‘i) 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

No current year financial statement findings. 

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

Finding No. 2019-001: Written Policies, Procedures, and Sy stems (Significant Deficienc 

Repeat Finding? No 

Condition 

The Corporation has established policies and procedures to ensure compliance with the Housing Trust 
Fund program requirements in accordance with 24 CFR §93.404 which includes but not limited to 
executed written agreements, performed on-site inspections, annual performance and compliance 
reviews, and provided financial oversight over subgrantees, however, these policies and procedures 
are not written as required by 24 CFR §93.404. 

Criteria 

24 CFR §93.404 states that the “grantee must have and follow written policies, procedures, and systems, 
including a system for assessing risk of activities and projects and a system for monitoring entities 
consistent with this section to ensure that the requirements of this part are met.” 

Effect 

Lack of written policies and procedures, including a sy stem for assessing risk of activities and projects, 
increases the likelihood of failing to identify noncompliance with the regulations specified in 24 CFR 
§93.404. 

Cause and View of Responsible Officials 

The Corporation recogni zes the partnership with the subgrantees to carry out the activities of the Housing 
Trust Fund Program and holds the subgrantee accountable to the Federal regulations.  The Corporation 
executes written agreements with subgrantees which includes provisions to ensure that the subgrantees 
understand their responsibilities and obligations and are held accountable to the requirements of the 
Federal regulations.  In order to mitigate risks, the Corporation continuously educates the subgrantees 
such as disseminating Federal regulations to the subgrantees, meeting quarterl  with subgrantees at 
the local U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Office, and conducting annual on-site 
inspections.  As the Housing Trust Fund Program is a relatively new Federal program with limited 
guidance from the U.S. Department Housing and Urban Development, the Corporation continues 
to modify its policies and procedures as the program matures. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that the Corporation’s management commence the preparation of a set of written policies 
and procedures, including assessment of risk of activities and projects, to ensure subgrantees comply 
with the requirements of 24 CFR §93.404. 
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DAVID Y�IGE if �fABBiTISr'Al % CRAIG K� HIRAI
GOVERNOR USUE�L'SIEBSLS EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

STATE OF HAWAII
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS� ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & TOURISM
HAWAII HOUSING FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION IN REPLY PLEASE REFER TO�

��� QUEEN STREET� SUITE ���
HONOLULU� HAWAII ����� ���FMB����

FAX� '(���) ��������

December ��� ����

Accuity LLP
First Hawaiian Center
��� Bishop Street� Suite ����
Honolulu� Hawaii �����

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments on the Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs issued in connection with the Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance� Please
refer to the attachment for our comment�

If you should have any questions� please contact Holly Osumi� Chief Financial Officer�
at ���������

Sincerely�

^^�
Craig K�t�ttrat�
Executive Director

Attachment

vkono001
Text Box

vkono001
Text Box



Corrective Action Plan 

Finding No� �������� Written Policies� Procedures� and Systems (Significant Deficiency) 

Corrective Action Plan 

CFDA No� None 
Direct Award from the U�S� Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Concur� The Corporation has started the process of establishing written policies and procedures in 
accordance with �� CRF §������� 

Person Responsible� Darren Ueki� Finance Manager 

Anticipated Completion Date� June ��� ���� 

Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs 

There were no prior year findings or questioned costs� 
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